00 01 01

# LOMPOC UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT



# **BID/PROJECT MANUAL**

# PROJECT/CONTRACT NUMBER: B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK

Trevor McDonald, Superintendent of Schools

# School Board Officers/Members

Steve Straight – President Dick Barrett – Vice President Jeff Carlovsky - Clerk Bill Heath - Member Nancy Schuler-Jones - Member [Type here]

This page intentionally blank

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# **COVER**

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# **CONTRACT DOCUMENTS**

# **Bid Information Documents**

<b>Document</b>	<u>Title</u>
00 11 16	Notice to Bidders
00 21 13	Instructions to Bidders
00 72 13	General Conditions

# **Bid Submittal Documents**

<u>Document</u>	<u>Title</u>
00 41 13	Bid Form and Proposal
00 43 13	Bid Bond
00 43 36	Designated Subcontractors List
00 45 01	Site Visit Certification
00 45 19.01	Iran Contracting Act Certification, if contract value is
	\$1,000,000 or more
00 45 19	Non-Collusion Declaration

# **Execution of Contract Documents**

Document	<u>Title</u>
00 51 00	Notice of Award
00 52 13	Agreement
00 56 00	Escrow of Bid Documentation
00 61 13.13	Performance Bond
00 61 13.16	Payment Bond
00 45 26	Workers Compensation Certification
00 45 46.01	Prevailing Wage and Related Labor Requirement Certification
00 45 46.03	Drug Free Workplace Certification
00 45 46.04	Tobacco Free Environment Certification
00 45 46.05	Hazardous Materials Certification
00 45 46.06	Lead Based Materials Certification
00 45 46.07	Imported Materials Certification
00 45 46.08	Criminal Background/Investigation/Fingerprinting Certification
00 45 49	Registered Subcontractors List
00 55 00	Notice to Proceed

END OF DOCUMENT

[Type here]

#### **DOCUMENT 00 11 16**

#### **NOTICE TO BIDDERS**

Notice is hereby given that the governing board ("Board") of the Lompoc Unified School District ("District" or "Owner") will receive sealed bids for the following project, **B3-20: HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK.** 

The Project consists of the construction of concrete track at Hapgood Elementary School. The Work includes installation of concrete pavement and pavement markings within the north field of the school grounds.

To bid on this project, the Bidder is required to possess the following State of California contractor's license: "A" or "C12". The Bidder's license(s) must remain active and in good standing throughout the term of the Contract.

To bid on this Project, the Bidder is required to be registered as a public works contractor with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to the Labor Code. The Bidder's registration must remain active throughout the term of the Contract.

Sealed Bids will be received until 2:00 p.m., August 15, 2019 at the District Office Purchasing Department, 1301 North A Street, Lompoc, California, at or after which time the bids will be opened and publicly read aloud. Any bid that is submitted after this time shall be non-responsive and returned to the bidder. Any claim by a bidder of error in its bid must be made in compliance with section 5100 et seq. of the Public Contract Code.

All bids shall be on the form provided by the District. Each bid must conform and be responsive to all pertinent Contract Documents, including, but not limited to, the Instructions to Bidders.

A bid bond by an admitted surety insurer on the form provided by the District, cash, or a cashier's check or a certified check, drawn to the order of the Lompoc Unified School District, in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total bid price, shall accompany the Bid Form and Proposal, as a guarantee that the Bidder will, within **seven (7)** calendar days after the date of the Notice of Award, enter into a contract with the District for the performance of the services as stipulated in the bid.

A <u>mandatory pre-bid conference</u> will be held on <u>Thursday, August 1st</u>, at 10:00 a.m., sharp, at Hapgood Elementary School, 324 South A Street, Lompoc. Failure to attend or <u>tardiness</u> will render bid ineligible.

The successful Bidder shall be required to furnish a 100% Performance Bond and a 100% Payment Bond if it is awarded the contract for the Work.

The successful Bidder may substitute securities for any monies withheld by the District to ensure performance under the Contract, in accordance with the provisions of section 22300 of the Public Contract Code.

The Contractor and all Subcontractors under the Contractor shall pay all workers on all work performed pursuant to this Contract not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, State of California, for the type of work performed and the locality in which the work is to be performed within the boundaries of the District, pursuant to sections 1770 et seq. of the California Labor Code. Prevailing wage rates are available from the District or on the Internet at: <a href="http://www.dir.ca.gov">http://www.dir.ca.gov</a>>.

This Project is subject to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1771.4 and subject to the requirements of Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. The Contractor and all Subcontractors under the Contractor shall furnish electronic certified payroll records directly to the Labor Commissioner weekly and within ten (10) days of any request by the District or the Labor Commissioner. The successful Bidder shall comply with all requirements of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, Articles 1-5 of the Labor Code.

One Drawing, Specification and Contract Document set will be furnished, free of charge, per Contractor attending the **Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference**.

The District shall award the Contract, if it awards it at all, to the lowest responsive responsible bidder based on **the base bid amount only.** 

The Board reserves the right to reject any and all bids and/or waive any irregularity in any bid received. If the District awards the Contract, the security of unsuccessful bidder(s) shall be returned within sixty (60) days from the time the award is made. Unless otherwise required by law, no bidder may withdraw its bid for ninety (90) days after the date of the bid opening.

[Type here]

This page intentionally blank

#### **DOCUMENT 00 21 13**

#### **INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS**

Bidders shall follow the instructions in this document, and shall submit all documents, forms, and information required for consideration of a bid.

Lompoc Unified School District ("District") will evaluate information submitted by the apparent low Bidder and, if incomplete or unsatisfactory to District, Bidder's bid may be rejected at the sole discretion of District.

1. Bids are requested for a general construction contract, or work described in general, for the following project ("Project" or "Contract"):

#### **B3-20: HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK**

- A bidder and its subcontractors must possess the appropriate State of California contractors' license and must maintain the license throughout the duration of the project. Bidders must also be registered as a public works contractor with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to the Labor Code. Bids submitted by a contractor who is not properly licensed or registered shall be deemed nonresponsive and will not be considered.
- 3. The District has prequalified bidders pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111.5. Only prequalified bidders will be eligible to submit a bid for this Project. Any bid submitted by a bidder who is not prequalified shall be deemed nonresponsive and will not be considered.
  [OR]

The District has prequalified bidders pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111.6 for contracts \$1 million or more using or planning to use state bond funds. Only prequalified bidders will be eligible to submit a bid for this Project. Any bid submitted by a bidder who is not prequalified shall be deemed non-responsive and will not be considered. Moreover, any bid listing subcontractors holding C-4, C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43 or C-46 licenses, if used, who have not been prequalified, shall be deemed nonresponsive and will not be considered.

- 4. District will receive sealed bids from bidders as stipulated in the Notice to Bidders.
  - a. All bids must be sealed in an envelope, marked with the name and address of the Bidder,
    - the Project, the Project Number and/or bid number, and time of bid opening.
  - b. Bids must be submitted to the Lompoc Unified School District Purchasing Office by date and shown in the Notice to Bidders.
    - C. Bids must contain all documents as required herein.
- 5. Bidders are advised that on the date that bids are opened, telephones will not be available at the District Offices for use by bidders or their representatives.
- 6. Bids will be opened at or after the time indicated for receipt of bids.
- 7. Bidders must submit bids on the documents titled Bid Form and Proposal and must submit all other required District forms. Bids not submitted on the District's required forms shall be deemed nonresponsive and shall not be considered. Additional sheets required to fully respond to requested information are permissible.
- 8. Bidders shall not modify the Bid Form and Proposal or qualify their bids. Bidders shall not submit to the District a re-formatted, re-typed, altered, modified, or otherwise recreated version of the Bid Form and Proposal or other District-provided document.

name of

time

- 9. Bids shall be clearly written and without erasure or deletions. District reserves the right to reject any bid containing erasures, deletions, or illegible contents.
- 10. Bidders must supply all information required by each Bid Document. Bids must be full and complete. District reserves the right in its sole discretion to reject any bid as non-responsive as a result of any error or omission in the bid. Bidders must complete and submit all of the following documents with the Bid Form and Proposal:
  - a. Bid Bond on the District's form, or other security
  - b. Designated Subcontractors List
  - C. Site-Visit Certification, if a site visit was required.
  - d. Non-Collusion Declaration.
  - e. Iran Contracting Act Certification, if contract value is \$1,000,000 or more-
  - f. OCIP Insurance forms
  - 11. Bidders must submit with their bids cash, a cashier's check or a certified check payable to District, or a bid bond by an admitted surety insurer of not less than ten percent (10%) of amount of Base Bid, plus all additive alternates ("Bid Bond"). If Bidder chooses to provide a Bid Bond as security, Bidder must use the required form of corporate surety provided by District. The Surety on Bidder's Bid Bond must be an insurer admitted in the State of California and authorized to issue surety bonds in the State of California. Bids submitted without necessary bid security will be deemed non-responsive and will not be considered.
  - 12. If Bidder to whom Contract is awarded fails or neglects to enter into Contract and submit required bonds, insurance certificates, and all other required documents, within <u>SEVEN</u> (7) calendar days after the date of the Notice of Award, District may deposit Bid Bond, cash, cashier's check, or certified check for collection, and proceeds thereof may be retained by District as liquidated damages for failure of Bidder to enter into Contract, in the sole discretion of District. It is agreed that calculation of damages District may suffer as a result of Bidder's failure to enter into the Contract would be extremely difficult and impractical to determine and that the amount of the Bidder's required bid security shall be the agreed and conclusively presumed amount of damages.
  - 13. Bidders must submit with the bid the Designated Subcontractors List for those subcontractors who will perform any portion of Work, including labor, rendering of service, or specially fabricating and installing a portion of the Work or improvement according to detailed drawings contained in the plans and specifications, in excess of one half of one percent (0.5%) of total bid. Failure to submit this list when required by law shall result in bid being deemed non-responsive and the bid will not be considered.
  - 14. All of the listed subcontractors are required to be registered as a public works contractor with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to the Labor Code.

a.An inadvertent error in listing the California contractor license number on the Designated Subcontractors List shall not be grounds for filing a bid protest or grounds for considering the bid nonresponsive if the correct contractor's license number is submitted to the District within 24 hours after the bid opening and the corrected number corresponds with the submitted name and location for that subcontractor.

b.An inadvertent error listing an unregistered subcontractor shall not be grounds for filing a bid protest or grounds for considering the bid nonresponsive provided that any of the following apply:

- (1) The subcontractor is registered prior to the bid opening.
- (2) The subcontractor is registered and has paid the penalty registration fee within 24 hours after the bid opening.
- (3) The subcontractor is replaced by another registered subcontractor pursuant to Public Contract Code 4107.
- 15. If a mandatory pre-bid conference and site visit ("Site Visit") is required as referenced in the Notice to Bidders, then Bidders must submit the Site-Visit Certification with their Bid. District will transmit to all prospective Bidders of record such Addenda as District in its discretion considers necessary in response to

questions arising at the Site Visit. Oral statements shall not be relied upon and will not be binding or legally effective. Addenda issued by the District as a result of the Site Visit, if any, shall constitute the sole and exclusive record and statement of the results of the Site Visit.

- 16. Bidders shall submit the Non-Collusion Declaration with their bids. Bids submitted without the Non-Collusion Declaration shall be deemed non-responsive and will not be considered.
- 17. The Contractor and all Subcontractors under the Contractor shall pay all workers on all work performed pursuant to the Contract not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, State of California, for the type of work performed and the locality in which the work is to be performed within the boundaries of the District, pursuant to sections 1770 et seq. of the California Labor Code. Copies of the general prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute the Contract, as determined by Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, are available upon request at the District's principal office. Prevailing wage rates are also available on the internet at <a href="http://www.dir.ca.gov">http://www.dir.ca.gov</a>.

Since the Project is funded in whole or in part with federal funds, the Contractor and all Subcontractors under the Contractor shall comply with the Davis-Bacon Act, applicable reporting requirements, and any other applicable requirements for federal funding. If a conflict exists with a state requirement, the more stringent provision shall control.

- 18. The District has elected to provide an owner-controlled or wrap-up insurance program (OCIP). The policy limits, known exclusions, and the length of time the policy is intended to remain in effect provided by the OCIP are described in the OCIP Manual. The District will require all bidders at a minimum to have no serious and willful violations of Labor Code section 6300 et seq., have a workers' compensation experience modification factor of 1.00 or less, and have an injury prevention program instituted pursuant to Labor Code section 3201.5 or 6401.7.
- 19. Section 17076.11 of the Education Code requires school districts using funds allocated pursuant to the State of California School Facility Program for the construction and/or modernization of school building(s) to have a participation goal for disabled veteran business enterprises ("DVBE") of at least three percent (3%) per year of the overall dollar amount expended on projects that receive state funding or demonstrate its good faith effort to solicit DVBE participation in this Contract. In order to meet this requirement by demonstrating a good faith effort, Bidder must advertise for DVBE-certified subcontractors and suppliers before submitting its Bid. For any project that is at least partially state-funded, the lowest responsive responsible Bidder awarded the Contract must submit certification of compliance with the procedures for implementation of DVBE contracting goals with its signed Agreement. DVBE Certification form is attached. Do not submit this form with your Bid. Forms are to be submitted within four (4) days after Notice of Award.
- 20. Submission of bid signifies careful examination of Contract Documents and complete understanding of the nature, extent, and location of Work to be performed. Bidders must complete the tasks listed below as a condition to bidding, and submission of a bid shall constitute the Bidder's express representation to District that Bidder has fully completed the following:
  - a. Bidder has visited the Site, if required, and has examined thoroughly and understood the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, Work, Site, locality, actual conditions, as-built conditions, and all local conditions and federal, state and local laws, and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of Work or that relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder and safety precautions and programs incident thereto;
  - b. Bidder has conducted or obtained and has understood all examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, and studies that pertain to the subsurface conditions, as-built conditions, underground facilities, and all other physical conditions at or contiguous to the Site or otherwise that may affect the cost, progress, performance, or furnishing of Work, as Bidder considers necessary for the performance or furnishing of Work at the Contract Sum, within the Contract Time, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions of the General Conditions; and no additional

- examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies, or similar information or data are or will be required by Bidder for such purposes:
- C. Bidder has correlated its knowledge and the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents;
- d. Bidder has given the District prompt written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that it has discovered in or among the Contract Documents and the actual conditions, and the written resolution(s) thereof by the District is/are acceptable to Bidder;
- e. Bidder has made a complete disclosure in writing to the District of all facts bearing upon any possible interest, direct or indirect, that Bidder believes any representative of the District or other officer or employee of the District presently has or will have in this Contract or in the performance thereof or in any portion of the profits thereof;
- f. Bidder must, prior to bidding, perform the work, investigations, research, and analysis required by this document and that Bidder represented in its Bid Form and Proposal and the Agreement that it performed prior to bidding. Contractor under this Contract is charged with all information and knowledge that a reasonable bidder would ascertain from having performed this required work, investigation, research, and analysis. Bid prices must include entire cost of all work "incidental" to completion of the Work.
  - g. Conditions Shown on the Contract Documents: Information as to underground conditions, asbuilt conditions, or other conditions or obstructions, indicated in the Contract Documents, e.g., on Drawings or in Specifications, has been obtained with reasonable care, and has been recorded in good faith. However, District only warrants, and Bidder may only rely, on the accuracy of limited types of information.
    - (1) As to above-ground conditions or as-built conditions shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, there is no warranty, express or implied, or any representation express or implied, that such information is correctly shown or indicated. This information is verifiable by independent investigation and Bidder is required to make such verification as a condition to bidding. In submitting its Bid, Bidder shall rely on the results of its own independent investigation. In submitting its Bid, Bidder shall not rely on District-supplied information regarding above-ground conditions or as-built conditions.
    - (2) As to any subsurface condition shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, Bidder may rely only upon the general accuracy of actual reported depths, actual reported character of materials, actual reported soil types, actual reported water conditions, or actual obstructions shown or indicated. District is not responsible for the completeness of such information for bidding or construction; nor is District responsible in any way for any conclusions or opinions that the Bidder has drawn from such information; nor is the District responsible for subsurface conditions that are not specifically shown (for example, District is not responsible for soil conditions in areas contiguous to areas where a subsurface condition is shown).
- h. Conditions Shown in Reports and Drawings Supplied for Informational Purposes: Reference is made to the document entitled Geotechnical Data, and the document entitled Existing Conditions, for identification of:
  - (1) Subsurface Conditions: Those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site that have been utilized by Architect in preparing the Contract Documents; and
  - (2) Physical Conditions: Those drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the Site that has been utilized by Architect in preparing the Contract Documents.

- (3) These reports and drawings are <u>not</u> Contract Documents and, except for any "technical" data regarding subsurface conditions specifically identified in Geotechnical Data and Existing Conditions, and underground facilities data, Bidder may not in any manner rely on the information in these reports and drawings. Subject to the foregoing, Bidder must make its own independent investigation of all conditions affecting the Work and must not rely on information provided by District.
- 21. Bids shall be based on products and systems specified in Contract Documents or listed by name in Addenda. Whenever in the Specifications any materials, process, or article is indicated or specified by grade, patent, or proprietary name, or by name of manufacturer, that Specification shall be deemed to be followed by the words "or equal." Bidder may, unless otherwise stated, offer any material, process, or article that shall be substantially equal or better in every respect to that so indicated or specified. The District is not responsible and/or liable in any way for a Contractor's damages and/or claims related, in any way, to that Contractor's basing its bid on any requested substitution that the District has not approved in advance and in writing. Contractors and materials suppliers who submit requests for substitutions prior to the award of the Contract must do so in writing and in compliance with Public Contract Code section 3400. All requests must comply with the following:
- a. District must receive any notice of request for substitution of a specific item a minimum of <u>TEN (10)</u> calendar days prior to bid opening. The Successful Bidder will not be allowed to substitute specified items unless properly noticed.

b.Within 35 days after the date of the Notice of Award, the Successful Bidder shall submit data substantiating the request(s) for all substitution(s) containing sufficient information to assess acceptability of product or system and impact on Project, including, without limitation, the requirements specified in the Special Conditions and the Specifications. Insufficient information shall be grounds for rejection of substitution.

- C. Approved substitutions, if any, shall be listed in Addenda. District reserves the right not to act upon submittals of substitutions until after bid opening.
- d.Substitutions may be requested after Contract has been awarded only if indicated in and in accordance with requirements specified in the Special Conditions and the Specifications
- 22. Bidders may examine any available "as-built" drawings of previous work by giving District reasonable advance notice. District will not be responsible for accuracy of "as-built" drawings. The document entitled Existing Conditions applies to all supplied "as-built" drawings.
- 23. All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents are to be directed via email to the **District** to **hernandez.angelica@lusd.org**. Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by the District in response to such questions will be issued in writing by Addenda and emailed, faxed, mailed, or delivered to all parties recorded by the District as having received the Contract Documents or posted on the District's website at lusd.org. Questions received less than **SEVEN** (7) calendar days prior to the date for opening bids may not be answered. Only questions answered by formal written Addenda will be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect.
- 24. Addenda may also be issued to modify other parts of the Contract Documents as deemed advisable by the District.
- 25. <u>Each Bidder must acknowledge each Addendum in its Bid Form and Proposal by number or its Bid shall be considered non-responsive.</u> Each Addendum shall be part of the Contract Documents. A complete listing of Addenda may be secured from the District.
- 26. This Contract may include alternates. Alternates are defined as alternate products, materials, equipment, systems, methods, or major elements of the construction that may, at the District's option and under terms established in the Contract and pursuant to section 20103.8 of the Public Contract Code, be selected for the Work.

- 27. The District shall award the Contract, if it awards it at all, to the lowest responsive responsible bidder based on the criteria as indicated in the Notice to Bidders. In the event two or more responsible bidders submit identical bids, the District shall select the Bidder to whom to award the Contract by lot.
- 28. Time for Completion: District may issue a Notice to Proceed within <u>NINETY</u> (90) days from the date of the Notice of Award. Once Contractor has received the Notice to Proceed, Contractor shall complete the Work within the period of time indicated in the Contract Documents.

a.In the event that the District desires to postpone issuing the Notice to Proceed beyond this 90-day period, it is expressly understood that with reasonable notice to the Contractor, the District may postpone issuing the Notice to Proceed.

b.It is further expressly understood by Contractor that Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim of additional compensation as a result of the postponement of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed beyond a 90-day period. If the Contractor believes that a postponement of issuance of the Notice to Proceed will cause a hardship to the Contractor, the Contractor may terminate the Contract. Contractor's termination due to a postponement beyond this 90-day period shall be by written notice to District within **TEN (10)** calendar days after receipt by Contractor of District's notice of postponement.

C.It is further understood by the Contractor that in the event that Contractor terminates the Contract as a result of postponement by the District, the District shall only be obligated to pay Contractor for the Work that Contractor had performed at the time of notification of postponement and which the District had in writing authorized Contractor to perform prior to issuing a Notice to Proceed.

d. Should the Contractor terminate the Contract as a result of a notice of postponement, District shall have the authority to award the Contract to the next lowest responsive responsible bidder.

- 29. The Bidder to whom Contract is awarded shall execute and submit the following documents by 5:00 p.m. of the <u>SEVENTH (7<sup>TH</sup>)</u> calendar day following the date of the Notice of Award. Failure to properly and timely submit these documents entitles District to reject the bid as non-responsive.
  - a. Agreement: To be executed by successful Bidder. Submit two (2) copies, each bearing an original signature.
  - b. Escrow of Bid Documentation: This must include all required documentation. See the document titled Escrow Bid Documentation for more information.
  - C. Performance Bond (100%): On the form provided in the Contract Documents and fully executed as indicated on the form.
    - d. Payment Bond (100%) (Contractor's Labor and Material Bond): On the form provided in the Contract Documents and fully executed as indicated on the form.
    - e. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements as required.
    - f. Workers' Compensation Certification.
    - g. Prevailing Wage and Related Labor Requirements Certification.
    - h. Drug-Free Workplace Certification.
    - Tobacco-Free Workplace Certification.
    - j. Hazardous Materials Certification.
    - K. Lead-Based Paint Certification.
    - I. Imported Materials Certification.

- m. Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting Certification.
- n. Roofing Project Certification: from Contractor, Material Manufacturer and/or Vendor.
- O. Registered Subcontractors List: Must include Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) registration number of each subcontractor for all tiers.
- 30. Any bid protest by any Bidder regarding any other bid must be submitted in writing to the District, before 5:00 p.m. of the THIRD (3<sup>rd</sup>) business day following bid opening.
- a.Only a Bidder who has actually submitted a bid, and who could be awarded the Contract if the bid protest is upheld, is eligible to submit a bid protest. Subcontractors are not eligible to submit bid protests. A Bidder may not rely on the bid protest submitted by another Bidder.
- b.A bid protest must contain a complete statement of any and all bases for the protest and all supporting documentation. Materials submitted after the bid protest deadline will not be considered.
- C.The protest must refer to the specific portions of all documents that form the bases for the protest.
  - (1.) Without limitation to other basis for protest, an inadvertent error in listing the California contractor's license number on the Designated Subcontractors List shall not be grounds for filing a bid protest or grounds for considering the bid nonresponsive if the correct contractor's license number is submitted to the District within 24 hours after the bid opening and the corrected number corresponds with the submitted name and location for that subcontractor.
  - (2.) Without limitation to any other basis for protest, an inadvertent error listing an unregistered subcontractor shall not be grounds for filing a bid protest or grounds for considering the bid nonresponsive provided that any of the following apply:
  - (i) The subcontractor is registered prior to the bid opening.
  - (ii) The subcontractor is registered and has paid the penalty registration fee within 24 after the bid opening.
  - (iii) The subcontractor is replaced by another registered subcontractor pursuant to Public Contract Code section 4107.

d. The protest must include the name, address and telephone number of the person representing the protesting party.

e.The party filing the protest must concurrently transmit a copy of the protest and any attached documentation to all other parties with a direct financial interest that may be adversely affected by the outcome of the protest. Such parties shall include all other bidders or proposers who appear to have a reasonable prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest.

f. The procedure and time limits set forth in this paragraph are mandatory and are each bidder's sole and exclusive remedy in the event of bid protest. Failure to comply with these procedures shall constitute a waiver of any right to further pursue the bid protest, including filing a Government Code Claim or legal proceedings.

31. District reserves the right to reject any or all bids, including without limitation the right to reject any or all nonconforming, non-responsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids, to re-bid, and to reject the bid of any bidder if District believes that it would not be in the best interest of the District to make an award to that bidder, whether because the bid is not responsive or the bidder is unqualified or of doubtful financial ability or fails to meet any other pertinent standard or criteria established by District. District also reserves the right to waive

hours

any inconsequential deviations or irregularities in any bid. For purposes of this paragraph, an "unbalanced bid" is one having nominal prices for some work items and/or enhanced prices for other work items.

- 32. Discrepancies between written words and figures, or words and numerals, will be resolved in favor of numerals or figures or numerals.
- 33. It is the policy of the District that no qualified person shall be excluded from participating in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination in any consideration leading to the award of contract, based on race, color, gender, sexual orientation, political affiliation, age, ancestry, religion, marital status, national origin, medical condition or disability. The Successful Bidder and its subcontractors shall comply with applicable federal and state laws, including, but not limited to the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, beginning with Government Code section 12900, and Labor Code section 1735.
- 34. Prior to the award of Contract, District reserves the right to consider the responsibility of the Bidder. District may conduct investigations as District deems necessary to assist in the evaluation of any bid and to establish the responsibility, including, without limitation, qualifications and financial ability of Bidders, proposed subcontractors, suppliers, and other persons and organizations to perform and furnish the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents to District's satisfaction within the prescribed time.
- 35. The bid must be signed in the name of the bidder and must bear the signature in longhand of the person or persons duly authorized to sign the bid.
- 36. Although this is subject to change, the District plans to proceed with the project on the basis of the following schedule:

1. Pre-Bid Conference 10:00 A.M., August 1, 2019 (Hapgood Elementary)

b. Last Day for RFI's 2:00 P.M., August 8, 2019

c. Bids Due: 2:00 P.M., August 15, 2019 (LUSD Purchasing Dept.)

d. Board Approval: September 10, 2019

e. Notice of Award: September 11, 2019

f. Required Bonds: September 17, 2019

g. PO/ Notice to Proceed: September 19, 2019

h. Pre-Construction Meeting September 17, 2019

i. Commence Work: TBD

j. Complete Work: TBD

**k. 5**% Retention: A minimum of 35 Days after Notice of Completion is recorded at the Santa Barbara County Recorder's Office.

Copies of the general prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute the Contract, as determined by Director of the State of California Department of Industrial Relations, are on file at the District's principal office. **Prevailing wage rates are also available on the internet at (http://www.dir.ca.gov).** 

# **GENERAL CONDITIONS TABLE OF CONTENTS**

GENERAL CONDITIONS	
1. CONTRACT TERMS AND DEFINITIONS	19
1.1. Definitions	19
1.2. Laws concerning The Contract	23
1.3. No Oral Agreements	
1.4. No Assignment	
1.5. Notice and Service Thereof	
1.6. No Waiver	
1.7. Substitutions for Specified Items	
1.8. Materials and Work	
2. [RESERVED]	
3. ARCHITECT	
4. CONSTRUCTION MANAGER	
5. INSPECTOR, INSPECTIONS, AND TESTS	
5.1. Project Inspector	
5.2. Tests and Inspections	
5.3. Costs for After Hours and/or Off-Site Inspections	
6. CONTRACTOR	
6.1. Status of Contractor	
6.2. Project inspection Card(s)	
6.3. Contractor's Supervision	
6.4. Duty to Provide Fit workers	
6.5. Field Office	
6.7. Documents on Work	
6.8. Preservation of Records	
6.9. Integration of Work	
6.10. Notifications	
6.11. Obtaining of Permits, Licenses and Registrations	
6.12. Royalties and Patents	
6.13. Work to Comply with Applicable Laws and Regulations	
6.14. Safety/Protection of Persons and Property	
6.15. Working Evenings and Weekends	
6.16. Cleaning Up	
7. SUBCONTRACTORS	
8. OTHER CONTRACTS/CONTRACTORS	
9. DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS	
10. CONTRACTOR'S SUBMITTALS AND SCHEDULES	
10.1. Schedule of Work, Schedules of Submittals and Schedule of Values	
10.2. Monthly Progress Schedule(s)	
10.3. Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)	38
11. SITE ACCESS, CONDITIONS, AND REQUIREMENTS	38
11.1. Site Investigation	
11.2. Soils Investigation Report	
11.3. Access to Work	39

11.4. Layout and Field Engineering	39
11.5. Utilities	39
11.6. Sanitary Facilities	39
11.7. Surveys	
11.8. Regional Notification Center	39
11.9. Existing Utility Lines	
11.10. Notification	
11.11. Hazardous Materials	
11.12. No Signs	
12. TRENCHES	
12.1. Trenches Greater Than Five Feet	
12.2. Excavation Safety	
12.3. No Tort Liability of District	
12.4. No Excavation without Permits	
12.5. Discovery of Hazardous Waste and/or Unusual Conditions	
13. INSURANCE AND BONDS	۱ <del>۱</del>
13.1. Insurance	
13.2. Contract Security - Bonds	
14. WARRANTY/GUARANTEE/INDEMNITY	
14.1. Warranty/Guarantee	
14.2. Indemnity	
14.2. Mdefilinty	
15.1. Notice to Proceed	
15.2. Computation of Time / Adverse Weather	
15.3. Hours of Work	
15.4. Progress and Completion	
15.5. Schedule	
15.6. Expeditious Completion	48
16. EXTENSIONS OF TIME – LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	
16.1. Liquidated Damages	
16.2. Excusable Delay	
16.3. No Additional Compensation for Delays within Contractor's Control	
	49
17. CHANGES IN THE WORK	
17.1. No Changes without Authorization	
17.2. Architect Authority	
17.3. Change Orders	
17.4. Construction Change Directives	
17.5. Force Account Directives	
17.6. Price Request	51
17.7. Proposed Change Order	
17.8. Format for Proposed Change Order	53
17.9. Change Order Certification	54
17.10. Determination of Change Order Cost	54
17.11. Deductive Change Orders	
17.12 Addition or Deletion of Alternate Bid Item(s)	55
17.13. Discounts, Rebates, and Refunds	55
17.14 Accounting Records	55

17.15. N	otice Required	56
	pplicability to Subcontractors	
	Iteration to Change Order Language	
	ailure of Contractor to Execute Change Order	
	EST FOR INFORMATION	
	ENTS	
	ntract Price	
	plications for Progress Payments	
	ogress Payments	
	cisions to Withhold Payment	
	bcontractor Payments	
	LETION OF THE WORK	
	mpletion	
	ose-Out/Certification Procedures	
	al Inspection	
	sts of Multiple Inspections	
	rtial Occupancy or Use Prior to Completion	
21 FINIAI	PAYMENT AND RETENTION	0 6⊿
	al Payment	
	erequisites for Final Payment	
	tention	
	bstitution of Securities	
	VERING OF WORK	
	ONFORMING WORK AND CORRECTION OF WORK	
	nconforming Work	
	rrection of Work	
	strict's Right to Perform Work	
	INATION AND SUSPENSION	
	strict's Right to Terminate Contractor for Cause	
	rmination of Contractor for Convenience	
	spension of Workspension of Work	
	IS PROCESS	
	ormance during Claim Process	
	nition of Claim	
	ns Presentation	
	ns Resolution	
	contractor Pass-Through Claims	
	ernment Code Claim Act Claim	
	im Resolution	
	aim Resolution Non-Applicability	
	E LABOR, WAGE & HOUR, APPRENTICE, AND RELATED PROVISIONS	
	oor Compliance and Enforcement	
	age Rates, Travel, and Subsistence	
	urs of Work	
	yroll Records	
	prentices	
	n-Discrimination	
267 Lak	oor First Aid	76

# [Type here]

27. RESERVED)	
28. MISCELLANEOUS	77
28.1. Assignment of Antitrust Actions	77
28.2. Excise Taxes	77
28.3. Taxes	77
28.4. Shipments	77
28.5. Compliance with Government Reporting Requirements	77

#### **DOCUMENT 00 72 13**

#### **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

# 1.CONTRACT TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

# 1.1.Definitions

Wherever used in the Contract Documents, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated, which shall be applicable to both the singular and plural thereof:

- **1.1.1.** Adverse Weather: Shall be only weather that satisfies all of the following conditions: (1) unusually severe precipitation, sleet, snow, hail, or extreme temperature conditions in excess of the norm for the location and time of year it occurred based on the closest weather station data averaged over the past five years, (2) that is unanticipated and would cause unsafe work conditions and/or is unsuitable for scheduled work that should not be performed during inclement weather (i.e., exterior finishes), and (3) at the Project.
- 1.1.2. Allowance Expenditure Directive: Written authorization for expenditure of allowance, if any.
- **1.1.3.** Approval, Approved, and/or Accepted: Written authorization, unless stated otherwise.
- **1.1.4.** Architect (or "Design Professional in General Responsible Charge"): The individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, or any combination thereof, named as Architect, who will have the rights and authority assigned to the Architect in the Contract Documents. The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge as defined in DSA PR 13-02 on this Project or the Architect's authorized representative.
- **1.1.5.** As-Builts: Reproducible blue line prints of drawings to be prepared on a monthly basis pursuant to the Contract Documents, that reflect changes made during the performance of the Work, recording differences between the original design of the Work and the Work as constructed since the preceding monthly submittal. See **Record Drawings**.
- 1.1.6.Bidder: A contractor who intends to provide a proposal to the District to perform the Work of this Contract.
- **1.1.7.** Change Order: A written order to the Contractor authorizing an addition to, deletion from, or revision in the Work, and/or authorizing an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Time.
- **1.1.8.Claim**: A Dispute that remains unresolved at the conclusion of the all the applicable Dispute Resolution requirements provided herein.
- **1.1.9. Construction Change Directive**: A written order prepared and issued by the District, the Construction Manager, and/or the Architect and signed by the District and the Architect, directing a change in the Work.
- **1.1.10.**Construction Manager: The individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, or any combination thereof, or its authorized representative, named as such by the District. If no Construction Manager is used on the Project that is the subject of this Contract, then all references to Construction Manager herein shall be read to refer to District.
- **1.1.11.Construction Schedule:** The progress schedule of construction of the Project as provided by Contractor and approved by District.
- **1.1.12.**Contract, Contract Documents: The Contract consists exclusively of the documents evidencing the agreement of the District and Contractor, identified as the Contract Documents. The Contract Documents consist of the following documents:
  - 1.1.12.1. Notice to Bidders
  - 1.1.12.2.Instructions to Bidders
  - 1.1.12.3.Bid Form and Proposal
  - **1.1.12.4.**Bid Bond
  - 1.1.12.5. Designated Subcontractors List

- **1.1.12.6.** Site Visit Certification (if a site visit was required)
- 1.1.12.7. Non-Collusion Declaration
- 1.1.12.8. Notice of Award
- 1.1.12.9. Notice to Proceed
- **1.1.12.10.** Agreement
- **1.1.12.11.**Escrow of Bid Documentation
- **1.1.12.12.**Escrow Agreement for Security Deposits in Lieu of Retention (if applicable)
- 1.1.12.13. Performance Bond
- **1.1.12.14.** Payment Bond (Contractor's Labor & Material Bond)
- 1.1.12.15.General Conditions
- **1.1.12.16.** Special Conditions (if applicable)
- **1.1.12.17.**Project Labor Agreement (if applicable)
- **1.1.12.18.** Hazardous Materials Procedures and Requirements
- **1.1.12.19.**Workers' Compensation Certification
- 1.1.12.20. Prevailing Wage Certification
- **1.1.12.21.** Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Participation Certification (if applicable)
- **1.1.12.22.** Drug-Free Workplace Certification (if applicable)
- 1.1.12.23. Tobacco-Free Environment Certification
- **1.1.12.24.** Hazardous Materials Certification (if applicable)
- **1.1.12.25.**Lead-Based Materials Certification (if applicable)
- **1.1.12.26.** Imported Materials Certification (if applicable)
- **1.1.12.27.** Criminal Background Investigation/Fingerprinting Certification
- **1.1.12.28.** Buy American Certification (if applicable)
- **1.1.12.29.**Roofing Project Certification (if applicable)
- 1.1.12.30. Registered Subcontractors List
- **1.1.12.31.**Iran Contracting Act Certification (if applicable)
- **1.1.12.32.**Post Bid Interview
- **1.1.12.33.** All Plans, Technical Specifications, and Drawings
- **1.1.12.34.** Any and all addenda to any of the above documents
- **1.1.12.35.** Any and all change orders or written modifications to the above documents if approved in writing by the District
- **1.1.13.Contract Price**: The total monies payable to the Contractor under the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- **1.1.14.Contract Time**: The time period stated in the Agreement for the completion of the Work.
- **1.1.15.**Contractor: The person or persons identified in the Agreement as contracting to perform the Work to be done under this Contract, or the legal representative of such a person or persons.
- **1.1.16.** Daily Job Report(s): Daily Project reports prepared by the Contractor's employee(s) who are present on Site, which shall include the information required herein.
- **1.1.17.Day(s)**: Unless otherwise designated, day(s) means calendar day(s).
- **1.1.18. Department of Industrial Relations** (or "DIR"): is responsible, among other things, for labor compliance monitoring and enforcement of California prevailing wage laws and regulations for public works contracts.
- 1.1.19.Design Professional in General Responsible Charge: See definition of Architect above.
- **1.1.20.Dispute**: A separate demand by Contractor for a time extension; or payment of money or damages arising from Work done by or on behalf of the Contractor pursuant to the Contract and payment of which is not

otherwise expressly provided for or Contractor is not otherwise entitled to; or an amount of payment disputed by the District.

- **1.1.21.District:** The public agency or the school district for which the Work is performed. The governing board of the District or its designees will act for the District in all matters pertaining to the Contract. The District may, at any time,
  - **1.1.21.1.** Direct the Contractor to communicate with or provide notice to the Construction Manager or the Architect on matters for which the Contract Documents indicate the Contractor will communicate with or provide notice to the District; and/or
  - **1.1.21.2.** Direct the Construction Manager or the Architect to communicate with or direct the Contractor on matters for which the Contract Documents indicate the District will communicate with or direct the Contractor.
- **1.1.22.**Drawings (or "Plans"): The graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location, scope and dimensions of the work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, sequence of operation, and diagrams.
- **1.1.23.DSA:** Division of the State Architect.
- **1.1.24.Force Account Directive**: A process that may be used when the District and the Contractor cannot agree on a price for a specific portion of work or before the Contractor prepares a price for a specific portion of work and whereby the Contractor performs the work as indicated herein on a time and materials basis.
- **1.1.25.** Job Cost Reports: Any and all reports or records detailing the costs associated with work performed on or related to the Project that Contractor shall maintain for the Project. Specifically, Job Cost Reports shall contain, but are not limited by or to, the following information: a description of the work performed or to be performed on the Project; quantity, if applicable, of work performed (hours, square feet, cubic yards, pounds, etc.) for the Project; Project budget; costs for the Project to date; estimated costs to complete the Project; and expected costs at completion. The Job Cost Reports shall also reflect all Contract cost codes, change orders, elements of non-conforming work, back charges, and additional services.
- **1.1.26.** Labor Commissioner's Office (or "Labor Commissioner" also known as the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement ("DLSE"): Division of the DIR responsible for adjudicating wage claims, investigating discrimination and public works complaints, and enforcing Labor Code statutes and Industrial Welfare Commission orders.
- **1.1.27.**Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (or "MS4"): A system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm drains.
- 1.1.28.Plans: See Drawings.
- **1.1.29.Premises**: The real property owned by the District on which the Site is located.
- **1.1.30.** Product(s): New material, machinery, components, equipment, fixtures and systems forming the Work, including existing materials or components required and approved by the District for reuse
- **1.1.31. Product Data:** Illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams, and other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate a material, product, or system for some portion of the Work.

- **1.1.32.Program Manager:** The individual, partnership, corporation, joint venture, or any combination thereof, or its authorized representative, named as such by the District. If no Program Manager is designated for Project that is the subject of this Contract, then all references to Project Manager herein shall be read to refer to District.
- **1.1.33.Project**: The planned undertaking as provided for in the Contract Documents.
- **1.1.34.** Project Inspector (or "Inspector"): The individual(s) retained by the District in accordance with title 24 of the California Code of Regulations to monitor and inspect the Project.
- **1.1.35.Project Labor Management (or "PLA")**: a prehire collective bargaining agreement in accordance with Public Contract Code section 2500 et seq. that establishes terms and conditions of employment for a specific construction project or projects and/or is an agreement described in Section 158(f) of Title 29 of the United States Code.
- **1.1.36.Proposed Change Order (or "PCO"):** a written request prepared by the Contractor requesting that the District and the Architect issue a Change Order based upon a proposed change to the Work.
- **1.1.37.Provide**: Shall include "provide complete in place," that is, "furnish and install," and "provide complete and functioning as intended in place" unless specifically stated otherwise.
- **1.1.38.**Qualified SWPPP Practitioners (or "QSP"): certified personnel that attended a State Water Resources Control Board sponsored or approved training class and passed the qualifying exam.
- **1.1.39.**Record Drawings: Reproducible drawings (or Plans) prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Contract Documents that reflect all changes made during the performance of the Work, recording differences between the original design of the Work and the Work as constructed upon completion of the Project. See also **As-Builts.**
- **1.1.40.**Request for Information (or "RFI"): A written request prepared by the Contractor requesting that the Architect provide additional information necessary to clarify or amplify an item in the Contract Documents that the Contractor believes is not clearly shown or called for in the Drawings or Specifications or other portions of the Contract Documents, or to address problems that have arisen under field conditions.
- **1.1.41.Request for Substitution for Specified Item**: A request by Contractor to substitute an equal or superior material, product, thing, or service for a specific material, product, thing, or service that has been designated in the Contract Documents by a specific brand or trade name.
- **1.1.42.**Safety Orders: Written and/or verbal orders for construction issued by the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health ("CalOSHA") or by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("OSHA").
- **1.1.43.** Safety Plan: Contractor's safety plan specifically adapted for the Project. Contractor's Safety Plan shall comply with all provisions regarding Project safety, including all applicable provisions in these General Conditions.
- **1.1.44.** Samples: Physical examples that illustrate materials, products, equipment, finishes, colors, or workmanship and that, when approved in accordance with the Contract Documents, establish standards by which portions of the Work will be judged.
- **1.1.45.Shop Drawings**: All drawings, prints, diagrams, illustrations, brochures, schedules, and other data that are prepared by the Contractor, a subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor, that illustrate how specific portions of the Work shall be fabricated or installed.
- **1.1.46.Site**: The Project site as shown on the Drawings.

- **1.1.47.Specifications**: That portion of the Contract Documents, Division 1 through Division 49, and all technical sections, and addenda to all of these, if any, consisting of written descriptions and requirements of a technical nature of materials, equipment, construction methods and systems, standards, and workmanship.
- **1.1.48.State**: The State of California.
- **1.1.49.Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (or "SWPPP"):** A document which identifies sources and activities at a particular facility that may contribute pollutants to storm water and contains specific control measures and time frames to prevent or treat such pollutants.
- **1.1.50.Subcontractor**: A contractor and/or supplier who is under contract with the Contractor or with any other subcontractor, regardless of tier, to perform a portion of the Work of the Project.
- 1.1.51.Submittal Schedule: The schedule of submittals as provided by Contractor and approved by District.
- **1.1.52.Surety**: The person, firm, or corporation that executes as surety the Contractor's Performance Bond and Payment Bond and must be a California admitted surety insurer as defined in the Code of Civil Procedure section 995.120.
- **1.1.53.Work:** All labor, materials, equipment, components, appliances, supervision, coordination, and services required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Contract Documents, that are necessary for the construction and completion of the Project.

#### 1.2.Laws Concerning the Contract

Contract is subject to all provisions of the Constitution and laws of California and the United States governing, controlling, or affecting District, or the property, funds, operations, or powers of District, and such provisions are by this reference made a part hereof. Any provision required by law to be included in this Contract shall be deemed to be inserted.

# 1.3.No Oral Agreements

No oral agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of District, either before or after execution of Contract, shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained in any of the documents comprising the Contract.

### 1.4.No Assignment

Contractor shall not assign this Contract or any part thereof including, without limitation, any services or money to become due hereunder without the prior written consent of the District. Assignment without District's prior written consent shall be null and void. Any assignment of money due or to become due under this Contract shall be subject to a prior lien for services rendered or material supplied for performance of work called for under this Contract in favor of all persons, firms, or corporations rendering services or supplying material to the extent that claims are filed pursuant to the Civil Code, Code of Civil Procedure, Government Code, Labor Code, and/or Public Contract Code, and shall also be subject to deductions for liquidated damages or withholding of payments as determined by District in accordance with this Contract. Contractor shall not assign or transfer in any manner to a Subcontractor or supplier the right to prosecute or maintain an action against the District.

#### 1.5. Notice and Service Thereof

- **1.5.1.** Any notice from one party to the other or otherwise under Contract shall be in writing and shall be dated and signed by the party giving notice or by a duly authorized representative of that party. Any notice shall not be effective for any purpose whatsoever unless served in one of the following manners:
  - **1.5.1.1.** If notice is given by personal delivery thereof, it shall be considered delivered on the day of delivery.

- **1.5.1.2.**If notice is given by overnight delivery service, it shall be considered delivered one (1) day after date deposited, as indicated by the delivery service.
- **1.5.1.3.**If notice is given by depositing same in United States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope, it shall be considered delivered three (3) days after date deposited, as indicated by the postmarked date.
- **1.5.1.4.**If notice is given by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid, return receipt requested, it shall be considered delivered on the day the notice is signed for.
- **1.5.1.5.** Electronic mail may be used for convenience but is not a substitute for the notice and service requirements herein.

### 1.6.No Waiver

The failure of District in any one or more instances to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms of this Contract or to exercise any option herein conferred shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of the right to assert or rely upon any such terms or option on any future occasion. No action or failure to act by the District, Architect, or Construction Manager shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded the District under the Contract, nor shall any action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

### 1.7. Substitutions for Specified Items

Unless the Special Conditions contain different provisions, Contractor shall not substitute different items for any items identified in the Contract Documents without prior written approval of the District.

## 1.8. Materials and Work

- **1.8.1.** Except as otherwise specifically stated in this Contract, Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, equipment, transportation, supervision, temporary constructions of every nature, and all other services, management, and facilities of every nature whatsoever necessary to execute and complete this Contract, in a good and workmanlike manner, within the Contract Time.
- **1.8.2.** Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new and of the best quality of their respective kinds and grades as noted or specified, workmanship shall be of good quality, and Contractor shall use all diligence to inform itself fully as to the required manufacturer's instructions and to comply therewith.
- **1.8.3.** Materials shall be furnished in ample quantities and at such times as to insure uninterrupted progress of Work and shall be stored properly and protected from the elements, theft, vandalism, or other loss or damage as required.
- **1.8.4.**For all materials and equipment specified or indicated in the Drawings, the Contractor shall provide all labor, materials, equipment, and services necessary for complete assemblies and complete working systems, functioning as intended. Incidental items not indicated on Drawings, nor mentioned in the Specifications, that can legitimately and reasonably be inferred to belong to the Work described or be necessary in good practice to provide a complete assembly or system, shall be furnished as though itemized here in every detail. In all instances, material and equipment shall be installed in strict accordance with each manufacturer's most recent published recommendations and specifications.
- **1.8.5.**Contractor shall, after award of Contract by District and after relevant submittals have been approved, place orders for materials and/or equipment as specified so that delivery of same may be made without delays to the Work. Contractor shall, upon demand from District, present documentary evidence showing that orders have been placed.
- **1.8.6.** District reserves the right but has no obligation, in response to Contractor's neglect or failure in complying with the above instructions, to place orders for such materials and/or equipment as the District may deem advisable in order that the Work may be completed at the date specified in the Agreement, and all expenses

incidental to the procuring of said materials and/or equipment shall be paid for by Contractor or deducted from payment(s) to Contractor.

- **1.8.7.**Contractor warrants good title to all material, supplies, and equipment installed or incorporated in Work and agrees upon completion of all Work to deliver the Site to District, together with all improvements and appurtenances constructed or placed thereon by it, and free from any claims, liens, or charges. Contractor further agrees that neither it nor any person, firm, or corporation furnishing any materials or labor for any work covered by the Contract shall have any right to lien any portion of the Premises or any improvement or appurtenance thereon, except that Contractor may install metering devices or other equipment of utility companies or of political subdivision, title to which is commonly retained by utility company or political subdivision. In the event of installation of any such metering device or equipment, Contractor shall advise District as to owner thereof.
  - **1.8.7.1.** If a lien or a claim based on a stop payment notice of any nature should at any time be filed against the Work or any District property, by any entity that has supplied material or services at the request of the Contractor, Contractor and Contractor's Surety shall promptly, on demand by District and at Contractor's and Surety's own expense, take any and all action necessary to cause any such lien or a claim based on a stop payment notice to be released or discharged immediately therefrom.
  - **1.8.7.2.** If the Contractor fails to furnish to the District within ten (10) calendar days after demand by the District, satisfactory evidence that a lien or a claim based on a stop payment notice has been so released, discharged, or secured, the District may discharge such indebtedness and deduct the amount required therefor, together with any and all losses, costs, damages, and attorney's fees and expense incurred or suffered by District from any sum payable to Contractor under the Contract.
- **1.8.8.** Nothing contained in this Article, however, shall defeat or impair the rights of persons furnishing materials or labor under any bond given by Contractor for their protection or any rights under any law permitting such protection or any rights under any law permitting such persons to look to funds due Contractor in hands of District (e.g., stop payment notices), and this provision shall be inserted in all subcontracts and material contracts and notice of its provisions shall be given to all persons furnishing material for work when no formal contract is entered into for such material.
- **1.8.9.**Title to new materials and/or equipment for the Work of this Contract and attendant liability for its protection and safety shall remain with Contractor until incorporated in the Work of this Contract and accepted by District. No part of any materials and/or equipment shall be removed from its place of storage except for immediate installation in the Work of this Contract. Should the District, in its discretion, allow the Contractor to store materials and/or equipment for the Work off-site, Contractor will store said materials and/or equipment at a bonded warehouse and with appropriate insurance coverage at no cost to District. Contractor shall keep an accurate inventory of all materials and/or equipment in a manner satisfactory to District or its authorized representative and shall, at the District's request, forward it to the District.

# 2.[RESERVED]

# 3.ARCHITECT

- **3.1.** The Architect shall represent the District during the Project and will observe the progress and quality of the Work on behalf of the District. Architect shall have the authority to act on behalf of District to the extent expressly provided in the Contract Documents and to the extent determined by District. Architect shall have authority to reject materials, workmanship, and/or the Work whenever rejection may be necessary, in Architect's reasonable opinion, to insure the proper execution of the Contract.
- **3.2.** Architect shall, with the District and on behalf of the District, determine the amount, quality, acceptability, and fitness of all parts of the Work, and interpret the Specifications, Drawings, and shall, with the District, interpret all other Contract Documents.
- **3.3.** Architect shall have all authority and responsibility established by law, including title 24 of the California Code of Regulations.
- **3.4.**Contractor shall provide District and the Construction Manager with a copy of all written communication between Contractor and Architect at the same time as that communication is made to Architect, including, without limitation, all RFIs, correspondence, submittals, claims, and proposed change orders.

### **4.**CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

- **4.1.** If a construction manager is used on this Project ("Construction Manager" or "CM"), the Construction Manager will provide administration of the Contract on the District's behalf. After execution of the Contract and Notice to Proceed, all correspondence and/or instructions from Contractor and/or District shall be forwarded through the Construction Manager. The Construction Manager will not be responsible for and will not have control or charge of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures or for safety precautions in connection with the Work, which shall all remain the Contractor's responsibility.
- **4.2.** The Construction Manager, however, will have authority to reject materials and/or workmanship not conforming to the Contract Documents, as determined by the District, the Architect, and/or the Project Inspector. The Construction Manager shall also have the authority to require special inspection or testing of any portion of the Work, whether it has been fabricated, installed, or fully completed. Any decision made by the Construction Manager, in good faith, shall not give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Construction Manager to: The Contractor, any Subcontractor, the Contractor or Subcontractor's respective agents, employees, or other persons performing any of the Work. The Construction Manager shall have free access to any or all parts of Work at any time.
- **4.3.** If the District does not use a Construction Manager on this Project, all references to Construction Manager or CM shall be read as District.

### **5.**INSPECTOR, INSPECTIONS, AND TESTS

# 5.1. Project Inspector

- **5.1.1.**One or more Project Inspector(s), including special Project Inspector(s), as required, will be assigned to the Work by District, in accordance with requirements of title 24, part 1, of the California Code of Regulations, to enforce the building code and monitor compliance with Plans and Specifications for the Project. Duties of Project Inspector(s) are specifically defined in section 4-342 of said part 1 of title 24.
- **5.1.2.**No Work shall be carried on except with the knowledge and under the inspection of the Project Inspector(s). The Project Inspector(s) shall have free access to any or all parts of Work at any time. Contractor shall furnish Project Inspector(s) reasonable opportunities for obtaining such information as may be necessary to keep Project Inspector(s) fully informed respecting progress and manner of work and character of materials, including, but not limited to, submission of form DSA 156 (or the most current version applicable at the time the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector at least 48 hours in advance of the commencement and completion of construction of each and every aspect of the Work. Forms are available on the DSA's website at: <a href="http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx">http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx</a>. Inspection of Work shall not relieve Contractor from an obligation to fulfill this Contract. Project Inspector(s) and the DSA are authorized to suspend work whenever the Contractor and/or its Subcontractor(s) are not complying with the Contract Documents. Any work stoppage by the Project Inspector(s) and/or DSA shall be without liability to the District. Contractor shall instruct its Subcontractors and employees accordingly.
- **5.1.3.**If Contractor and/or any Subcontractor requests that the Project Inspector(s) perform any inspection offsite, this shall only be done if it is allowable pursuant to applicable regulations and DSA approval, if the Project Inspector(s) agree to do so, and at the expense of the Contractor.

### **5.2.**Tests and Inspections

- **5.2.1.**Tests and Inspections shall comply with title 24, part 1, California Code of Regulations, group 1, article 5, section 4-335, and with the provisions of the Specifications.
- **5.2.2.** The District will select an independent testing laboratory to conduct the tests. Selection of the materials required to be tested shall be by the laboratory or the District's representative and not by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the District's representative a sufficient time in advance of its readiness for required observation or inspection.
- **5.2.3.** The Contractor shall notify the District's representative a sufficient time in advance of the manufacture of material to be supplied under the Contract Documents, which must by terms of the Contract Documents be tested, in order that the District may arrange for the testing of same at the source of supply. This notice shall be provided, at a minimum, seventy-two (72) hours prior to the manufacture of the material that needs to be tested.

- **5.2.4.** Any material shipped by the Contractor from the source of supply prior to having satisfactorily passed such testing and inspection or prior to the receipt of notice from said representative that such testing and inspection will not be required, shall not be incorporated into and/or onto the Project.
- **5.2.5.**The District will select the testing laboratory and pay for the cost of all tests and inspections. Contractor shall reimburse the District for any and all laboratory costs or other testing costs for any materials found to be not in compliance with the Contract Documents. At the District's discretion, District may elect to deduct laboratory or other testing costs for noncompliant materials from the Contract Price, and such deduction shall not constitute a withholding.

# 5.3. Costs for After Hours and/or Off-Site Inspections

If the Contractor performs Work outside the Inspector's regular working hours or requests the Inspector to perform inspections off Site, costs of any inspections required outside regular working hours or off Site shall be borne by the Contractor and may be invoiced to the Contractor by the District or the District may deduct those expenses from the next Progress Payment.

# **6.**CONTRACTOR

Contractor shall construct and complete, in a good and workmanlike manner, the Work for the Contract price including any adjustment(s) to the Contract Price pursuant to provisions herein regarding changes to the Contract Price. Except as otherwise noted, Contractor shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, equipment, permits (excluding DSA), fees, licenses, facilities, transportation, taxes, bonds and insurance, and services necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work, except as indicated herein.

#### **6.1.**Status of Contractor

- **6.1.1.**Contractor is and shall at all times be deemed to be an independent contractor and shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which it and its Subcontractors perform the services required of it by the Contract Documents. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as creating the relationship of employer and employee, or principal and agent, between the District, or any of the District's employees or agents, and Contractor or any of Contractor's Subcontractors, agents or employees. Contractor assumes exclusively the responsibility for the acts of its employees as they relate to the services to be provided during the course and scope of their employment. Contractor, its Subcontractors, agents, and its employees shall not be entitled to any rights or privileges of District employees. District shall be permitted to monitor the Contractor's activities to determine compliance with the terms of this Contract.
- **6.1.2.** As required by law, Contractor and all Subcontractors shall be properly licensed and regulated by the Contractors State License Board, 9821 Business Park Drive, Sacramento, California 95827, http://www.cslb.ca.gov.
- **6.1.3.** As required by law, Contractor and all Subcontractors shall be properly registered as public works contractors by the Department of Industrial Relations at <a href="https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm">https://efiling.dir.ca.gov/PWCR/ActionServlet?action=displayPWCRegistrationForm</a> or current URL.
- **6.1.4.**Contractor represents that it has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Work required under this Contractor and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Contractor.

### **6.2** Project Inspection Card(s)

Contractor shall verify that forms DSA 152 (or current version applicable at the time the Work is performed) are issued for the Project prior to the commencement of construction.

#### 6.3 Contractor's Supervision

**6.3.1.** During progress of the Work, Contractor shall keep on the Premises, and at all other locations where any Work related to the Contract is being performed, an experienced and competent project manager and construction

superintendent who are employees of the Contractor, to whom the District does not object and at least one of whom shall be fluent in English, written and verbal.

- **6.3.2.** The project manager and construction superintendent shall both speak fluently the predominant language of the Contractor's employees.
- **6.3.3.** Before commencing the Work herein, Contractor shall give written notice to District of the name of its project manager and construction superintendent. Neither the Contractor's project manager nor construction superintendent shall be changed except with prior written notice to District. If the Contractor's project manager and/or construction superintendent proves to be unsatisfactory to Contractor, or to District, any of the District's employees, agents, the Construction Manager, or the Architect, Contractor shall notify District in writing before any change occurs, but no less than two (2) business days prior. Any replacement of the project manager and/or construction superintendent shall be made promptly and must be satisfactory to the District. The Contractor's project manager and construction superintendent shall each represent Contractor, and all directions given to Contractor's project manager and/or construction superintendent shall be as binding as if given to Contractor.
- **6.3.4.** Contractor shall give efficient supervision to Work, using its best skill and attention. Contractor shall carefully study and compare all Contract Documents, Drawings, Specifications, and other instructions and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, and Architect any error, inconsistency, or omission that Contractor or its employees and Subcontractors may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project Inspector(s). The Contractor shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, inconsistencies, or omissions.

# **6.4.** Duty to Provide Fit Workers

- **6.4.1.** Contractor and Subcontractor(s) shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among their employees and shall not employ or work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in work assigned to that person. It shall be the responsibility of Contractor to ensure compliance with this requirement. District may require Contractor to permanently remove unfit persons from Project Site.
- **6.4.2.** Any person in the employ of Contractor or Subcontractor(s) whom District may deem incompetent or unfit shall be excluded from working on the Project and shall not again be employed on the Project except with the prior written consent of District.
- **6.4.3.** The Contractor shall furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be employed in the Work.
- **6.4.4.** If Contractor intends to make any change in the name or legal nature of the Contractor's entity, Contractor must first notify the District in writing prior to making any contemplated change. The District shall determine in writing if Contractor's intended change is permissible while performing this Contract.

### 6.5. Field Office

**6.5.1.** Contractor shall provide a temporary office on the Work Site for the District's use exclusively, during the term of the Contract.

# 6.6. Purchase of Materials and Equipment

The Contractor is required to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently in advance of its Work at no additional cost or advance payment from District to assure that there will be no delays.

# 6.7. Documents on Work

**6.7.1.** Contractor shall at all times keep on the Work Site, or at another location as the District may authorize in writing, one legible copy of all Contract Documents, including Addenda and Change Orders, and Titles 19 and 24 of the California Code of Regulations, the specified edition(s) of the Uniform Building Code, all approved Drawings, Plans, Schedules, and Specifications, and all codes and documents referred to in the Specifications, and made part thereof. These documents shall be kept in good order and available to District, Construction Manager, Architect, Architect's representatives, the Project Inspector(s), and all authorities having jurisdiction. Contractor shall be acquainted with and comply with the provisions of these titles as they relate to this Project. (See particularly the duties of Contractor, Title 24, Part 1, California Code of Regulations, section 4-343.) Contractor shall also be acquainted with and comply with all California Code of Regulations provisions relating

to conditions on this Project, particularly Titles 8 and 17. Contractor shall coordinate with Architect and Construction Manager and shall submit its verified report(s) according to the requirements of Title 24.

### 6.7.2. Daily Job Reports.

**6.7.2.1.** Contractor shall maintain, at a minimum, at least one (1) set of Daily Job Reports on the Project. These must be prepared by the Contractor's employee(s) who are present on Site, and must include, at a minimum, the following information:

6.7.2.1.1.	A brief description of all Work performed on that day.
6.7.2.1.2.	A summary of all other pertinent events and/or occurrences on that day.
6.7.2.1.3.	The weather conditions on that day.
6.7.2.1.4.	A list of all Subcontractor(s) working on that day, including DIR registration numbers.
6.7.2.1.5.	A list of each Contractor employee working on that day, and the total hours worked
for	each employee.
6.7.2.1.6.	A complete list of all equipment on Site that day, whether in use or not.
6.7.2.1.7.	A complete list of all materials, supplies, and equipment delivered on that day.
6.7.2.1.8.	A complete list of all inspections and tests performed on that day.

**6.7.2.2.** Each day Contractor shall provide a copy of the previous day's Daily Job Report to the District or the Construction Manager.

# 6.8. <u>Preservation of Records</u>

Contractor shall maintain, and District shall have the right to inspect, Contractor's financial records for the Project, including, without limitation, Job Cost Reports for the Project in compliance with the criteria set forth herein. The District shall have the right to examine and audit all Daily Job Reports or other Project records of Contractor's project manager(s), project superintendent(s), and/or project foreperson(s), all certified payroll records and/or related documents including, without limitation, Job Cost Reports, payroll, payment, timekeeping and tracking documents; all books, estimates, records, contracts, documents, bid documents, bid cost data, subcontract job cost reports, and other data of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, and/or supplier, including computations and projections related to bidding, negotiating, pricing, or performing the Work or Contract modification, in order to evaluate the accuracy, completeness, and currency of the cost, manpower, coordination, supervision, or pricing data at no additional cost to the District. These documents may be duplicative and/or be in addition to any Bid Documents held in escrow by the District. The Contractor shall make available at its office at all reasonable times the materials described in this paragraph for the examination, audit, or reproduction until three (3) years after final payment under this Contract. Notwithstanding the provisions above, Contractor shall provide any records requested by any governmental agency, if available, after the time set forth above.

# 6.9. <u>Integration of Work</u>

- **6.9.1.** Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, patching, and preparation of Work as required to make its several parts come together properly, to fit it to receive or be received by work of other contractors, and to coordinate tolerances to various pieces of work, showing upon, or reasonably implied by, the Drawings and Specifications for the completed structure, and shall conform them as District and/or Architect may direct.
- **6.9.2.** Contractor shall make its own layout of lines and elevations and shall be responsible for the accuracy of both Contractor's and Subcontractors' work resulting therefrom.
- **6.9.3.** Contractor and all Subcontractors shall take all field dimensions required in performance of the Work and shall verify all dimensions and conditions on the Site. All dimensions affecting proper fabrication and installation of all Work must be verified prior to fabrication by taking field measurements of the true conditions. If there are any discrepancies between dimensions in drawings and existing conditions which will affect the Work, Contractor shall bring such discrepancies to the attention of the District and Architect for adjustment before proceeding with the Work. In doing so, it is recognized that Contractor is not acting in the capacity of a licensed design professional, and that Contractor's examination is made in good faith to facilitate construction and does not create an affirmative responsibility to detect errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents or to ascertain compliance with applicable laws, building codes or regulations. Following receipt of written notice from Contractor, the District and/or Architect shall inform Contractor what action, if any, Contractor shall take with regard to such discrepancies.

- **6.9.4.** All costs caused by noncompliant, defective or delayed Work shall be borne by Contractor, inclusive of repair work.
- **6.9.5.** Contractor shall not endanger any work performed by it or anyone else by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering work and shall not cut or alter work of any other contractor except with consent of District.

#### **6.10.** Notifications

- **6.10.1.** Contractor shall notify the Architect and Project Inspector, in writing, of the commencement of construction of each and every aspect of the Work at least 48 hours in advance by submitting form DSA 156 (or the most current version applicable at the time the Work is performed) to the Project Inspector. Forms are available on the DSA's website at: http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/Forms.aspx.
- **6.10.2.** Contractor shall notify the Architect and Project Inspector, in writing, of the completion of construction of each and every aspect of the Work at least 48 hours in advance by submitting form DSA 156 (or current version) to the Project Inspector.

# 6.11. Obtaining of Permits, Licenses and Registrations

Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits (except DSA), licenses, registrations, approvals and certificates necessary for prosecution of Work, including but not limited to those listed in the Special Conditions, if any, before the date of the commencement of the Work or before the permits, licenses, registrations, approvals and certificates are legally required to continue the Work without interruption. The Contractor shall obtain and pay, only when legally required, for all licenses, registrations, approvals, permits, inspections, and inspection certificates required to be obtained from or issued by any authority having jurisdiction over any part of the Work included in the Contract. All final permits, licenses, registrations, approvals and certificates shall be delivered to District before demand is made for final payment.

# 6.12. Royalties and Patents

- 6.11.1. Contractor shall obtain and pay, only when legally required, all royalties and license fees necessary for prosecution of Work before the earlier of the date of the commencement of the Work or the date the license is legally required to continue the Work without interruption. Contractor shall defend suits or claims of infringement of patent, copyright, or other rights and shall hold the District, the Architect, and the Construction Manager harmless and indemnify them from loss on account thereof except when a particular design, process, or make or model of product is required by the Contract Documents. However, if the Contractor has reason to believe that the required design, process, or product is an infringement of a patent or copyright, the Contractor shall indemnify and defend the District, Architect and Construction Manager against any loss or damage unless the Contractor promptly informs the District of its information.
- <u>6.11.2.</u> The review by the District or Architect of any method of construction, invention, appliance, process, article, device, or material of any kind shall be only its adequacy for the Work and shall not approve use by the Contractor in violation of any patent or other rights of any person or entity.

### 6.13. Work to Comply with Applicable Laws and Regulations

- **6.13.1.** Contractor shall give all notices and comply with the following specific laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations and all other applicable laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations bearing on conduct of Work as indicated and specified, including but not limited to the appropriate statutes and administrative code sections. If Contractor observes that Drawings and Specifications are at variance therewith, or should Contractor become aware of the development of conditions not covered by Contract Documents that may result in finished Work being at variance therewith, Contractor shall promptly notify District in writing and any changes deemed necessary by District shall be made as provided in Contract for changes in Work.
  - **6.13.1.1.** National Electrical Safety Code, U. S. Department of Commerce
  - **6.13.1.2.** National Board of Fire Underwriters' Regulations
  - **6.13.1.3.** International Building Code, latest addition, and the California Code of Regulations, title 24, and other amendments

- 6.13.1.4. Manual of Accident Prevention in Construction, latest edition, published by A.G.C. of America
- 6.13.1.5. Industrial Accident Commission's Safety Orders, State of California
- **6.13.1.6.** Regulations of the State Fire Marshall (title 19, California Code of Regulations) and Pertinent Local Fire Safety Codes
- **6.13.1.7.** Americans with Disabilities Act
- **6.13.1.8.** Education Code of the State of California
- **6.13.1.9.** Government Code of the State of California
- **6.13.1.10.** Labor Code of the State of California, division 2, part 7, Public Works and Public Agencies
- **6.13.1.11.** Public Contract Code of the State of California
- **6.13.1.12.** California Art Preservation Act
- 6.13.1.13. U. S. Copyright Act
- **6.13.1.14.** U. S. Visual Artists Rights Act
- **6.13.2.** Contractor shall comply with all applicable mitigation measures, if any, adopted by any public agency with respect to this Project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code section 21000 et seq.)
- **6.13.3.** If Contractor performs any Work that it knew, or through exercise of reasonable care should have known, to be contrary to any applicable laws, ordinance, rules, or regulations, Contractor shall bear all costs arising therefrom and arising from the correction of said Work.
- **6.13.4.** Where Specifications or Drawings state that materials, processes, or procedures must be approved by the DSA, State Fire Marshall, or other body or agency, Contractor shall be responsible for satisfying requirements of such bodies or agencies applicable at the time the Work is performed, and as determined by those bodies or agencies.

# 6.14. Safety/Protection of Persons and Property

- **6.14.1.** The Contractor will be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the Work Site, including safety of all persons and property during performance of the Work. This requirement will apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours.
- **6.14.2.** The wearing of hard hats will be mandatory at all times for all personnel on Site. Contractor shall supply sufficient hard hats to properly equip all employees and visitors.
- **6.14.3.** Any construction review of the Contractor's performance is not intended to include review of the adequacy of the Contractor's safety measures in, on, or near the Work Site.
- **6.14.4.** Implementation and maintenance of safety programs shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.
- **6.14.5.** The Contractor shall furnish to the District a copy of the Contractor's safety plan within the time frame indicated in the Contract Documents and specifically adapted for the Project.
- **6.14.6.** Contractor shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property that occur as a result of its fault or negligence in connection with the prosecution of this Contract and shall take all necessary measures and be responsible for the proper care and completion and final acceptance by District. All Work shall be solely at Contractor's risk with the exception of damage to the Work caused by "acts of God" as defined in Public Contract Code section 7105.
- **6.14.7.** Contractor shall take, and require Subcontractors to take, all necessary precautions for safety of workers on the Project and shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and other safety laws, standards, orders, rules, regulations, and building codes to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, about, or adjacent to premises where Work is being performed and to provide a safe and healthful place of employment. Contractor shall furnish, erect, and properly maintain at all times, all necessary safety devices, safeguards, construction canopies, signs, nets, barriers, lights, and watchmen for protection of workers and the public and shall post danger signs warning against hazards created by such features in the course of construction.
- **6.14.8.** Hazards Control Contractor shall store volatile wastes in covered metal containers and remove them from the Site daily. Contractor shall prevent accumulation of wastes that create hazardous conditions. Contractor shall provide adequate ventilation during use of volatile or noxious substances.

- **6.14.9.** Contractor shall designate a responsible member of its organization on the Project, whose duty shall be to post information regarding protection and obligations of workers and other notices required under occupational safety and health laws, to comply with reporting and other occupational safety requirements, and to protect the life, safety, and health of workers. Name and position of person so designated shall be reported to District by Contractor.
- **6.14.10.** Contractor shall correct any violations of safety laws, rules, orders, standards, or regulations. Upon the issuance of a citation or notice of violation by the Division of Occupational Safety and Health, Contractor shall correct such violation promptly.
- **6.14.11.** Contractor shall comply with any District storm water requirements that are approved by the District and applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District.
- **6.14.12.** In an emergency affecting safety of life or of work or of adjoining property, Contractor, without special instruction or authorization, shall act, at its discretion, to prevent such threatened loss or injury. Any compensation claimed by Contractor on account of emergency work shall be determined by agreement.
- **6.14.13.** All salvage materials will become the property of the Contractor and shall be removed from the Site unless otherwise called for in the Contract Documents. However, the District reserves the right to designate certain items of value that shall be turned over to the District unless otherwise directed by District.
- **6.14.14.** All connections to public utilities and/or existing on-site services shall be made and maintained in such a manner as to not interfere with the continuing use of same by the District during the entire progress of the Work.
- **6.14.15.** Contractor shall provide such heat, covering, and enclosures as are necessary to protect all Work, materials, equipment, appliances, and tools against damage by weather conditions, such as extreme heat, cold, rain, snow, dry winds, flooding, or dampness.
- **6.14.16.** The Contractor shall protect and preserve the Work from all damage or accident, providing any temporary roofs, window and door coverings, boxings, or other construction as required by the Architect. The Contractor shall be responsible for existing structures, walks, roads, trees, landscaping, and/or improvements in working areas; and shall provide adequate protection therefor. If temporary removal is necessary of any of the above items, or damage occurs due to the Work, the Contractor shall replace same at his expense with same kind, quality, and size of Work or item damaged. This shall include any adjoining property of the District and others.
- **6.14.17.** Contractor shall take adequate precautions to protect existing roads, sidewalks, curbs, pavements, utilities, adjoining property, and structures (including, without limitation, protection from settlement or loss of lateral support), and to avoid damage thereto, and repair any damage thereto caused by construction operations.
- **6.14.18.** Contractor shall confine apparatus, the storage of materials, and the operations of workers to limits indicated by law, ordinances, permits, or directions of Architect, and shall not interfere with the Work or unreasonably encumber Premises or overload any structure with materials. Contractor shall enforce all instructions of District and Architect regarding signs, advertising, fires, and smoking, and require that all workers comply with all regulations while on Project Site.
- **6.14.19.** Contractor, Contractor's employees, Subcontractors, Subcontractors' employees, or any person associated with the Work shall conduct themselves in a manner appropriate for a SCHOOL site. No verbal or physical contact with neighbors, students, and faculty, profanity, or inappropriate attire or behavior will be permitted. District may require Contractor to permanently remove non-complying persons from Project Site.
- **6.14.20.** Contractor shall take care to prevent disturbing or covering any survey markers, monuments, or other devices marking property boundaries or corners. If such markers are disturbed, Contractor shall have a civil engineer, registered as a professional engineer in California, replace them at no cost to District.
- **6.14.21.** In the event that the Contractor enters into any agreement with owners of any adjacent property to enter upon the adjacent property for the purpose of performing the Work, Contractor shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless each person, entity, firm, or agency that owns or has any interest in adjacent property. The form and content of the agreement of indemnification shall be approved by the District prior to the commencement of any Work on or about the adjacent property. The Contractor shall also indemnify the District

as provided in the indemnification provision herein. These provisions shall be in addition to any other requirements of the owners of the adjacent property.

# 6.15. Working Evenings and Weekends

Contractor may be required to work increased hours, evenings and/or weekends at no additional cost to the District. Contractor shall give the District seventy-two (72) hours' notice prior to performing any evening and/or weekend work. Contractor shall perform all evening and/or weekend work only upon District's approval and in compliance with all applicable rules, regulations, laws, and local ordinances including, without limitation, all noise and light limitations. Contractor shall reimburse the District for any increased or additional Inspector charges as a result of Contractor's increased hours, or evening and/or weekend work.

### 6.16. Cleaning Up

- **6.16.1.** The Contractor shall provide all services, labor, materials, and equipment necessary for protecting and securing the Work, all school occupants, furnishings, equipment, and building structure from damage until its completion and final acceptance by District. Dust barriers shall be provided to isolate dust and dirt from construction operations. At completion of the Work and portions thereof, Contractor shall clean to the original state any areas beyond the Work area that become dust laden as a result of the Work. The Contractor must erect the necessary warning signs and barricades to ensure the safety of all school occupants. The Contractor at all times must maintain good housekeeping practices to reduce the risk of fire damage and must make a fire extinguisher, fire blanket, and/or fire watch, as applicable, available at each location where cutting, braising, soldering, and/or welding is being performed or where there is an increased risk of fire.
- **6.16.2.** Contractor at all times shall keep Premises, including property immediately adjacent thereto, free from debris such as waste, rubbish (including personal rubbish of workers, e.g., food wrappers, etc.), and excess materials and equipment caused by the Work. Contractor shall not leave debris under, in, or about the Premises (or surrounding property or neighborhood) but shall promptly remove same from the Premises on a daily basis. If Contractor fails to clean up, District may do so, and the cost thereof shall be charged to Contractor. If Contract is for work on an existing facility, Contractor shall also perform specific clean-up on or about the Premises upon request by the District as it deems necessary for the continuing education process. Contractor shall comply with all related provisions of the Specifications.
- **6.16.3.** If the Construction Manager, Architect, or District observes the accumulation of trash and debris, the District will give the Contractor a 24-hour written notice to mitigate the condition.
- **6.16.4.** Should the Contractor fail to perform the required clean-up, or should the clean-up be deemed unsatisfactory by the District, the District will then perform the clean-up. All cost associated with the clean-up work (including all travel, payroll burden, and costs for supervision) will be deducted from the Contract Price, or District may withhold those amounts from payment(s) to Contractor.

#### 7. SUBCONTRACTORS

- 7.1 Contractor shall provide the District with information for all Subcontracts as indicated in the Contractor's Submittals and Schedules Section herein.
- **7.2** No contractual relationship exists between the District and any Subcontractor, supplier, or sub-subcontractor by reason of this Contract.
- **7.3** Contractor agrees to bind every Subcontractor by terms of this Contract as far as those terms are applicable to Subcontractor's work including, without limitation, all labor, wage & hour, apprentice and related provisions and requirements. If Contractor shall subcontract any part of this Contract, Contractor shall be as fully responsible to District for acts and omissions of any Subcontractor and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by any Subcontractor, as it is for acts and omissions of persons directly employed by Contractor. The divisions or sections of the Specifications and/or the arrangement of the drawings are not intended to control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or limit the work performed by any trade.
- **7.4** District's consent to, or approval of, or failure to object to, any Subcontractor under this Contract shall not in any way relieve Contractor of any obligations under this Contract and no such consent shall be deemed to waive any provisions of this Contract.

- **7.5** Contractor is directed to familiarize itself with sections 4100 through 4114 of the Public Contract Code of the State of California, as regards subletting and subcontracting, and to comply with all applicable requirements therein. In addition, Contractor is directed to familiarize itself with sections 1720 through 1861 of the Labor Code of the State of California, as regards the payment of prevailing wages and related issues, and to comply with all applicable requirements therein including, without limitation, section 1775 and the Contractor's and Subcontractors' obligations and liability for violations of prevailing wage law and other applicable laws.
- **7.6** No Contractor whose Bid is accepted shall, without consent of the awarding authority and in full compliance with section 4100, et seq., of the Public Contract Code, including, without limitation, sections 4107, 4107.5, and 4109 of the Public Contract Code, and section 1771.1 of the Labor Code, either:
  - **7.6.1** Substitute any person as a Subcontractor in place of the Subcontractor designated in the original Bid; or
  - **7.6.2** Permit any Subcontract to be assigned or transferred, or allow any portion of the Work to be performed by anyone other than the original Subcontractor listed in the Bid; or
  - **7.6.3** Sublet or subcontract any portion of the Work in excess of one-half of one percent (0.5%) of the Contractor's total bid as to which his original bid did not designate a Subcontractor.
- **7.7** The Contractor shall be responsible for the coordination of the trades, Subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers working on the Project.
  - 7.7.1. If the contract is valued at \$1 million or more and uses or plans to use state bond funds, then Contractor is responsible for ensuring that first tier Subcontractors holding C-4, C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43, and/or C-46 licenses are prequalified by the District to work on the Project pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111.6.
  - **7.7.2.** Contractor is responsible for ensuring that all Subcontractors are properly registered as public works contractors by the Department of Industrial Relations.
- **7.8** Contractor is solely responsible for settling any differences between the Contractor and its Subcontractor(s) or between Subcontractors.
- **7.9** Contractor must include in all of its subcontracts the assignment provisions as indicated in the Termination section of these General Conditions.

#### 8 OTHER CONTRACTS/CONTRACTORS

- **8.1** District reserves the right to let other contracts, and/or to perform work with its own forces, in connection with the Project. Contractor shall afford other contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and storage of their materials and execution of their work and shall properly coordinate and connect Contractor's Work with the work of other contractors.
- **8.2** In addition to Contractor's obligation to protect its own Work, Contractor shall protect the work of any other contractor that Contractor encounters while working on the Project.
- **8.3** If any part of Contractor's Work depends for proper execution or results upon work of District or any other contractor, the Contractor shall inspect and, before proceeding with its Work, promptly report to the District in writing any defects in District's or any other contractor's work that render Contractor's Work unsuitable for proper execution and results. Contractor shall be held accountable for damages to District for District's or any other contractor's work that Contractor failed to inspect or should have inspected. Contractor's failure to inspect and report shall constitute Contractor's acceptance of all District's or any other contractor's work as fit and proper for reception of Contractor's Work, except as to defects that may develop in District's or any other contractor's work after execution of Contractor's Work and not caused by execution of Contractor's Work.
- **8.4** To ensure proper execution of its subsequent work, Contractor shall measure and inspect work already in place and shall at once report to the District in writing any discrepancy between that executed work and the Contract Documents.

- **8.5** Contractor shall ascertain to its own satisfaction the scope of the Project and nature of District's or any other contracts that have been or may be awarded by District in prosecution of the Project to the end that Contractor may perform this Contract in light of the other contracts, if any.
- **8.6** Nothing herein contained shall be interpreted as granting to Contractor exclusive occupancy of the Site, the Premises, or of the Project. Contractor shall not cause any unnecessary hindrance or delay to the use and/or school operation(s) of the Premises and/or to District or any other contractor working on the Project. If simultaneous execution of any contract or school operation is likely to cause interference with performance of Contractor's Contract, Contractor shall coordinate with those contractor(s), person(s), and/or entity(s) and shall notify the District of the resolution.

#### 9 DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

- **9.1** A complete list of all Drawings that form a part of the Contract is to be found as an index on the Drawings themselves, and/or may be provided to the Contractor and/or in the Table of Contents.
- **9.2** Materials or Work described in words that so applied have a well-known technical or trade meaning shall be deemed to refer to recognized standards, unless noted otherwise.
- **9.3 Trade Name or Trade Term**. It is not the intention of this Contract to go into detailed descriptions of any materials and/or methods commonly known to the trade under "trade name" or "trade term." The mere mention or notation of "trade name" or "trade term" shall be considered a sufficient notice to Contractor that it will be required to complete the work so named, complete, finished, and operable, with all its appurtenances, according to the best practices of the trade.
- **9.4** The naming of any material and/or equipment shall mean furnishing and installing of same, including all incidental and accessory items thereto and/or labor therefor, as per best practices of the trade(s) involved, unless specifically noted otherwise.
- **9.5** Contract Documents are complementary, and what is called for by one shall be binding as if called for by all. As such, Drawings and Specifications are intended to be fully cooperative and to agree. However, if Contractor observes that Drawings and Specifications are in conflict with the Contract Documents, Contractor shall promptly notify District and Architect in writing, and any necessary changes shall be made as provided in the Contract Documents.
- **9.6** In the case of discrepancy or ambiguity in the Contract Documents, the order of precedence in the Agreement shall prevail. However, in the case of discrepancy or ambiguity solely between and among the Drawings and Specifications, the discrepancy or ambiguity shall be resolved in favor of the interpretation that will provide District with the functionally complete and operable Project described in the Drawings and Specifications. In case of ambiguity, conflict, or lack of information, District will furnish clarifications with reasonable promptness.
- **9.7** Drawings and Specifications are intended to comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations of constituted authorities having jurisdiction, and where referred to in the Contract Documents, the laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations shall be considered as a part of the Contract within the limits specified. Contractor shall bear all expense of correcting work done contrary to said laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations.
- **9.8** As required by Section 4-317c, Part 1, Title 24, CCR: "Should any existing conditions such as deterioration or non-complying construction be discovered which is not covered by the DSA-approved documents wherein the finished work will not comply with Title 24, California Code of Regulations, a construction change document, or a separate set of plans and specifications, detailing and specifying the required repair work shall be submitted to and approved by DSA before proceeding with the repair work."

# 9.9 Ownership of Drawings

All copies of Plans, Drawings, Designs, Specifications, and copies of other incidental architectural and engineering work, or copies of other Contract Documents furnished by District, are the property of District. They are not to be used by Contractor in other work and, with the exception of signed sets of Contract Documents, are to be returned to District on request at completion of Work or may be used by District as it may require without any additional costs to District. Neither the Contractor nor any Subcontractor, or material or equipment supplier shall own or claim a copyright in the Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by the Architect. District hereby grants the Contractor, Subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers a limited license to use applicable portions of the Drawings prepared for the Project in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents.

#### 10 CONTRACTOR'S SUBMITTALS AND SCHEDULES

Contractor's submittals shall comply with the provisions and requirements of the Specifications including, without limitation Submittals.

# 10.1 <u>Schedule of Work, Schedule of Submittals, and Schedule of Values</u>

- **10.1.1** Within <u>TEN (10)</u> calendar days after the date of the Notice to Proceed (unless otherwise specified in the Specifications), the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the District for review, in a form supported by sufficient data to substantiate its accuracy as the District may require:
- **10.1.1.1** Preliminary Schedule. A preliminary schedule of construction indicating the starting and completion dates of the various stages of the Work, including any information and following any form as may be specified in the Specifications. Once approved by District, this shall become the Construction Schedule. This schedule shall include and identify all tasks that are on the Project's critical path with a specific determination of the start and completion of each critical path task as well as all Contract milestones and each milestone's completion date(s) as may be required by the District.
- **10.1.1.2** Preliminary Schedule of Values. A preliminary schedule of values for all of the Work, which must include quantities and prices of items aggregating the Contract Price and must subdivide the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during construction. Unless the Special Conditions contain different limits, this preliminary schedule of values shall include, at a minimum, the following information and the following structure:
  - **10.1.1.2.1** Divided into at least the following categories:

```
10.1.1.2.1.1
                     Overhead and profit;
10.1.1.2.1.2
                     Supervision;
10.1.1.2.1.3
                     General conditions;
10.1.1.2.1.4
                     Layout:
10.1.1.2.1.5
                     Mobilization;
10.1.1.2.1.6
                     Submittals;
10.1.1.2.1.7
                     Bonds and insurance:
10.1.1.2.1.8
                     Close-out/Certification documentation:
10.1.1.2.1.9
                     Demolition:
10.1.1.2.1.10
                     Installation:
10.1.1.2.1.11
                     Rough-in:
10.1.1.2.1.12
                     Finishes:
10.1.1.2.1.13
                     Testing;
10.1.1.2.1.14
                     Punchlist and acceptance.
```

# **10.1.1.2.2** And also divided by each of the following areas:

```
10.1.1.2.2.1. Site work; 
10.1.1.2.2.2. By each building; 
10.1.1.2.2.3. By each floor
```

- **10.1.1.2.3** The preliminary schedule of values shall not provide for values any greater than the following percentages of the Contract value:
  - **10.1.1.2.3.1** Mobilization and layout combined to equal not more than 1%;
  - 10.1.1.2.3.2 Submittals, samples and shop drawings combined to equal not more than 3%;
  - **10.1.1.2.3.3** Bonds and insurance combined to equal not more than 2%.
- **10.1.1.2.4** Closeout documentation shall have a value in the preliminary schedule of not less than 5%.

- **10.1.1.2.5** Notwithstanding any provision of the Contract Documents to the contrary, payment of the Contractor's overhead, supervision, general conditions costs, and profit, as reflected in the Cost Breakdown, shall be paid based on percentage complete, with the disbursement of Progress Payments and the Final Payment.
- **10.1.1.2.6** Contractor shall certify that the preliminary schedule of values as submitted to the District is accurate and reflects the costs as developed in preparing Contractor's bid. The preliminary schedule of values shall be subject to the District's review and approval of the form and content thereof. In the event that the District objects to any portion of the preliminary schedule of values, the District shall notify the Contractor, in writing, of the District's objection(s) to the preliminary schedule of values. Within five (5) calendar days of the date of the District's written objection(s), Contractor shall submit a revised preliminary schedule of values to the District for review and approval. The foregoing procedure for the preparation, review and approval of the preliminary schedule of values shall continue until the District has approved the entirety of the preliminary schedule of values.
- **10.1.1.2.7** Once the preliminary schedule of values is approved by the District, this shall become the Schedule of Values. The Schedule of Values shall not be thereafter modified or amended by the Contractor without the prior consent and approval of the District, which may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion of the District.
- **10.1.1.3** Preliminary Schedule of Submittals. A preliminary schedule of submittals, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples submittals. Once approved by District, this shall become the Submittal Schedule. All submittals shall be forwarded to the District by the date indicated on the approved Submittal Schedule, unless an earlier date is necessary to maintain the Construction Schedule, in which case those submittals shall be forwarded to the District so as not to delay the Construction Schedule. Upon request by the District, Contractor shall provide an electronic copy of all submittals to the District. All submittals shall be submitted no later than 90 days after the Notice to Proceed.
- **10.1.1.4** <u>Safety Plan.</u> Contractor's Safety Plan specifically adapted for the Project. Contractor's Safety Plan shall comply with the following requirements:
  - **10.1.1.4.1** All applicable requirements of California Division of Occupational Safety and Health ("CalOSHA") and/or of the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("OSHA").
  - **10.1.1.4.2** All provisions regarding Project safety, including all applicable provisions in these General Conditions.
  - **10.1.1.4.3** Contractor's Safety Plan shall be in English and in the language(s) of the Contractor's and its Subcontractors' employees.
- **10.1.1.5** <u>Complete Registered Subcontractor List.</u> The name, address, telephone number, facsimile number, California State Contractors License number, classification, DIR registration number and monetary value of all Subcontracts of any tier for parties furnishing labor, material, or equipment for completion of the Project.
  - **10.1.2**Contractor must provide all schedules both in hard copy and electronically, in a format (e.g., Microsoft Project or Primavera) approved in advance by the District.
  - **10.1.3** The District will review the schedules submitted and the Contractor shall make changes and corrections in the schedules as requested by the District and resubmit the schedules until approved by the District.
  - **10.1.4**The District shall have the right at any time to revise the schedule of values if, in the District's sole opinion, the schedule of values does not accurately reflect the value of the Work performed.
  - **10.1.5** All submittals and schedules must be approved by the District before Contractor can rely on them as a basis for payment.

### 10.2 Monthly Progress Schedule(s)

**10.2.1** Contractor shall provide Monthly Progress Schedule(s) to the District. A Monthly Progress Schedule shall update the approved Construction Schedule or the last Monthly

Progress Schedule, showing all work completed and to be completed as well as updating the Registered Subcontractors List. The monthly Progress Schedule shall be sent within the timeframe requested by the District and shall be in a format acceptable to the District and contain a written narrative of the progress of work that month and any changes, delays, or events that may affect the work. The process for District approval of the Monthly Progress Schedule shall be the same as the process for approval of the Construction Schedule.

- **10.2.2**Contractor shall also submit Monthly Progress Schedule(s) with all payment applications.
- **10.2.3** Contractor must provide all schedules both in hard copy and electronically, in a format (e.g., Microsoft Project or Primavera) approved in advance by the District.
- **10.2.4**The District will review the schedules submitted and the Contractor shall make changes and corrections in the schedules as requested by the District and resubmit the schedules until approved by the District.
- **10.2.5** The District shall have the right at any time to revise the schedule of values if, in the District's sole opinion, the schedule of values does not accurately reflect the value of the Work performed.
- **10.2.6** All submittals and schedules must be approved by the District before Contractor can rely on them as a basis for payment.

## 10.3 Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)

Contractor is required to ensure Material Safety Data Sheets are available in a readily accessible place at the Work Site for any material requiring a Material Safety Data Sheet per the federal "Hazard Communication" standard, or employees' "right to know" law. The Contractor is also required to ensure proper labeling on substances brought onto the job site and that any person working with the material or within the general area of the material is informed of the hazards of the substance and follows proper handling and protection procedures. Two additional copies of the Material Safety Data Sheets shall also be submitted directly to the District.

#### 11 SITE ACCESS, CONDITIONS, AND REQUIREMENTS

### 11.1 Site Investigation

Before bidding on this Work, Contractor shall make a careful investigation of the Site and thoroughly familiarize itself with the requirements of the Contract. By the act of submitting a bid for the Work included in this Contract, Contractor shall be deemed to have made a complete study and investigation, and to be familiar with and accepted the existing conditions of the Site.

Prior to commencing the Work, Contractor and the District's representative shall survey the Site to document the condition of the Site. Contractor will record the survey in digital videotape format and provide an electronic copy to the District within fourteen (14) days of the survey. This electronic record shall serve as a basis for determining any damages caused by the Contractor during the Project. The Contractor may also document any pre-existing conditions in writing, provided that both the Contractor and the District's representative agree on said conditions and sign a memorandum documenting the same.

## 11.2 <u>Soils Investigation Report</u>

**11.2.1** When a soils investigation report obtained from test holes at Site or for the Project is available, that report may be available to the Contractor but shall not be a part of this Contract and shall not alleviate or excuse the Contractor's obligation to perform its own investigation. Any information obtained from that report or any information given on Drawings as to subsurface soil condition or to elevations of existing grades or elevations of underlying rock is approximate only, is not guaranteed, does not form a part of this Contract, and Contractor may not rely thereon. By submitting its bid, Contractor acknowledges that it has made visual

examination of Site and has made whatever tests Contractor deems appropriate to determine underground condition of soil.

**11.2.2**Contractor agrees that no claim against District will be made by Contractor for damages and hereby waives any rights to damages if, during progress of Work, Contractor encounters subsurface or latent conditions at Site materially differing from those shown on Drawings or indicated in Specifications, or for unknown conditions of an unusual nature that differ materially from those ordinarily encountered in the work of the character provided for in Plans and Specifications, except as indicated in the provisions of these General Conditions regarding trenches, trenching, and/or existing utility lines.

### 11.3 Access to Work

District and its representatives shall at all times have access to Work wherever it is in preparation or progress, including storage and fabrication. Contractor shall provide safe and proper facilities for such access so that District's representatives may perform their functions.

#### 11.4 Layout and Field Engineering

- **11.4.1** All field engineering required for layout of this Work and establishing grades for earthwork operations shall be furnished by Contractor at its expense. This Work shall be done by a qualified, California-registered civil engineer approved in writing by District and Architect. Any required Record and/or As-Built Drawings of Site development shall be prepared by the approved civil engineer.
- **11.4.2**The Contractor shall be responsible for having ascertained pertinent local conditions such as location, accessibility, and general character of the Site and for having satisfied itself as to the conditions under which the Work is to be performed. Contractor shall follow best practices, including but not limited to pot holing to avoid utilities. District shall not be liable for any claim for allowances because of Contractor's error, failure to follow best practices, or negligence in acquainting itself with the conditions at the Site.
- **11.4.3** Contractor shall protect and preserve established benchmarks and monuments and shall make no changes in locations without the prior written approval of District. Contractor shall replace any benchmarks or monuments that are lost or destroyed subsequent to proper notification of District and with District's approval.

### 11.5 Utilities

**11.5.1** Utilities shall be provided as indicated in the Specifications.

## 11.6 <u>Sanitary Facilities</u>

**11.5.2** Sanitary facilities shall be provided as indicated in the Specifications.

### 11.7 Surveys

Contractor shall provide surveys done by a California-licensed civil engineer surveyor to determine locations of construction, grading, and site work as required to perform the Work.

## 11.8 <u>Regional Notification Center</u>

The Contractor, except in an emergency, shall contact the appropriate regional notification center at least two (2) days prior to commencing any excavation if the excavation will be conducted in an area or in a private easement that is known, or reasonably should be known, to contain subsurface installations other than the underground facilities owned or operated by the District, and obtain an inquiry identification number from that notification center. No excavation shall be commenced and/or carried out by the Contractor unless an inquiry identification number has been assigned to the Contractor or any Subcontractor and the Contractor has given the District the identification number. Any damages arising from Contractor's failure to make appropriate notification shall be at the sole risk and expense of the Contractor. Any delays caused by failure to make appropriate notification shall be at the sole risk of the Contractor and shall not be considered for an extension of the Contract time.

### 11.9 Existing Utility Lines

- 11.9.1 Pursuant to Government Code section 4215, District assumes the responsibility for removal, relocation, and protection of main or trunk utility lines and facilities located on the construction Site at the time of commencement of construction under this Contract with respect to any such utility facilities that are not identified in the Plans and Specifications. Contractor shall not be assessed for liquidated damages for delay in completion of the Project caused by failure of District or the owner of a utility to provide for removal or relocation of such utility facilities.
- **11.9.2**Locations of existing utilities provided by District shall not be considered exact, but approximate within reasonable margin and shall not relieve Contractor of responsibilities to exercise reasonable care nor costs of repair due to Contractor's failure to do so. District shall compensate Contractor for the costs of locating, repairing damage not due to the failure of Contractor to exercise reasonable care, and removing or relocating such utility facilities not indicated in the Plans and Specifications with reasonable accuracy, and for equipment necessarily idle during such work.
- 11.9.3 No provision herein shall be construed to preclude assessment against Contractor for any other delays in completion of the Work. Nothing in this Article shall be deemed to require District to indicate the presence of existing service laterals, appurtenances, or other utility lines, within the exception of main or trunk utility lines or whenever the presence of these utilities on the Site of the construction Project can be inferred from the presence of other visible facilities, such as buildings, meter junction boxes, on or adjacent to the Site of the construction.
- **11.9.4** If Contractor, while performing Work under this Contract, discovers utility facilities not identified by District in Contract Plans and Specifications, Contractor shall immediately notify the District and the utility in writing. The cost of repair for damage to above-mentioned visible facilities without prior written notification to the District shall be borne by the Contractor.

### 11.10 Notification

Contractor understands, acknowledges and agrees that the purpose for prompt notification to the District pursuant to these provisions is to allow the District to investigate the condition(s) so that the District shall have the opportunity to decide how the District desires to proceed as a result of the condition(s). Accordingly, failure of Contractor to promptly notify the District in writing, pursuant to these provisions, shall constitute Contractor's waiver of any claim for damages or delay incurred as a result of the condition(s).

#### 11.11 Hazardous Materials

Contractor shall comply with all provisions and requirements of the Contract Documents related to hazardous materials including, without limitation, Hazardous Materials Procedures and Requirements.

### **11.12** No Signs

Neither the Contractor nor any other person or entity shall display any signs not required by law or the Contract Documents at the Site, fences, trailers, offices, or elsewhere on the Site without specific prior written approval of the District.

#### 12 TRENCHES

#### 12.1 <u>Trenches Greater Than Five Feet</u>

Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, if the Contract Price exceeds \$25,000 and involves the excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in depth, the Contractor shall, in advance of excavation, promptly submit to the District and/or a registered civil or structural engineer employed by the District or Architect, a detailed plan, stamped by a licensed engineer retained by the Contractor, showing the design of shoring for protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches.

## 12.2 <u>Excavation Safety</u>

If such plan varies from the Shoring System Standards established by the Construction Safety Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer, but in no case shall such plan be less effective than that required by the Construction Safety Orders. No excavation of such trench or trenches shall be commenced until said plan has been accepted by the District or by the person to whom authority to accept has been delegated by the District.

### 12.3 No Tort Liability of District

Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, nothing in this Article shall impose tort liability upon the District or any of its employees.

## 12.4 No Excavation Without Permits

The Contractor shall not commence any excavation Work until it has secured all necessary permits including the required CalOSHA excavation/shoring permit. Any permits shall be prominently displayed on the Site prior to the commencement of any excavation.

### 12.5 Discovery of Hazardous Waste and/or Unusual Conditions

- **12.5.1.**Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7104, if the Work involves digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than four feet below the Surface, the Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, notify the District, in writing, of any:
  - **12.5.1.1.** Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as defined in section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law.
  - **12.5.1.2.** Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the Site differing from those indicated.
  - **12.5.1.3.**Unknown physical conditions at the Site of any unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract.
- **12.5.2.**The District shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part of the Work, shall issue a Change Order under the procedures described herein.
- **12.5.3.**In the event that a dispute arises between District and the Contractor whether the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, the Contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided for by the Contract, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under the Contract. The Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by Contract or by law that pertain to the resolution of disputes and protests.

## 13. INSURANCE AND BONDS

### 13.1. Insurance

Unless different provisions and/or limits are indicated in the Special Conditions, all insurance required of Contractor and/or its Subcontractor(s) shall be in the amounts and include the provisions set forth herein.

## 13.1.1. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance

13.1.1.1. Contractor shall procure and maintain, during the life of this Contract, Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability Insurance that shall protect Contractor, District, State, Construction Manager(s), Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) from all claims for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, death, advertising injury, and medical payments arising from operations under this Contract. This coverage shall be provided in a form at least as broad as Insurance Services (ISO) Form CG 0001 11188. Contractor shall ensure that Products Liability and Completed Operations coverage, Fire Damage Liability, and Any Auto including owned, non-owned, and hired, are included within the above policies and at the required limits, or Contractor shall procure and maintain these coverages separately.

- **13.1.1.2.** Contractor's deductible or self-insured retention for its Commercial General Liability Insurance policy shall not exceed \$25,000 unless approved in writing by District.
- **13.1.1.3.** All such policies shall be written on an occurrence form.

#### 13.1.2. Excess Liability Insurance

- **13.1.2.1.** Contractor may procure and maintain, during the life of this Contract, an Excess Liability Insurance Policy to meet the policy limit requirements of the required policies if Contractor's underlying policy limits are less than required.
- 13.1.2.2. There shall be no gap between the per occurrence amount of any underlying policy and the start of the coverage under the Excess Liability Insurance Policy. Any Excess Liability Insurance Policy shall be written on a following form and shall protect Contractor, District, State, Construction Manager(s), Project Manager(s), and Architect(s) in amounts and including the provisions as set forth in the Supplementary Conditions (if any) and/or Special Conditions, and that complies with all requirements for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability and Employers' Liability Insurance.
- **13.1.2.3.** The District, in its sole discretion, may accept the Excess Liability Insurance Policy that bring Contractor's primary limits to the minimum requirements herein.
- 13.1.3. <u>Subcontractor(s)</u>: Contractor shall require its Subcontractor(s), if any, to procure and maintain Commercial General Liability Insurance, Automobile Liability Insurance, and Excess Liability Insurance (if Subcontractor elects to satisfy, in part the insurance required herein by procuring and maintaining an Excess Liability Insurance Policy) with forms of coverage and limits equal to the amounts required of the Contractor.

## 13.1.4. Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance

- **13.1.4.1.** In accordance with provisions of section 3700 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor and every Subcontractor shall be required to secure the payment of compensation to its employees.
- 13.1.4.2. Contractor shall procure and maintain, during the life of this Contract, Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers' Liability Insurance for all of its employees engaged in work under this Contract, on/or at the Site of the Project. This coverage shall cover, at a minimum, medical and surgical treatment, disability benefits, rehabilitation therapy, and survivors' death benefits. Contractor shall require its Subcontractor(s), if any, to procure and maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers' Liability Insurance for all employees of Subcontractor(s). Any class of employee or employees not covered by a Subcontractor's insurance shall be covered by Contractor's insurance. If any class of employee or employee engaged in Work under this Contract, on or at the Site of the Project, is not protected under the Workers' Compensation Insurance, Contractor shall provide, or shall cause a Subcontractor to provide, adequate insurance coverage for the protection of any employee(s) not otherwise protected before any of those employee(s) commence work.

### 13.1.5. Builder's Risk Insurance: Builder's Risk "All Risk" Insurance

Contractor shall procure and maintain, during the life of this Contract, Builder's Risk (Course of Construction), or similar first party property coverage acceptable to the District, issued on a replacement cost value basis. The cost shall be consistent with the total replacement cost of all insurable Work of the Project included within the Contract Documents. Coverage is to insure against all risks of accidental physical loss and shall include without limitation the perils of vandalism and/or malicious mischief (both without any limitation regarding vacancy or occupancy), sprinkler leakage, civil authority, theft, sonic disturbance, earthquake, flood, collapse, wind, rain, dust, fire, war, terrorism, lightning, smoke, and rioting. Coverage shall include debris removal, demolition, increased costs due to enforcement of all applicable ordinances and/or laws in the repair and replacement of damaged and undamaged portions of the property, and reasonable costs for the Architect's and engineering services and expenses required as a result of any insured loss upon the Work and Project, including completed Work and Work in progress, to the full insurable value thereof.

### 13.1.6. Pollution Liability Insurance

- 13.1.6.1. Contractor shall procure and maintain Pollution Liability Insurance that shall protect Contractor, District, State, Construction Manager(s), Project Inspector(s), and Architect(s) from all claims for bodily injury, property damage, including natural resource damage, cleanup costs, removal, storage, disposal, and/or use of the pollutant arising from operations under this Contract, and defense, including costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, defense, or settlement of claims. Coverage shall apply to sudden and/or gradual pollution conditions resulting from the escape or release of smoke, vapors, fumes, acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, liquids, or gases, natural gas, waste materials, or other irritants, contaminants, or pollutants, including asbestos. This coverage shall be provided in a form at least as broad as Insurance Services Offices, Inc. (ISO) Form CG 2415, or Contractor shall procure and maintain these coverages separately.
- **13.1.6.2.**Contractor shall warrant that any retroactive date applicable to coverage under the policy predates the effective date of the Contract and that continuous coverage will be maintained or an extended reporting or discovery period will be exercised for a period of three (3) years, beginning from the time that the Work under the Contract is completed.
- **13.1.6.3.**If Contractor is responsible for removing any pollutants from a site, then Contractor shall ensure that Any Auto, including owned, non-owned, and hired, is included within the above policies and at the required limits, to cover its automobile exposure from transporting the pollutants from the site to an approved disposal site. This coverage shall include the Motor Carrier Act Endorsement, MCS 90.

## 13.1.7. Proof of Insurance and Other Requirements: Endorsements and Certificates

- 13.1.7.1. Contractor shall not commence Work nor shall it allow any Subcontractor to commence Work under this Contract, until Contractor and its Subcontractor(s) have procured all required insurance and Contractor has delivered in duplicate to the District complete endorsements (or entire insurance policies) and certificates indicating the required coverages have been obtained, and the District has approved these documents.
- **13.1.7.2.** Endorsements, certificates, and insurance policies shall include the following:

## **13.1.7.2.1.** A clause stating:

"This policy shall not be canceled, and the coverage amounts shall not be reduced until written notice has been mailed to District, Architect, and Construction Manager stating date of the cancellation by the insurance carrier. Date of cancellation may not be less than thirty (30) days after date of mailing notice."

- **13.1.7.2.2.**Language stating in particular those insured, extent of insurance, location and operation to which insurance applies, expiration date, to whom cancellation and reduction notice will be sent, and length of notice period.
- **13.1.7.2.3.** All endorsements, certificates and insurance policies shall state that District, its trustees, employees and agents, the State of California, Construction Manager(s), Project Manager(s), Inspector(s) and Architect(s) are names additional insureds under all policies except Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers' Liability Insurance.
- 13.1.7.3. No policy shall be amended, canceled or modified, and the coverage amounts shall not be reduced, until Contractor or Contractor's broker has provided written notice to District, Architect, and Construction Manager stating date of the Amendment, modification, cancellation or reduction, and a description of the change. Date of amendment, modification, cancellation or reduction may not be less than thirty (30) days after date of mailing notice.
- 13.1.7.4. Insurance written on a "claims made" basis shall be retroactive to a date that coincides with or precedes Contractor's commencement of Work, including subsequent policies purchased as renewals or replacements. Said policy is to be renewed by the Contractor and all Subcontractors for a period of five (5) years following completion of the Work or termination of this Agreement. Such insurance must have the same coverage and limits as the policy that was in effect during the term of this Agreement and will cover the Contractor and all Subcontractors for all claims made.
- **13.1.7.5.** Contractor's and Subcontractors' insurance policy(s) shall be primary and non-contributory to any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District, its trustees, employees and/or agents, the State of California, Construction Manager(s), Project Manager(s), Inspector(s), and/or Architect(s).

- **13.1.7.6.** All endorsements shall waive any right to subrogation against any of the named additional insureds.
- **13.1.7.7.** Unless otherwise stated in the Special Conditions, all of Contractor's insurance shall be with insurance companies with an A.M. Best rating of no less than <u>A: VII.</u>
- **13.1.7.8.** The insurance requirements set forth herein shall in no way limit the Contractor's liability arising out of or relating to the performance of the Work or related activities.
- **13.1.7.9.** Failure of Contractor and/or its Subcontractor(s) to comply with the insurance requirements herein shall be deemed a material breach of the Agreement.

#### 13.1.8.Insurance Policy Limits

Unless different limits are indicated in the Special Conditions, the limits of insurance shall not be less than the following amounts:

Commercial General Liability	Product Liability and Completed Operations, Fire Damage Liability - Split Limit	\$1,000,000 per occurrence; \$2,000,000 aggregate
Automobile Liability – Any Auto	Combined Single Limit	\$1,000,000
Workers Compensation		Statutory limits pursuant to State law
Employers' Liability		\$1,000,000
Builder's Risk (Course of Construction)		Issued for the value and scope of Work indicated herein.
Pollution Liability		\$1,000,000 per claim; \$2,000,000 aggregate

## 13.2. Contract Security - Bonds

- 13.2.1. Contractor shall furnish two surety bonds issued by a California admitted surety insurer as follows:
  - **13.2.1.1.**Performance Bond: A bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of Contract Price as security for faithful performance of this Contract.
  - **13.2.1.2.**Payment Bond: A bond in an amount at least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price as security for payment of persons performing labor and/or furnishing materials in connection with this Contract.
- **13.2.2.**Cost of bonds shall be included in the Bid and Contract Price.
- **13.2.3.** All bonds related to this Project shall be in the forms set forth in these Contract Documents and shall comply with all requirements of the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, the bond forms.

## 14.WARRANTY/GUARANTEE/INDEMNITY

#### 14.1. Warranty/Guarantee

- **14.1.1.** The Contractor shall obtain and preserve for the benefit of the District, manufacturer's warranties on materials, fixtures, and equipment incorporated into the Work.
- **14.1.2.**In addition to guarantees required elsewhere, Contractor shall, and hereby does guarantee and warrant all Work furnished on the job against all defects for a period of **ONE (1)** year after the later of the following dates, unless a longer period is provided for in the Contract Documents:

- **14.1.2.1.** The acceptance by the District, or its agent, of the Work, subject to these General Conditions, or
- **14.1.2.2.** The date that commissioning for the Project, if any, was completed.

At the District's sole option, Contractor shall repair or replace any and all of that Work, together with any other Work that may be displaced in so doing, that may prove defective in workmanship and/or materials within a **ONE** (1) year period from date of completion as defined above without expense whatsoever to District. In the event of failure of Contractor and/or Surety to commence and pursue with diligence said replacements or repairs within ten (10) days after being notified in writing, Contractor and Surety hereby acknowledge and agree that District is authorized to proceed to have defects repaired and made good at expense of Contractor and/or Surety who hereby agree to pay costs and charges therefore immediately on demand.

- **14.1.3.**If, in the opinion of District, defective work creates a dangerous condition or requires immediate correction or attention to prevent further loss to District or to prevent interruption of operations of District, District will attempt to give the notice required above. If Contractor or Surety cannot be contacted or neither complies with District's request for correction within a reasonable time as determined by District, District may, notwithstanding the above provision, proceed to make any and all corrections and/or provide attentions the District believes are necessary. The costs of correction or attention shall be charged against Contractor and Surety of the guarantees provided in this Article or elsewhere in this Contract.
- **14.1.4.**The above provisions do not in any way limit the guarantees on any items for which a longer guarantee is specified or on any items for which a manufacturer gives a guarantee for a longer period. Contractor shall furnish to District all appropriate guarantee or warranty certificates as indicated in the Specifications or upon request by District.
- **14.1.5.** Nothing herein shall limit any other rights or remedies available to District.

#### 14.2.Indemnity and Defense

- 14.2.1. To the furthest extent permitted by California law, the Contractor shall indemnify, keep and hold harmless the District, the Architect, and the Construction Manager, their consultants and separate contractors, and their respective board members, officers, representatives, contractors, agents, and employees, in both individual and official capacities ("Indemnitees"), against all suits, claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorney's fees, caused by, arising out of, resulting from, or incidental to, the performance of the Work under this Contract by the Contractor, its Subcontractors, vendors, or suppliers, except to the extent caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of the Indemnitees, and/or defects in design furnished by the Architect, as found by a court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction, in which case the Contractor's indemnification and hold harmless obligation shall be reduced by the proportion of the Indemnitees' and/or Architect's liability, and/or to any extent that would render these provisions void or unenforceable. This agreement and obligation of the Contractor shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any right or obligation of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to any party or person described herein. This indemnification, and hold harmless obligation includes, but is not limited to, any failure or alleged failure by Contractor to comply with any provision of law, any failure or alleged failure to timely and properly fulfill all of its obligations under the Contract Documents in strict accordance with their terms, and without limitation, any failure or alleged failure of Contractor's obligations regarding any stop payment notice actions or liens, including Civil Wage and Penalty Assessments and/or Orders by the California Department of Industrial Relations.
- 14.2.2. Contractor shall also defend, at its own expense, Indemnitees against all suits, claims, allegations, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, caused by, arising out of, resulting from, or incidental to, the performance of the Work under this Contract by the Contractor, its Subcontractors, vendors, or suppliers, except to the extent caused by the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of the Indemnitees, and/or defects in design furnished by the Architect, as found by a court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction, in which case the Contractor's defense obligation shall be reduced by the proportion of the Indemnitees' and/or Architect's liability, and/or to any extent that would render these provisions void or unenforceable. The District shall have the right to accept or reject any legal representation that Contractor proposes to defend the Indemnitees. This obligation of defense is inclusive of fees and costs. If the Indemnitees provide their own defense due to failure to timely respond to tender of defense, rejection of tender of defense, or conflict of interest of proposed counsel, Contractor shall reimburse Indemnitees for any expenditures, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs. This agreement and obligation of the Contractor shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any right or obligation includes, but is not limited to, any failure or alleged failure

by Contractor to comply with any provision of law, any failure or alleged failure to timely and properly fulfill all of its obligations under the Contract Documents in strict accordance with their terms, and without limitation, any failure or alleged failure of Contractor's obligations regarding any stop payment notice actions or liens, including Civil Wage and Penalty Assessments and/or Orders by the California Department of Industrial Relations. The Contractor shall give prompt notice to the District in the event of any injury (including death), loss, or damage included herein. Without limitation of the provisions herein, if the Contractor's agreement to indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees or its agreement to defend Indemnitees as provided herein shall be determined to be void or unenforceable, in whole or in part, it is the intention of the parties that these circumstances shall not otherwise affect the validity or enforceability of the Contractor's agreement to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the rest of the Indemnitees, as provided herein. Further, the Contractor shall be and remain fully liable on its agreements and obligations herein to the full extent permitted by law.

- **14.2.3.** Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9201, the District shall provide timely notification to Contractor of the receipt of any third-party claim relating to this Contract. The District shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs incurred in providing said notification.
- **14.2.4.**In any and all claims against any of the Indemnitees by any employee of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the Contractor's indemnification obligation herein shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or any Subcontractor under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- **14.2.5.** The District may retain so much of the moneys due the Contractor as shall be considered necessary, until disposition of any such suit, claims or actions for damages or until the District, Architect and Construction Manager have received written agreement from the Contractor that they will unconditionally defend the District, Architect and Construction Manager, their officers, agents and employees, and pay any damages due by reason of settlement or judgment.
- **14.2.6.** The defense and indemnification obligations hereunder shall survive the completion of Work, including the warranty/guarantee period, and/or the termination of the Agreement.

### 15.<u>тіме</u>

#### 15.1. Notice to Proceed

- **15.1.1.** District may issue a Notice to Proceed within ninety (90) days from the date of the Notice of Award. Once Contractor has received the Notice to Proceed, Contractor shall complete the Work within the period of time indicated in the Contract Documents.
- **15.1.2.** In the event that the District desires to postpone issuing the Notice to Proceed beyond ninety (90) days from the date of the Notice of Award, it is expressly understood that with reasonable notice to the Contractor, the District may postpone issuing the Notice to Proceed. It is further expressly understood by Contractor that Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim of additional compensation as a result of the postponement of the issuance of the Notice to Proceed.
- **15.1.3.** If the Contractor believes that a postponement of issuance of the Notice to Proceed will cause a hardship to Contractor, Contractor may terminate the Contract. Contractor's termination due to a postponement shall be by written notice to District within ten (10) days after receipt by Contractor of District's notice of postponement. It is further understood by Contractor that in the event that Contractor terminates the Contract as a result of postponement by the District, the District shall only be obligated to pay Contractor for the Work that Contractor had performed at the time of notification of postponement. Should Contractor terminate the Contract as a result of a notice of postponement, District shall have the authority to award the Contract to the next lowest responsive responsible bidder.

#### **15.2.**Computation of Time / Adverse Weather

- **15.2.1.**The Contractor will only be allowed a time extension for Adverse Weather conditions if requested by Contractor in compliance with the time extension request procedures and only if all of the following conditions are met:
  - **15.2.1.1.** The weather conditions constitute Adverse Weather, as defined herein and further specified in the Special Conditions;

- **15.2.1.2.**Contractor can verify that the Adverse Weather caused delays in excess of five hours of the indicated labor required to complete the scheduled tasks of Work on the day affected by the Adverse Weather;
- **15.2.1.3.** The Contractor's crew is dismissed as a result of the Adverse Weather;
- 15.2.1.4. Said delay adversely affects the critical path in the Construction Schedule; and
- **15.2.1.5.**Exceeds twelve (12) days of delay per year.
- **15.2.2.** If the aforementioned conditions are met, a non-compensable day-for-day extension will only be allowed for those days in excess of those indicated in the Special Conditions.
- **15.2.3.** The Contractor shall work seven (7) days per week, if necessary, irrespective of inclement weather, to maintain access and the Construction Schedule, and to protect the Work under construction from the effects of Adverse Weather, all at no further cost to the District.
- **15.2.4.**The Contract Time has been determined with consideration given to the average climate weather conditions prevailing in the County in which the Project is located.

#### 15.3. Hours of Work

### 15.3.1.Sufficient Forces

Contractor and Subcontractors shall continuously furnish sufficient and competent work forces with the required levels of familiarity with the Project and skill, training and experience to ensure the prosecution of the Work in accordance with the Construction Schedule.

### 15.3.2. Performance During Working Hours

Work shall be performed during regular working hours as permitted by the appropriate governmental agency except that in the event of an emergency, or when required to complete the Work in accordance with job progress, Work may be performed outside of regular working hours with the advance written consent of the District and approval of any required governmental agencies.

## 15.3.3 No Work during State Testing

Contractor shall, at no additional cost to the District and at the District's request, coordinate its Work to not disturb District students including, without limitation, not performing any Work when students at the Site are taking State of Federally required tests. The District or District's Representative will provide Contractor with a schedule of test dates concurrent with the District's issuance of the Notice to Proceed, or as soon as test dates are made available to the District.

#### 15.4. Progress and Completion

#### 15.4.1.Time of the Essence

Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence to the Contract. By executing the Agreement, the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.

### 15.4.2.No Commencement Without Insurance or Bonds

The Contractor shall not commence operations on the Project or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance and bonds. The date of commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the effective date of such insurance or bonds. If Contractor commences Work without insurance and bonds, all Work is performed at Contractor's peril and shall not be compensable until and unless Contractor secures bonds and insurance pursuant to the terms of the Contract Documents and subject to District claim for damages.

## 15.5.Schedule

Contractor shall provide to District, Construction Manager, and Architect a schedule in conformance with the Contract Documents and as required in the Notice to Proceed and the Contractor's Submittals and Schedules section of these General Conditions.

## 15.6. Expeditious Completion

The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Completion within the Contract Time.

### 16.EXTENSIONS OF TIME - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

## 16.1. Liquidated Damages

Contractor and District hereby agree that the exact amount of damages for failure to complete the Work within the time specified is extremely difficult or impossible to determine. If the Work is not completed within the time specified in the Contract Documents, it is understood that the District will suffer damage. It being impractical and unfeasible to determine the amount of actual damage, it is agreed the Contractor shall pay to District as fixed and liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, the amount set forth in the Agreement for each calendar day of delay in completion. Contractor and its Surety shall be liable for the amount thereof pursuant to Government Code section 53069.85.

#### 16.2. Excusable Delay

- **16.2.1.**Contractor shall not be charged for liquidated damages because of any delays in completion of Work which are not the fault of Contractor or its Subcontractors, including acts of God as defined in Public Contract Code section 7105, acts of enemy, epidemics, and quarantine restrictions. Contractor shall, within five (5) calendar days of beginning of any delay, notify District in writing of causes of delay including documentation and facts explaining the delay and the direct correlation between the cause and effect. District shall review the facts and extent of any delay and shall grant extension(s) of time for completing Work when, in its judgment, the findings of fact justify an extension. Extension(s) of time shall apply only to that portion of Work affected by delay and shall not apply to other portions of Work not so affected. An extension of time may only be granted if Contractor has timely submitted the Construction Schedule as required herein.
- **16.2.2.**Contractor shall notify the District pursuant to the claims provisions in these General Conditions of any anticipated delay and its cause. Following submission of a claim, the District may determine whether the delay is to be considered avoidable or unavoidable, how long it continues, and to what extent the prosecution and completion of the Work might be delayed thereby.
- **16.2.3.**In the event the Contractor requests an extension of Contract Time for unavoidable delay, such request shall be submitted in accordance with the provisions in the Contract Documents governing changes in Work. When requesting time, requests must be submitted with full justification and documentation. If the Contractor fails to submit justification, it waives its right to a time extension at a later date. Such justification must be based on the official Construction Schedule as updated at the time of occurrence of the delay or execution of Work related to any changes to the Scope of Work. Any claim for delay must include the following information as support, without limitation:
  - **16.2.3.1.** The duration of the activity relating to the changes in the Work and the resources (manpower, equipment, material, etc.) required to perform the activities within the stated duration.
  - **16.2.3.2.** Specific logical ties to the Contract Schedule for the proposed changes and/or delay showing the activity/activities in the Construction Schedule that are affected by the change and/or delay. In particular, Contractor must show an actual impact to the schedule, after making a good faith effort to mitigate the delay by rescheduling the work, by providing an analysis of the schedule ("Schedule Analysis"). Such Schedule

Analysis shall describe in detail the cause and effect of the delay and the impact on the critical dates in the Project schedule. (A portion of any delay of seven (7) days or more must be provided.)

**16.2.3.3.** A recovery schedule must be submitted within twenty (20) calendar days of written notification to the District of causes of delay.

#### 16.3. No Additional Compensation for Delays Within Contractor's Control

- **16.3.1.**Contractor is aware that governmental agencies, including, without limitation, the Division of the State Architect, the Department of General Services, gas companies, electrical utility companies, water districts, and other agencies may have to approve Contractor-prepared drawings or approve a proposed installation. Accordingly, Contractor shall include in its bid, time for possible review of its drawings and for reasonable delays and damages that may be caused by such agencies. Thus, Contractor is not entitled to make a claim for damages or delays arising from the review of Contractor's drawings.
- **16.3.2.**Contractor shall only be entitled to compensation for delay when all of the following conditions are met:
  - **16.3.2.1.** The District is responsible for the delay;
  - **16.3.2.2.** The delay is unreasonable under the circumstances involved;
  - **16.3.2.3.** The delay was not within the contemplation of District and Contractor; and
  - **16.3.2.4.**Contractor complies with the claims procedure of the Contract Documents.

#### 16.4. Float or Slack in the Schedule

Float or slack is the amount of time between the early start date and the late start date, or the early finish date and the late finish date, of any of the activities in the schedule. Float or slack is not for the exclusive use of or benefit of either the District or the Contractor, but its use shall be determined solely by the District.

### 17. CHANGES IN THE WORK

#### 17.1.No Changes Without Authorization

- 17.1.1. There shall be no change whatsoever in the Drawings, Specifications, or in the Work without an executed Change Order or a written Construction Change Directive authorized by the District as herein provided. District shall not be liable for the cost of any extra work or any substitutions, changes, additions, omissions, or deviations from the Drawings and Specifications unless the District's governing board has authorized the same and the cost thereof has been approved in writing by Change Order or Construction Change Directive in advance of the changed Work being performed. No extension of time for performance of the Work shall be allowed hereunder unless claim for such extension is made at the time changes in the Work are ordered, and such time duly adjusted and approved in writing in the Change Order or Construction Change Directive. Contractor shall be responsible for any costs incurred by the District for professional services and DSA fees and/or delay to the Project Schedule, if any, for DSA to review any request for changes to the DSA approved plans and specifications for the convenience of the Contractor and/or to accommodate the Contractor's means and methods. The provisions of the Contract Documents shall apply to all such changes, additions, and omissions with the same effect as if originally embodied in the Drawings and Specifications.
- **17.1.2.**Contractor shall perform immediately all work that has been authorized by a fully executed Change Order or Construction Change Directive. Contractor shall be fully responsible for any and all delays and/or expenses caused by Contractor's failure to expeditiously perform this Work.
- 17.1.3. Should any Change Order result in an increase in the Contract Price or extend the Contract Time, the cost of or length of extension in that Change Order shall be agreed to, in writing, by the District in advance of the Work by Contractor, and shall be subject to the monetary limitations set forth in Public Contract Code section 20118.4. In the event that Contractor proceeds with any change in Work without a Change Order executed by the District or Construction Change Directive, Contractor waives any claim of additional compensation or time for that additional work. Under no circumstances shall Contractor be entitled to any claim of additional compensation or time not expressly requested by Contractor in a Proposed Change Order or approved by District in an executed Change Order.

**17.1.4.**Contractor understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the reason for District authorization is so that District may have an opportunity to analyze the Work and decide whether the District shall proceed with the Change Order or alter the Project so that a change in Work becomes unnecessary.

### 17.2. Architect Authority

The Architect will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving any adjustment in the Contract Price, or an extension of the Contract Time, or a change that is inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. These changes shall be effected by written Change Order, Construction Change Directive, by Architect's response(s) to RFI(s), or by Architect's Supplemental Instructions ("ASI").

### 17.3. Change Orders

- **17.3.1.** A Change Order is a written instrument prepared and issued by the District and/or the Architect and signed by the District (as authorized by the District's Governing Board), the Contractor, the Architect, and approved by the Project Inspector (if necessary) and DSA (if necessary), stating their agreement regarding all of the following:
  - **17.3.1.1.** A description of a change in the Work;
  - 17.3.1.2. The amount of the adjustment in the Contract Price, if any; and
  - **17.3.1.3.** The extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any.

#### 17.4. Construction Change Directives

- 17.4.1. A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared and issued by the District, the Construction Manager, and/or the Architect and signed by the District and the Architect, directing a change in the Work. The District may, as provided by law, by Construction Change Directive and without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions. The adjustment to the Contract Price or Time, if any, is subject to the provisions of this section regarding Changes in the Work. If all or a portion of the Project is being funded by funds requiring approval by the State Allocation Board (SAB), these revisions may be subject to compensation once approval of same is received and funded by the SAB, and funds are released by the Office of Public School Construction (OPSC). Any dispute as to the adjustment in the Contract Price, if any, of the Construction Change Directive or timing of payment shall be resolved pursuant to the Payment and Claims and Disputes provisions herein.
- **17.4.2.**The District may issue a Construction Change Directive in the absence of agreement on the terms of a Change Order.

## 17.5. Force Account Directives

- **17.5.1.** When work, for which a definite price has not been agreed upon in advance, is to be paid for on a force account basis, all direct costs necessarily incurred and paid by the Contractor for labor, material, and equipment used in the performance of that Work, shall be subject to the approval of the District and compensation will be determined as set forth herein.
- **17.5.2.**The District will issue a Force Account Directive to proceed with the Work on a force account basis, and a not-to-exceed budget will be established by the District.
- **17.5.3.** All requirements regarding direct cost for labor, labor burden, material, equipment, and markups on direct costs for overhead and profit described in this section shall apply to Force Account Directives. However, the District will only pay for actual costs verified in the field by the District or its authorized representative(s) on a daily basis.
- **17.5.4.**The Contractor shall be responsible for all cost related to the administration of Force Account Directive. The markup for overheard and profit for Contractor modifications shall be full compensation to the Contractor to administer Force Account Directive, and Contractor shall not be entitled to separately recover additional amounts for overhead and/or profit.

- 17.5.5. The Contractor shall notify the District or its authorized representative(s) at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to proceeding with any of the force account work. Furthermore, the Contractor shall notify the District when it has consumed eighty percent (80%) of the budget and shall not exceed the budget unless specifically authorized in writing by the District. The Contractor will not be compensated for force account work in the event that the Contractor fails to timely notify the District regarding the commencement of force account work or exceeding the force account budget.
- **17.5.6.** The Contractor shall diligently proceed with the work, and on a daily basis, submit a daily force account report on a form supplied by the District no later than 5:00 p.m. each day. The report shall contain a detailed itemization of the daily labor, material, and equipment used on the force account work only. The names of the individuals performing the force account work shall be included on the daily force account reports. The type and model of equipment shall be identified and listed. The District will review the information contained in the reports and sign the reports no later than the next workday and return a copy of the report to the Contractor for their records. The District will not sign, nor will the Contractor receive compensation for work the District cannot verify. The Contractor will provide a weekly force account summary indicating the status of each Force Account Directive in terms of percent complete of the not-to-exceed budget and the estimated percent complete of the work.
- **17.5.7.**In the event the Contractor and the District reach a written agreement on a set cost for the work while the work is proceeding based on a Force Account Directive, the Contractor's signed daily force account reports shall be discontinued, and all previously signed reports shall be invalid.

## 17.6.Price Request

#### 17.6.1. Definition of Price Request

A Price Request ("PR") is a written request prepared by the Architect requesting the Contractor to submit to the District and the Architect an estimate of the effect of a proposed change in the Work on the Contract Price and the Contract Time.

#### 17.6.2. Scope of Price Request

A Price Request shall contain adequate information, including any necessary Drawings and Specifications, to enable Contractor to provide the cost breakdowns required herein. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any additional compensation for preparing a response to a Price Request, whether ultimately accepted or not.

#### 17.7. Proposed Change Order

# 17.7.1. <u>Definition of Proposed Change Order</u>

A Proposed Change Order ("PCO") is a written request prepared by the Contractor requesting that the District and the Architect issue a Change Order based upon a proposed change to the Work.

#### 17.7.2. Changes in Contract Price

A PCO shall include breakdowns and backup documentation pursuant to the revisions herein and sufficient, in the District's judgement, to validate any change in Contract Price. In no case shall Contractor or any of its Subcontractors be permitted to reserve rights for additional compensation for Change Order Work.

#### 17.7.3. Changes in Time

A PCO shall also include any changes in time required to complete the Project. Any additional time requested shall not be the number of days to make the proposed change but must be based upon the impact to the Construction Schedule as defined in the Contract Documents. If Contractor fails to request a time extension in a PCO, then the Contractor is thereafter precluded from requesting, and waives any right to request, additional time and/or claim a delay. In no case shall Contractor or any of its Subcontractors be permitted to reserve rights for additional time for Change Order Work. A PCO that leaves the amount of time requested blank, or states that such time requested is "to be determined", is not permitted and shall also constitute a waiver of any right to request additional time and/or claim a delay.

### 17.7.4. Unknown and/or Unforeseen Conditions

If there is an Allowance, then Contractor must submit a Request for Allowance Expenditure Directive, including supporting documentation as described below, to receive authorization for the release of funds from the Allowance. If cost of the unforeseen condition(s) exceed the Allowance, Contractor must submit a PCO requesting an increase in Contract Price and/or Contract Time that is based at least partially on Contractor's assertion that Contractor has encountered unknown and/or unforeseen condition(s) on the Project, then Contractor shall base the PCO on provable information that, beyond a reasonable doubt and to the District's satisfaction, demonstrates that the unknown and/or unforeseen condition(s) were actually unknown and/or unforeseen and that the condition(s) were reasonably unknown and/or unforeseen. If not, the District shall deny the PCO as unsubstantiated, and the Contractor shall complete the Project without any increase in Contract Price and/or Contract Time based on that PCO.

### 17.7.5 Proposed Change Order Certification

In submitting a PCO, Contractor certifies and affirms that the cost and/or time request is submitted in good faith, that the cost and/or time request is accurate and in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, and the Contractor submits the cost and/or request for extension of time recognizing the significant civil penalties and treble damages which follow from making a false claim or presenting a false claim under Government Code section 12650 et seq.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK.

### 17.8.Format for Proposed Change Order

**17.8.1.** The following format shall be used as applicable by the District and the Contractor (e.g. Change Orders, PCO's) to communicate proposed additions and deductions to the Contract, supported by attached documentation. Any spaces left blank will be deemed no change to cost or time.

	WORK PERFORMED OTHER THAN BY CONTRACTOR	<u>ADD</u>	DEDUCT
(a)	Material (attach supplier's invoice or itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales tax)		
(b)	Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully encumbered)		
(c)	Add Equipment (attach suppliers' invoice)		
(d)	Subtotal		
(e)	Add overhead and profit for any and all tiers of Subcontractor,		
	the total not to exceed ten percent (10%) of item (d)		
(f)	<u>Subtotal</u>		
(g)	Add overhead and profit for Contractor, not to exceed five percent (5%) of Item (f)		
(h)	Subtotal		
(i)	Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed one and a half percent (1.5%) of Item (h)		
(j)	TOTAL		
(k)	Time (zero unless indicated; "TBD" not permitted)		Calendar Days
	WORK PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR	<u>ADD</u>	DEDUCT
(a)	WORK PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR  Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales tax)	<u>ADD</u>	DEDUCT
(a) (b)		ADD .	DEDUCT
	Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales tax)	ADD	DEDUCT
(b)	Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales tax)  Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully encumbered)	ADD	DEDUCT
(b)	Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales tax)  Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully encumbered)  Add Equipment (attach suppliers' invoice)  Subtotal  Add overhead and profit for Contractor, not to exceed fifteen		DEDUCT
(b) (c) (d)	Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales tax)  Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully encumbered)  Add Equipment (attach suppliers' invoice)  Subtotal		DEDUCT
(b) (c) (d) (e)	Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales tax)  Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully encumbered)  Add Equipment (attach suppliers' invoice)  Subtotal  Add overhead and profit for Contractor, not to exceed fifteen percent (15%) of item (d).		DEDUCT
(b) (c) (d) (e)	Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales tax)  Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully encumbered)  Add Equipment (attach suppliers' invoice)  Subtotal  Add overhead and profit for Contractor, not to exceed fifteen percent (15%) of item (d).  Subtotal  Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed one and a half percent		DEDUCT
(b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g)	Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales tax)  Add Labor (attach itemized hours and rates, fully encumbered)  Add Equipment (attach suppliers' invoice)  Subtotal  Add overhead and profit for Contractor, not to exceed fifteen percent (15%) of item (d).  Subtotal  Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed one and a half percent (1.5%) of Item (f)		DEDUCT

17.8.2. Labor. Contractor shall be compensated for the costs of labor actually and directly utilized in the performance of the Work. Such labor costs shall be limited to field labor for which there is a prevailing wage rate classification. Wage rates for labor shall not exceed the prevailing wage rates in the locality of the Site and shall be in the labor classification(s) necessary for the performance of the Work. Labor costs shall exclude costs incurred by the Contractor in preparing estimate(s) of the costs of the change in the Work, in the maintenance of records relating to the costs of the change in the Work, coordination and assembly of materials and information relating to the change in the Work or performance thereof, or the supervision and other overhead and general conditions costs associated with the change in the Work or performance thereof, including but not limited to the cost for the job superintendent.

- 17.8.3. Materials. Contractor shall be compensated for the costs of materials necessarily and actually used or consumed in connection with the performance of the change in the Work. Costs of materials may include reasonable costs of transportation from a source closest to the Site of the Work and delivery to the Site. If discounts by material suppliers are available for materials necessarily used in the performance of the change in the Work, they shall be credited to the District. If materials necessarily used in the performance of the change in the Work are obtained from a supplier or source owned in whole or in part by the Contractor, compensation therefor shall not exceed the current wholesale price for such materials. If, in the reasonable opinion of the District, the costs asserted by the Contractor for materials in connection with any change in the Work are excessive, or if the Contractor fails to provide satisfactory evidence of the actual costs of such materials from its supplier or vendor of the same, the costs of such materials and the District's obligation to pay for the same shall be limited to the then lowest wholesale price at which similar materials are available in the quantities required to perform the change in the Work. The District may elect to furnish materials for the change in the Work, in which event the Contractor shall not be compensated for the costs of furnishing such materials or any mark-up thereon.
- 17.8.4. Equipment. As a precondition to the District's duty to pay for Equipment rental or loading and transportation, Contractor shall provide satisfactory evidence of the actual costs of Equipment from the supplier, vendor or rental agency of same. Contractor shall be compensated for the actual cost of the necessary and direct use of Equipment in the performance of the change in the Work. Use of such Equipment in the performance of the change in the Work shall be compensated in increments of fifteen (15) minutes. Rental time for Equipment moved by its own power shall include time required to move such Equipment to the site of the Work from the nearest available rental source of the same. If Equipment is not moved to the Site by its own power, Contractor will be compensated for the loading and transportation costs in lieu of rental time. The foregoing notwithstanding, neither moving time or loading and transportation time shall be allowed if the Equipment is used for performance of any portion of the Work other than the change in the Work. Unless prior approval in writing is obtained by the Contractor from the Architect, the Project Inspector and the District, no costs or compensation shall be allowed for time while Construction Equipment is inoperative, idle or on standby, for any reason. Contractor shall not be entitled to an allowance or any other compensation for Equipment or tools used in the performance of change in the Work where such Equipment or tools have a replacement value of \$500.00 or less. Equipment costs claimed by the Contractor in connection with the performance of any Work shall not exceed rental rates established by distributors or construction equipment rental agencies in the locality of the Site; any costs asserted which exceed such rental rates shall not be allowed or paid. Unless otherwise specifically approved in writing by the Architect, the Project Inspector and the District, the allowable rate for the use of Equipment in connection with the Work shall constitute full compensation to the Contractor for the cost of rental, fuel, power, oil, lubrication, supplies, necessary attachments, repairs or maintenance of any kind, depreciation, storage, insurance, labor (exclusive of labor costs of the Equipment operator), and any and all other costs incurred by the Contractor incidental to the use of such Equipment.
- **17.8.5.** Overhead and Profit. The phrase "Overhead and Profit" shall include field and office supervisors and assistants, watchperson, use of small tools, consumable, insurance other than construction bonds and insurance required herein, and general field and home office expenses

## 17.9. Change Order Certification

- 17.9.1. All Change Orders and PCOs must include the following certification by the Contractor:
  - 17.9.1.1. The undersigned Contractor approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, to the Contract Price specified for each item, and as to the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire Work as stated herein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials, and service, and perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration stated herein. Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which Contractor knows are false are at the sole risk of Contractor and may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth under Government Code section 12650 et seq. It is understood that the changes herein to the Contract shall only be effective when approved by the governing board of the District.
  - 17.9.1.2. It is expressly understood that the value of the extra Work or changes expressly includes any and all of the Contractor's costs and expenses, direct and indirect, resulting from additional time required on the Project or resulting from delay to the Project. Contractor is not entitled to separately recover amounts for overhead or other indirect costs. Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed waived.

### 17.10. <u>Determination of Change Order Cost</u>

**17.10.1.** The amount of the increase or decrease in the Contract Price from a Change Order, if any, shall be determined in one or more of the following ways as applicable to a specific situation and at the District's discretion:

- 17.10.1.1. District acceptance of a PCO;
- 17.10.1.2. By unit prices contained in Contractor's original bid;
- **17.10.1.3.** By agreement between District and Contractor.

## 17.11. <u>Deductive Change Orders</u>

All deductive Change Order(s) must be prepared pursuant to the provisions herein. Where a portion of the Work is deleted from the Contract, the reasonable value of the deducted work less the value of work performed shall be considered the appropriate deduction. The value submitted on the Schedule of Values shall be used to calculate the credit amount unless the bid documentation is being held in escrow as part of the Contract Documents. Unit Prices, if any, may be used in District's discretion in calculating reasonable value. If Contractor offers a proposed amount for a deductive Change Order(s), Contractor shall include a minimum of five percent (5%) total profit and overhead to be deducted with the amount of the work of the Change Order(s). If Subcontractor work is involved, Subcontractors shall also include a minimum of five percent (5%) profit and overhead to be deducted with the amount of its deducted work. Any deviation from this provision shall not be allowed.

#### 17.12. Addition or Deletion of Alternate Bid Item(s)

If the Bid Form and Proposal includes proposal(s) for Alternate Bid Item(s), during Contractor's performance of the Work, the District may elect to add or delete any such Alternate Bid Item(s) if not included in the Contract at the time of award. If the District elects to add or delete Alternate Bid Item(s) after Contract award, the cost or credit for such Alternate Bid Item(s) shall be as set forth in the Bid Form and Proposal unless the parties agree to a different price and the Contract Time shall be adjusted by the number of days allocated in the Contract Documents. If days are not allocated in the Contract Documents, the Contract Time shall be equitably adjusted.

## 17.13. <u>Discounts</u>, <u>Rebates</u>, and <u>Refunds</u>

For purposes of determining the cost, if any, of any change, addition, or omission to the Work hereunder, all trade discounts, rebates, refunds, and all returns from the sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue and be credited to the Contractor, and the Contractor shall make provisions so that such discounts, rebates, refunds, and returns may be secured, and the amount thereof shall be allowed as a reduction of the Contractor's cost in determining the actual cost of construction for purposes of any change, addition, or omission in the Work as provided herein.

#### 17.14. Accounting Records

With respect to portions of the Work performed by Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, the Contractor shall keep and maintain cost-accounting records satisfactory to the District, including, without limitation, Job Cost Reports as provided in these General Conditions, which shall be available to the District on the same terms as any other books and records the Contractor is required to maintain under the Contract Documents. Such records shall include without limitation hourly records for Labor and Equipment and itemized records of materials and Equipment used that day in connection with the performance of any Work. All records maintained hereunder shall be subject to inspection, review and/or reproduction by the District, the Architect or the Project Inspector upon request. In the event that the Contractor fails or refuses, for any reason, to maintain or make available for inspection, review and/or reproduction such records, the District's reasonable good faith determination of the extent of adjustment to the Contract Price shall be final, conclusive, dispositive and binding upon Contractor.

#### 17.15. Notice Required

If the Contractor desires to make a claim for an increase in the Contract Price, or any extension in the Contract Time for completion, it shall notify the District pursuant to the provisions herein, including the Article on Claims and Disputes. No claim shall be considered unless made in accordance with this subparagraph. Contractor shall proceed to execute the Work even though the adjustment may not have been agreed upon. Any change in the Contract Price or extension of the Contract Time resulting from such claim shall be authorized by a Change Order.

### 17.16. Applicability to Subcontractors

Any requirements under this Article shall be equally applicable to Change Orders or Construction Change Directives issued to Subcontractors by the Contractor to the extent as required by the Contract Documents.

#### 17.17. Alteration to Change Order Language

Contractor shall not alter Change Orders or reserve time in Change Orders. Change Orders altered in violation of this provision, if in conflict with the terms set forth herein, shall be construed in accordance with the terms set forth herein. Contractor shall execute finalized Change Orders and proceed under the provisions herein with proper notice.

## 17.18. Failure of Contractor to Execute Change Order

Contractor shall be in default of the Contract if Contractor fails to execute a Change Order when the Contractor agrees with the addition and/or deletion of the Work in that Change Order.

### 18. REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

- **18.1**. Any Request for Information shall reference all applicable Contract Document(s), including Specification section(s), detail(s), page number(s), drawing number(s), and sheet number(s), etc. The Contractor shall make suggestions and interpretations of the issue raised by each Request for Information. A Request for Information cannot modify the Contract Price, Contract Time, or the Contract Documents. Upon request by the District, Contractor shall provide an electronic copy of the Request for Information in addition to the hard copy.
- **18.2** The Contractor shall be responsible for any costs incurred for professional services that District may deduct from any amounts owing to the Contractor, if a Request for Information requests an interpretation or decision of a matter where the information sought is equally available to the party making the request. District, at its sole discretion, shall deduct from and/or invoice Contractor for all the professional services arising herein.

### 19.PAYMENTS

## 19.1. Contract Price

The Contract Price is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount payable by the District to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

## 19.2. Applications for Progress Payments

## 19.2.1. Procedure for Applications for Progress Payments

### 19.2.1.1. Application for Progress Payment

- **19.2.1.1.1.** Not before the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) day of each calendar month during the progress of the Work, Contractor shall submit to the District and the Architect an itemized Application for Payment for operations completed in accordance with the Schedule of Values. Such application shall be notarized, if required, and supported by the following or each portion thereof unless waived by the District in writing:
  - **19.2.1.1.1.** The amount paid to the date of the Application to the Contractor, to all its Subcontractors, and all others furnishing labor, material, or equipment for its Contract;
  - **19.2.1.1.1.2.** The amount being requested under the Application for Payment by the Contractor on its own behalf and separately stating the amount requested on behalf of each of the Subcontractors and all others furnishing labor, material, and equipment under the Contract:
  - **19.2.1.1.1.3.** The balance that will be due to each of such entities after said payment is made:
  - **19.2.1.1.1.4.** A certification that the As-Built Drawings and annotated Specifications are current:
  - **19.2.1.1.1.5.** Itemized breakdown of work done for the purpose of requesting partial payment;
  - **19.2.1.1.1.6.** An updated and acceptable construction schedule in conformance with the provisions herein;

- **19.2.1.1.1.7.** The additions to and subtractions from the Contract Price and Contract Time:
- **19.2.1.1.1.8.** A total of the retentions held;
- **19.2.1.1.1.9.** Material invoices, evidence of equipment purchases, rentals, and other support and details of cost as the District may require from time to time;
- **19.2.1.1.1.10.** The percentage of completion of the Contractor's Work by line item;
- **19.2.1.1.11.** Schedule of Values updated from the preceding Application for Payment;
- **19.2.1.1.112.** A duly completed and executed conditional waiver and release upon progress payment compliant with Civil Code section 8132 from the Contractor and each subcontractor of any tier and supplier to be paid from the current progress payment;
- **19.2.1.1.13.** A duly completed and executed unconditional waiver and release upon progress payment compliant with Civil Code section 8134 from the Contractor and each subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid from the previous progress payment(s); and
- **19.2.1.1.14.** A certification by the Contractor of the following:
- The Contractor warrants title to all Work performed as of the date of this payment application has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents for the Project. The Contractor further warrants that all amounts have been paid for work which previous Certificates for Payment were issued and payments received and all Work performed as of the date of this payment application is free and clear of liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, workers, or other persons or entities making a claim by reason of having provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to the Work, except those of which the District has been informed. Submission of sums which have no basis in fact or which Contractor knows are false are at the sole risk of Contractor and may be a violation of the False Claims Act set forth under Government Code section 12650 et seq.
  - **19.2.1.1.15.** The Contractor shall be subject to the False Claims Act set forth under Government Code section 12650 et seq. for information provided with any Application for Progress Payment.
  - **19.2.1.1.116.** All remaining certified payroll records ("CPR(s)") for each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by the Contractor and/or each Subcontractor in connection with the Work for the period of the Application for Payment. As indicated herein, the District shall not make any payment to Contractor until:
- **19.2.1.1.16.1** Contractor and/or its Subcontractor(s) provide electronic CPRs weekly for all weeks any journeyman, apprentice, worker or other employee was employed in connection with the Work directly to the DIR within ten (10) days of any request by the District or the DIR, and
  - **19.2.1.1.16.2** Any delay in Contractor and/or its Subcontractor(s) providing CPRs in a timely manner may directly delay the Contractor's payment.
- **19.2.1.1.2 Applications** received after June 20<sup>th</sup> will not be paid until the second week of July and applications received after December 12<sup>th</sup> will not be paid until the first week of January.

#### 19.2.2. Prerequisites for Progress Payments

- **19.2.2.1.** <u>First Payment Request</u>: The following items, if applicable, must be completed before the District will accept and/or process the Contractor's first payment request:
  - **19.2.2.1.1.** Installation of the Project sign:

#### **19.2.2.1.2.** Installation of field office;

- **19.2.2.1.3.** Installation of temporary facilities and fencing;
- **19.2.2.1.4.** Schedule of Values:
- **19.2.2.1.5.** Contractor's Construction Schedule;
- **19.2.2.1.6.** Schedule of unit prices, if applicable;
- **19.2.2.1.7.** Submittal Schedule:
- **19.2.2.1.8.** Receipt by Architect of all submittals due as of the date of the payment application;
- **19.2.2.1.9.** Copies of necessary permits;
- **19.2.2.1.10.** Copies of authorizations and licenses from governing authorities;
- **19.2.2.1.11.** Initial progress report;
- **19.2.2.1.12.** Surveyor qualifications;
- **19.2.2.1.13.** Written acceptance of District's survey of rough grading, if applicable;
- **19.2.2.1.14.** List of all Subcontractors, with names, license numbers, telephone numbers, and Scope of Work;
- **19.2.2.1.15.** All bonds and insurance endorsements; and
- **19.2.2.1.16.** Resumes of Contractor's project manager, and if applicable, job site secretary, record documents recorder, and job site superintendent.
- **19.2.2.2.** Second Payment Request: The District will not process the second payment request until unless all submittals and Shop Drawings have been accepted for review by the Architect.
- **19.2.2.3.** <u>No Waiver of Criteria</u>: Any payments made to Contractor where criteria set forth herein have not been met shall not constitute a waiver of said criteria by District. Instead, such payment shall be construed as a good faith effort by District to resolve differences so Contractor may pay its Subcontractors and suppliers. Contractor agrees that failure to submit such items may constitute a breach of contract by Contractor and may subject Contractor to termination.

## 19.3. Progress Payments

#### 19.3.1. District's Approval of Application for Payment

- **19.3.1.1.** Upon receipt of an Application for Payment, The District shall act in accordance with both of following:
  - **19.3.1.1.1.** Each Application for Payment shall be reviewed by the District as soon as practicable after receipt for the purpose of determining that the Application for Payment is a proper Application for Payment.
  - **19.3.1.1.2.** Any Application for Payment determined not to be a proper Application for Payment suitable for payment shall be returned to the Contractor as soon as practicable, but not later than seven (7) days, after receipt. An Application for Payment returned pursuant to this paragraph shall be accompanied by a document setting forth in writing the reasons why the Application for Payment is not proper. The number of days available to the District to make a payment without incurring interest

pursuant to this section shall be reduced by the number of days by which the District exceeds this sevenday return requirement.

- **19.3.1.1.3.** An Application for Payment shall be considered properly executed if funds are available for payment of the Application for Payment, and payment is not delayed due to an audit inquiry by the financial officer of the District.
- **19.3.1.2.** The District's review of the Contractor's Application for Payment will be based on the District's and the Architect's observations at the Site and the data comprising the Application for Payment that the Work has progressed to the point indicated and that, to the best of the District's and the Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. The foregoing representations are subject to:
  - **19.3.1.2.1.** Observation of the Work for general conformance with the Contract Documents,
  - **19.3.1.2.2.** Results of subsequent tests and inspections,
  - **19.3.1.2.3.** Minor deviations from the Contract Documents correctable prior to completion, and
  - **19.3.1.2.4.** Specific qualifications expressed by the Architect.
- **19.3.1.3.** District's approval of the certified Application for Payment shall be based on Contractor complying with all requirements for a fully complete and valid certified Application for Payment.

#### 19.3.2. Payments to Contractor

- **19.3.2.1.** Within thirty (30) days after approval of the Application for Payment, Contractor shall be paid a sum equal to ninety-five percent (95%) of the value of the Work performed (as verified by Architect and Inspector and certified by Contractor) up to the last day of the previous month, less the aggregate of previous payments and amount to be withheld. The value of the Work completed shall be Contractor's best estimate. No inaccuracy or error in said estimate shall operate to release the Contractor, or any Surety upon any bond, from damages arising from such Work, or from the District's right to enforce each and every provision of this Contract, and the District shall have the right subsequently to correct any error made in any estimate for payment.
- **19.3.2.2.** The Contractor shall not be entitled to have any payment requests processed or be entitled to have any payment made for Work performed, so long as any lawful or proper direction given by the District concerning the Work, or any portion thereof, remains incomplete.
- **19.3.2.3.** If the District fails to make any progress payment within thirty (30) days after receipt of an undisputed and properly submitted Application for Payment from the Contractor, the District shall pay interest to the Contractor equivalent to the legal rate set forth in subdivision (a) of Section 685.010 of the Code of Civil Procedure.

#### 19.3.3. No Waiver

No payment by District hereunder shall be interpreted to imply that District has inspected, approved, or accepted any part of the Work. Notwithstanding any payment, the District may enforce each and every provision of this Contract. The District may correct or require correction of any error subsequent to any payment.

### 19.4 Decisions to Withhold Payment

#### **19.4.1.1.** Reasons to Withhold Payment

The District may withhold payment in whole, or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the District if, in the District's opinion, the representations to the District required herein cannot be made. The District may withhold payment, in whole, or in part, to such extent as may be necessary to protect the District from loss because of, but not limited to any of the following:

- **19.4.1.1.** Defective Work not remedied within **FORTY-EIGHT (48)** hours of written notice to Contractor;
- **19.4.1.2.** Stop Payment Notices or other liens served upon the District as a result of the Contract. Contractor agrees that the District may withhold up to 125% of the amount claimed in the Stop

Payment Notice to answer the claim and to provide for the District's reasonable cost of litigation pursuant to the stop payment notice.

- 19.4.1.3. Liquidated damages assessed against the Contractor;
- **19.4.1.4.** The cost of completion of the Contract if there exists reasonable doubt that the Work can be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Price or by the completion date;
- **19.4.1.5.** Damage to the District or other contractor(s);
- **19.4.1.6.** Unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work by the Contractor;
- **19.4.1.7.** Failure to store and properly secure materials;
- **19.4.1.8.** Failure of the Contractor to submit, on a timely basis, proper, sufficient, and acceptable documentation required by the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, a Construction Schedule, Schedule of Submittals, Schedule of Values, Monthly Progress Schedules, Shop Drawings, Product Data and samples, Proposed product lists, executed Change Orders, and/or verified reports;
- **19.4.1.9.** Failure of the Contractor to maintain As-Built Drawings;
- **19.4.1.10.** Erroneous estimates by the Contractor of the value of the Work performed, or other false statements in an Application for Payment;
- **19.4.1.11.** Unauthorized deviations from the Contract Documents;
- **19.4.1.12.** Failure of the Contractor to prosecute the Work in a timely manner in compliance with the Construction Schedule, established progress schedules, and/or completion dates;
- **19.4.1.13.** Failure to provide acceptable electronic certified payroll records, as required by the Labor Code, by these Contract Documents or by written request; for each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by the Contractor and/or by each Subcontractor in connection with the Work for the period of the Application for Payment or if payroll records are delinquent or inadequate;
- **19.4.1.14.** Failure to properly pay prevailing wages as required in Labor Code section 1720 et seq., failure to comply with any other Labor Code requirements, and/or failure to comply with labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR.
- **19.4.1.15.** Allowing an unregistered subcontractor, as described in Labor Code section 1725.5, to engage in the performance of any work under this Contract.
- **19.4.1.16.** Failure to comply with any applicable federal statutes and regulations regarding minimum wages, withholding, payrolls and basic records, apprentice and trainee employment requirements, equal employment opportunity requirements, Copeland Act requirements, Davis-Bacon Act and related requirements, Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act requirements, if applicable;
- **19.4.1.17.** Failure to properly maintain or clean up the Site;
- 19.4.1.18. Failure to timely indemnify, defend, or hold harmless the District;
- **19.4.1.19.** Any payments due to the District, including but not limited to payments for failed tests, utilities changes, or permits;
- **19.4.1.20.** Failure to pay Subcontractor(s) or supplier(s) as required by law and by the Contract Documents;
- **19.4.1.21.** Failure to pay any royalty, license or similar fees;
- **19.4.1.22.** Contractor is otherwise in breach, default, or in substantial violation of any provision of this Contract.

**19.4.1.23.** Failure to perform any implementation and/or monitoring required by any SWPPP for the Project and/or the imposition of any penalties or fines therefore whether imposed on the District or Contractor.

#### 19.4.2. Reallocation of Withheld Amounts

- **19.4.2.1.** District may, in its discretion, apply any withheld amount to pay outstanding claims or obligations as defined herein. In so doing, District shall make such payments on behalf of Contractor. If any payment is so made by District, then that amount shall be considered a payment made under Contract by District to Contractor and District shall not be liable to Contractor for any payment made in good faith. These payments may be made without prior judicial determination of claim or obligation. District will render Contractor an accounting of funds disbursed on behalf of Contractor.
- **19.4.2.2.** If Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents or fails to perform any provision thereof, District may, after **FORTY-EIGHT (48)** hours' written notice to the Contractor and, without prejudice to any other remedy, make good such deficiencies. The District shall adjust the total Contract Price by reducing the amount thereof by the cost of making good such deficiencies. If District deems it inexpedient to correct Work that is damaged, defective, or not done in accordance with Contract provisions, an equitable reduction in the Contract Price (of at least one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the estimated reasonable value of the nonconforming Work) shall be made therefor.

#### 19.4.3. Payment After Cure

When Contractor removes the grounds for declining approval, payment shall be made for amounts withheld because of them. No interest shall be paid on any retainage or amounts withheld due to the failure of the Contractor to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

## 19.5. <u>Subcontractor Payments</u>

#### 19.5.1. Payments to Subcontractors

No later than seven (7) days after receipt, or pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 7108.5 and Public Contract Code section 7107, the Contractor shall pay to each Subcontractor, out of the amount paid to the Contractor on account of such Subcontractor's portion of the Work, the amount to which said Subcontractor is entitled. The Contractor shall, by appropriate agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to its Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner.

#### 19.5.2. No Obligation of District for Subcontractor Payment

The District shall have no obligation to pay, or to see to the payment of, money to a Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law.

#### 19.5.3. Joint Checks

District shall have the right in its sole discretion, if necessary, for the protection of the District, to issue joint checks made payable to the Contractor and Subcontractors and/or material or equipment suppliers. The joint check payees shall be responsible for the allocation and disbursement of funds included as part of any such joint payment. In no event shall any joint check payment be construed to create any contract between the District and a Subcontractor of any tier, or a material or equipment supplier, any obligation from the District to such Subcontractor or a material or equipment supplier, or rights in such Subcontractor or a material or equipment supplier against the District.

## 20. COMPLETION OF THE WORK

#### 20.1 Completion

- **20.1.1.** District will accept completion of Contract and have the Notice of Completion recorded when the entire Work shall have been completed to the satisfaction of District.
- 20.1.2. The Work may only be accepted as complete by action of the governing board of the District.

- **20.1.3.** District, at its sole option, may accept completion of Contract and have the Notice of Completion recorded when the entire Work shall have been completed to the satisfaction of District, except for minor corrective items, as distinguished from incomplete items. If Contractor fails to complete all minor corrective items within fifteen (15) days after the date of the District's acceptance of completion, District shall withhold from the final payment one hundred fifty percent (150%) of an estimate of the amount sufficient to complete the corrective items, as determined by District, until the item(s) are completed.
- **20.1.4.** At the end of the fifteen (15) day period, if there are any items remaining to be corrected, District may elect to proceed as provided herein related to adjustments to Contract Price, and/or District's right to perform the Work of the Contractor.

## 20.2. <u>Close-Out/Certification Procedures</u>

#### 20.2.1. Punch List

The Contractor shall notify the Architect when Contractor considers the Work complete. Upon notification, Architect will prepare a list of minor items to be completed or corrected ("Punch List"). The Contractor and/or its Subcontractors shall proceed promptly to complete and correct items on the Punch List. Failure to include an item on Punch List does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

#### 20.2.2. Close-Out Requirements

#### 20.2.2.1. Utility Connections

Buildings shall be connected to water, gas, sewer, and electric services, complete and ready for use. Service connections shall be made, and existing services reconnected.

#### 20.2.2.2. Record Drawings and Record Specifications

- **20.2.2.2.1.** Contractor shall provide exact Record Drawings of the Work ("As-Builts") and Record Specifications upon completion of the Project and as a condition precedent to approval of final payment.
- **20.2.2.2.2.** Contractor shall obtain the Inspector's approval of the corrected prints and employ a competent draftsman to transfer the Record Drawings information to the most current version of AutoCAD that is, at that time, currently utilized for plan check submission by either the District, the Architect, OPSC, and/or DSA, and print a complete set of transparent sepias. When completed, Contractor shall deliver corrected sepias and diskette/CD/other data storage device acceptable to District with AutoCAD file to the District.
- **20.2.2.3.** Contractor is liable and responsible for any and all inaccuracies in the Record Drawings and Record Specifications, even if inaccuracies become evident at a future date.
- **20.2.2.3.** <u>Maintenance Manuals</u>: Contractor shall prepare all operation and maintenance manuals and date as indicated in the Specifications.
- **20.2.2.4.** <u>Source Programming</u>: Contractor shall provide all source programming for all items in the Project.
- **20.2.2.5.** <u>Verified Reports</u>: Contractor shall completely and accurately fill out and file forms DSA 6-C or DSA 152 (or current form) as appropriate. Refer to sections 336 and 4-343 of Part 1. Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations.

### 20.3. Final Inspection

**20.3.1.** Contractor shall comply with Punch List procedures as provided herein and maintain the presence of a Project Superintendent and Project Manager until the Punch List is complete to ensure proper and timely completion of the Punch List. Under no circumstances shall Contractor demobilize its forces prior to completion of the Punch List without District's prior written approval. Upon receipt of Contractor's written notice that all of

the Punch List items have been fully completed and the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance, Architect and Project Inspector will inspect the Work and shall submit to Contractor and District a final inspection report noting the Work, if any, required in order to complete in accordance with the Contract Documents. Absent unusual circumstances, this report shall consist of the Punch List items not yet satisfactorily completed.

**20.3.2.** Upon Contractor's completion of all items on the Punch List and any other uncompleted portions of the Work, the Contractor shall notify the District and Architect, who shall again inspect such Work. If the Architect finds the Work complete and acceptable under the Contract Documents, the Architect will notify Contractor, who shall then jointly submit to the Architect and the District its final Application for Payment.

#### 20.3.3. Final Inspection Requirements

- **20.3.3.1.** Before calling for final inspection, Contractor shall determine that the following have been performed:
  - **20.3.3.1.1.** The Work has been completed.
  - **20.3.3.1.2.** All life safety items are completed and in working order.
  - **20.3.3.1.3.** Mechanical and electrical Work are complete and tested, fixtures are in place, connected, and ready for tryout.
  - **20.3.3.1.4.** Electrical circuits scheduled in panels and disconnect switches labeled.
  - **20.3.3.1.5.** Painting and special finishes complete.
  - **20.3.3.1.6.** Doors complete with hardware, cleaned of protective film, relieved of sticking or binding, and in working order.
  - **20.3.3.1.7.** Tops and bottoms of doors sealed.
  - **20.3.3.1.8.** Floors waxed and polished as specified.
  - **20.3.3.1.9.** Broken glass replaced and glass cleaned.
  - **20.3.3.1.10.** Grounds cleared of Contractor's equipment, raked clean of debris, and trash removed from Site.
  - **20.3.3.1.11.** Work cleaned, free of stains, scratches, and other foreign matter, and damaged and broken material replaced.
  - **20.3.3.1.12.** Finished and decorative work shall have marks, dirt, and superfluous labels removed.
  - **20.3.3.1.13.** Final cleanup, as provided herein.

## 20.4. Costs of Multiple Inspections

More than two (2) requests of the District to make a final inspection shall be considered an additional service of District, Architect, Construction Manager, and/or Project Inspector, and all subsequent costs will be invoiced to Contractor and if funds are available, withheld from remaining payments.

# 20.5. Partial Occupancy or Use Prior to Completion

## 20.5.1. District's Rights to Occupancy

The District may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage, and such occupancy shall not constitute the District's Final Acceptance of any part of the Work. Neither the District's Final Acceptance, the making of Final Payment, any provision in Contract Documents, nor the use or occupancy of the Work, in whole or in part, by District shall constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents nor relieve the Contractor or the Contractor's Performance Bond Surety from liability with respect to any warranties or responsibility for faulty or defective Work or materials, equipment and workmanship incorporated therein. In the event that the District occupies or uses any completed or partially completed portion of the Work, the Contractor shall remain responsible for payments, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage

to the Work, insurance, the period for correction of the Work, and the commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents unless the Contractor requests in writing, and the District agrees, to otherwise divide those responsibilities. Any dispute as to responsibilities shall be resolved pursuant to the Claims and Disputes provisions herein, with the added provision that during the dispute process, the District shall have the right to occupy or use any portion of the Work that it needs or desires to use.

#### **20.5.2.** <u>Inspection Prior to Occupancy or Use</u>

Immediately prior to partial occupancy or use, the District, the Contractor, and the Architect shall jointly inspect the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work.

#### **20.5.3.** No Waiver

Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial or entire occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute beneficial occupancy or acceptance of the Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

## 21. FINAL PAYMENT AND RETENTION

### 21.1. Final Payment

Upon receipt and approval of a valid and final Application for Payment, the Architect will issue a final Certificate of Payment. The District shall thereupon jointly inspect the Work and either accept the Work as complete or notify the Architect and the Contractor in writing of reasons why the Work is not complete. Upon acceptance of the Work of the Contractor as fully complete by the Governing Board of the District (that, absent unusual circumstances, will occur when the Punch List items have been satisfactorily completed), the District shall record a Notice of Completion with the County Recorder, and the Contractor shall, upon receipt of final payment from the District, pay the amount due Subcontractors.

- 21.2. Prerequisites for Final Payment The following conditions must be fulfilled prior to Final Payment:
  - **21.2.1.** A full release of all Stop Payment Notices served in connection with the Work shall be submitted by Contractor.
  - **21.2.2.** A duly completed and executed conditional waiver and release upon final payment compliant with Civil Code section 8136, from the Contractor and each subcontractor of any tier and supplier to be paid from the final payment.
  - **21.2.3.** A duly completed and executed unconditional waiver and release upon progress payment compliant with Civil Code section 8134, from the Contractor and each subcontractor of any tier and supplier that was paid from the previous progress payments.
  - **21.2.4.** A duly completed and executed Document 00 65 19.26, "AGREEMENT AND RELEASE OF ANY AND ALL CLAIMS" from the Contractor.
  - **21.2.5.** The Contractor shall have made all corrections to the Work that are required to remedy any defects therein, to obtain compliance with the Contract Documents or any requirements of applicable codes and ordinances, or to fulfill any of the orders or directions of District required under the Contract Documents.
  - **21.2.6.** Each Subcontractor shall have delivered to the Contractor all written guarantees, warranties, applications, and bonds required by the Contract Documents for its portion of the Work.
  - **21.2.7.** Contractor must have completed all requirements set forth under "Close-Out/Certification Procedures," including, without limitation, submission of an approved set of complete Record Drawings.
  - **21.2.8.** Architect shall have issued its written approval that final payment can be made.
  - **21.2.9.** The Contractor shall have delivered to the District all manuals and materials required by the Contract Documents, which must be approved by the District.
  - **21.2.10.** The Contractor shall have completed final clean-up as provided herein.

## 21.3 Retention

- **21.3.1**. The retention, less any amounts disputed by the District or that the District has the right to withhold pursuant to provisions herein, shall be paid:
- 21.3.1.1. After approval by the Architect of the Application and Certificate of Payment,
- **21.3.1.2.** After the satisfaction of the conditions set forth herein, and
- 21.3.1.3. After forty-five (45) days after the recording of the Notice of Completion by District.
- **21.3.2** No interest shall be paid on any retention, or on any amounts withheld due to a failure of the Contractor to perform, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, except as provided to the contrary in any Escrow Agreement between the District and the Contractor pursuant to Public Contract Code section 22300.
- **21.4** <u>Substitution of Securities</u>: The District will permit the substitution of securities in accordance with the provisions of Public Contract Code section 22300.

### 22.UNCOVERING OF WORK

If a portion of the Work is covered without Inspector or Architect approval or not in compliance with the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by the District, the Project Inspector, or the Architect, be uncovered for the Project Inspector's or the Architect's observation and be corrected, replaced and/or recovered at the Contractor's expense without change in the Contract Price or Contract Time.

#### 23. NONCONFORMING WORK AND CORRECTION OF WORK

## 23.1. Nonconforming Work

- **23.1.1.**Contractor shall promptly remove from Premises all Work identified by District as failing to conform to the Contract Documents whether incorporated or not. Contractor shall promptly replace and re-execute its own Work to comply with the Contract Documents without additional expense to the District and shall bear the expense of making good all work of other contractors destroyed or damaged by any removal or replacement pursuant hereto and/or any delays to the District or other Contractors caused thereby.
- **23.1.2.**If Contractor does not remove Work that District has identified as failing to conform to the Contract Documents within a reasonable time, not to exceed <u>FORTY-EIGHT (48)</u> hours, District may remove it and may store any material at Contractor's expense. If Contractor does not pay expense(s) of that removal within ten (10) days' time thereafter, District may, upon ten (10) days' written notice, sell any material at auction or at private sale and shall deduct all costs and expenses incurred by the District and/or District may withhold those amounts from payment(s) to Contractor.

#### 23.2.Correction of Work

#### 23.2.1. Correction of Rejected Work

Pursuant to the notice provisions herein, the Contractor shall immediately correct the Work rejected by the District, the Architect, or the Project Inspector as failing to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, whether observed before or after Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed. The Contractor shall bear costs of correcting the rejected Work, including additional testing, inspections, and compensation for the Inspector's or the Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby.

### 23.2.2. One-Year Warranty Corrections

If, within one (1) year after the date of Completion of the Work or a designated portion thereof, or after the date for commencement of warranties established hereunder, or by the terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the District to do so. This period of one (1) year shall be extended with respect to portions of the Work first performed after Completion by the period of time between Completion and the actual performance of the Work. This obligation hereunder shall survive acceptance of the Work under the Contract and termination of the Contract. The District shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition.

#### 23.3. District's Right to Perform Work

- **23.3.1.**If the Contractor should neglect to prosecute the Work properly or fail to perform any provisions of this contract, the District, after <u>FORTY-EIGHT (48)</u> hours' written notice to the Contractor, may, without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, make good such deficiencies and may deduct the cost thereof from the payment then or thereafter due the Contractor.
- **23.3.2.**If it is found at any time, before or after completion of the Work, that Contractor has varied from the Drawings and/or Specifications, including, but not limited to, variation in material, quality, form, or finish, or in the amount or value of the materials and labor used, District may require at its option:
  - **23.3.2.1.** That all such improper Work be removed, remade or replaced, and all work disturbed by these changes be made good by Contractor at no additional cost to the District;
  - **23.3.2.2.** That the District deduct from any amount due Contractor the sum of money equivalent to the difference in value between the work performed and that called for by the Drawings and Specifications; or
  - **23.3.2.3.** That the District exercise any other remedy it may have at law or under the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the District hiring its own forces or another contractor to replace the Contractor's nonconforming Work, in which case the District shall either issue a deductive Change Order, a Construction Change Directive, or invoice the Contractor for the cost of that work. Contractor shall pay any invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt of same or District may withhold those amounts from payment(s) to Contractor.

## 24. TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION

### 24.1. District's Right to Terminate Contractor for Cause

- **24.1.1.** Grounds for Termination: The District, in its sole discretion, may terminate the Contract and/or terminate the Contractor's right to perform the work of the Contract based upon the following:
  - **24.1.1.1.**Contractor refuses or fails to execute the Work or any separable part thereof with sufficient diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified or any extension thereof, or
  - **24.1.1.2.**Contractor fails to complete said Work within the time specified or any extension thereof or any extension thereof, or
  - **24.1.1.3.**Contractor persistently fails or refuses to perform Work or provide material of sufficient quality as to be in compliance with Contract Documents; or
  - **24.1.1.4.**Contractor persistently or repeatedly refuses or fails, except in cases for which extension of time is provided, to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to complete the Work in the time specified, or
  - 24.1.1.5. Contractor fails to make prompt payment to Subcontractors, or for material, or for labor, or
  - 24.1.1.6. Contractor persistently disregards laws, or ordinances, or instructions of District; or
  - **24.1.1.7.**Contractor fails to supply labor, including that of Subcontractors, that is sufficient to prosecute the Work or that can work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be employed on the Work, or

**24.1.1.8.** Contractor or its Subcontractor(s) is/are otherwise in breach, default, or in substantial violation of any provision of this Contract, including but not limited to a lapse in licensing or registration.

### 24.1.2. Notification of Termination

- **24.1.2.1.**Upon the occurrence at District's sole determination of any of the above conditions, District may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy, serve written notice upon Contractor and its Surety of District's termination of this Contract and/or the Contractor's right to perform the work of the Contract. This notice will contain the reasons for termination. Unless, within three (3) days after the service of the notice, any and all condition(s) shall cease, and any and all violation(s) shall cease, or arrangement satisfactory to District for the correction of the condition(s) and/or violation(s) be made, this Contract shall cease and terminate. Upon Termination, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the entire Work is finished.
- **24.1.2.2.**Upon Termination, District may immediately serve written notice of tender upon Surety whereby Surety shall have the right to take over and perform this Contract only if Surety:
  - **24.1.2.2.1.**Within three (3) days after service upon it of the notice of tender, gives District written notice of Surety's intention to take over and perform this Contract; and
  - **24.1.2.2.** Commences performance of this Contract within (three (3) days from date of serving of its notice to District.
- **24.1.2.3.** Surety shall not utilize Contractor in completing the Project if the District notifies Surety of the District's objection to Contractor's further participation in the completion of the Project. Surety expressly agrees that any contractor which Surety proposes to fulfill Surety's obligations is subject to District's approval. District's approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.
- **24.1.2.4.**If Surety fails to notify District or begin performance as indicated herein, District may take over the Work and execute the Work to completion by any method it may deem advisable at the expense of Contractor and/or its Surety. Contractor and/or its Surety shall be liable to District for any excess cost or other damages the District incurs thereby. Time is of the essence in this Contract. If the District takes over the Work as herein provided, District may, without liability for so doing, take possession of and utilize in completing the Work such materials, appliances, plan, and other property belonging to Contractor as may be on the Site of the Work, in bonded storage, or previously paid for.

### 24.1.3. Effect of Termination

- **24.1.3.1.**Contractor shall, only if ordered to do so by the District, immediately remove from the Site all or any materials and personal property belonging to Contractor that have not been incorporated in the construction of the Work, or which are not in place in the Work. The District retains the right, but not the obligation, to keep and use any materials and personal property belonging to Contractor that have not been incorporated in the construction of the Work, or which are not in place in the Work. The Contractor and its Surety shall be liable upon the performance bond for all damages caused to the District by reason of the Contractor's failure to complete the Contract.
- **24.1.3.2.**In the event that the District shall perform any portion of, or the whole of the Work, pursuant to the provisions of the General Conditions, the District shall not be liable nor account to the Contractor in any way for the time within which, or the manner in which, the Work is performed by the District or for any changes the District may make in the Work or for the money expended by the District in satisfying claims and/or suits and/or other obligations in connection with the Work.
- **24.1.3.3.** In the event that the Contract is terminated for any reason, no allowances or compensation will be granted for the loss of any anticipated profit by the Contractor or any impact or impairment of Contractor's bonding capacity.
- **24.1.3.4.**If the expense to the District to finish the Work exceeds the unpaid Contract Price, Contractor and Surety shall pay difference to District within twenty-one (21) days of District's request.
- **24.1.3.5.** The District shall have the right (but shall have no obligation) to assume and/or assign to a general contractor or construction manager or other third party who is qualified and has sufficient resources to complete the Work, the rights of the Contractor under its subcontracts with any or all Subcontractors. In the event of an assumption or assignment by the District, no Subcontractor shall have any claim against the

District or third party for Work performed by Subcontractor or other matters arising prior to termination of the Contract. The District or any third party, as the case may be, shall be liable only for obligations to the Subcontractor arising after assumption or assignment. Should the District so elect, the Contractor shall execute and deliver all documents and take all steps, including the legal assignment of its contractual rights, as the District may require, for the purpose of fully vesting in the District the rights and benefits of it Subcontractor under Subcontracts or other obligations or commitments. All payments due the Contractor hereunder shall be subject to a right of offset by the District for expenses and damages suffered by the District as a result of any default, acts, or omissions of the Contractor. Contractor must include this assignment provision in all of its contracts with its Subcontractors.

**24.1.3.6.** The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not in limitation of any other rights or remedies available to District.

## 24.1.4. Emergency Termination of Public Contracts Act of 1949

**24.1.4.1.**This Contract is subject to termination as provided by sections 4410 and 4411 of the Government Code of the State of California, being a portion of the Emergency Termination of Public Contracts Act of 1949.

#### 24.1.4.1.1. Section 4410 of the Government Code states:

In the event a national emergency occurs, and public work, being performed by contract, is stopped, directly or indirectly, because of the freezing or diversion of materials, equipment or labor, as the result of an order or a proclamation of the President of the United States, or of an order of any federal authority, and the circumstances or conditions are such that it is impracticable within a reasonable time to proceed with a substantial portion of the work, then the public agency and the contractor may, by written agreement, terminate said contract.

## 24.1.4.1.2. Section 4411 of the Government Code states:

Such an agreement shall include the terms and conditions of the termination of the contract and provision for the payment of compensation or money, if any, which either party shall pay to the other or any other person, under the facts and circumstances in the case.

**24.1.4.2.**Compensation to the Contractor shall be determined at the sole discretion of District on the basis of the reasonable value of the Work done, including preparatory work. As an exception to the foregoing and at the District's discretion, in the case of any fully completed separate item or portion of the Work for which there is a separate previously submitted unit price or item on the accepted schedule of values, that price shall control. The District, at its sole discretion, may adopt the Contract Price as the reasonable value of the work done or any portion thereof.

### **24.2.** Termination of Contractor for Convenience

- **24.2.1.** District in its sole discretion may terminate the Contract upon three (3) days' written notice to the Contractor. Under a termination for convenience, the District retains the right to all the options available to the District if there is a termination for cause. In case of a termination for convenience, the Contractor shall have no claims against the District except:
  - **24.2.1.1.** The actual cost for labor, materials, and services performed that is unpaid and adequately documented through timesheets, invoices, receipts, or otherwise, and
  - **24.2.1.2.** Five percent (5%) of the total cost of work performed as of the date of termination, or five percent (5%) of the value of the Work yet to be performed, whichever is less. This five percent (5%) amount shall be full compensation for all Contractor's and Subcontractor(s)' mobilization and/or demobilization costs and any anticipated loss profits resulting from termination of the Contractor for convenience.

#### 24.3. Suspension of Work

- **24.3.1.** District in its sole discretion may suspend, delay or interrupt the Work in whole or in part for such period of time as the District may determine upon three (3) days written notice to the Contractor.
  - **24.3.1.1.** An adjustment may be made for changes in the cost of performance of the Work caused by any such suspension, delay or interruption. No adjustment shall be made to the extent:
    - **24.3.1.1.** That performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause for which Contractor is responsible; or
    - **24.3.1.1.2.** That an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract; or
    - **24.3.1.1.3.** That the suspension of Work was the direct or indirect result of Contractor's failure to perform any of its obligations hereunder.
  - **24.3.1.2.** Any adjustments in cost of performance may have a fixed or percentage fee as provided in the section on Format for Proposed Change Order herein. This amount shall be full compensation for all Contractor's and its Subcontractor(s)' changes in the cost of performance of the Contract caused by any such suspension, delay or interruption.

#### 25.CLAIMS PROCESS

### 25.1. Performance During Claim Process

Contractor and its subcontractors shall continue to perform its Work under the Contract and shall not cause a delay of the Work during any dispute, claim, negotiation, mediation, or arbitration proceeding, except by written agreement by the District.

#### 25.2. Definition of Claim

- **25.2.1.** Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204, the term "Claim" means a separate demand by the Contractor for sent by registered mail or certified mail with return receipt requested, for one or more of the following:
  - **25.2.1.1.**A time extension, including without limitation, for relief of damages or penalties for delay assessed by the District under the Contract;
  - **25.2.1.2.**Payment by the District of money or damages arising from work done by, or on behalf of, the Contractor pursuant to the Contract and payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for or to which Contractor is not otherwise entitled to: or
  - **25.2.1.3.** An amount of payment disputed by the District.

### 25.3. Claims Presentation

- **25.3.1.**If Contractor intends to apply for an increase in the Contract Price or Contract Time for any reason including, without limitation, the acts of District or its agents, Contractor shall, within thirty (30) days after the event giving rise to the Claim, give notice of the Claim in writing, including an itemized statement of the details and amounts of its Claim for any increase in the Contract Price or Contract Time, including a Schedule Analysis and any and all other documentation substantiating Contractor's claimed damages. Otherwise, Contractor shall have waived and relinquished its dispute against the District and Contractor's claims for compensation or an extension of time shall be forfeited and invalidated. Likewise, failure to timely submit a claim and the requisite supporting documentation shall constitute a waiver of such claim.
- 25.3.2. The Claim shall identify:

- **25.3.2.1.**The issues, events, conditions, circumstances and/or causes giving rise to the dispute, and shall show, in detail, the cause and effect of same;
- **25.3.2.2.** The pertinent dates and/or durations and actual and/or anticipated effects on the Contract Price, Contract Schedule milestones and/or Contract Time adjustments;
- 25.3.2.3. The line-item costs for labor, material, and/or equipment, if applicable; or
- **25.3.2.4.** A request by Contractor, if any, to waive the claims procedure under Public Contract Code section 9204 and proceed directly to the commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration.
- **25.3.3.**The Claim shall include the following certification by the Contractor:
  - **25.3.3.1.** The undersigned Contractor certifies under penalty of perjury that the attached dispute is made in good faith; that the supporting data is accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief; that the amount requested accurately reflects the adjustment for which Contractor believes the District is liable; and that I am duly authorized to certify the dispute on behalf of the Contractor.
  - **25.3.3.2.**Furthermore, Contractor understands that the value of the attached dispute expressly includes any and all of the Contractor's costs and expenses, direct and indirect, resulting from the Work performed on the Project, additional time required on the Project and/or resulting from delay to the Project. Contractor may not separately recover for overhead or other indirect costs. Any costs, expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed waived.

#### 25.4. Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204

#### 25.4.1. STEP 1:

- **25.4.1.1.** Upon receipt of a Claim by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, including the documents necessary to substantiate it, the District shall conduct a reasonable review of the Claim and, within a period **not to exceed 45 days**, shall provide the Contractor a written statement identifying what portion of the Claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of a Claim, the District and Contractor may, **by mutual agreement, extend the time period** to provide a written statement. If the District needs approval from its governing body to provide the Contractor a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of the Claim, and the governing body does not meet within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of time following receipt of Claim sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the District shall have **up to three (3) days following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the governing body after the 45-day period, or extension**, expires to provide Contractor a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion.
  - **25.4.1.1.1** Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the Claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the District issues its written statement. Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section, section 25.4, shall bear interest at seven percent (7%) per annum.
- **25.4.1.2.** Upon receipt of a Claim, the parties may mutually agree to waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to the commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable. In this instance, District and Contractor must comply with the sections below regarding Public Contract Code section 20104 *et seq.* and Government Code Claim Act Claims.
- **25.4.1.3.** If the District fails to issue a written statement, or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, this shall result in the Claim being deemed rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of the District's failure to have responded to a claim, or its failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse finding with regard to the merits of the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of Contractor.

## 25.4.2. STEP 2:

- **25.4.2.1** If Contractor disputes the District's written response, or if the District fails to respond to a Claim within the time prescribed, Contractor may demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the District shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the Claim or any portion of the Claim remains in dispute, the District shall provide the Contractor a written statement identifying the portion of the Claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed.
- **25.4.2.1.1** Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the Claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the District issues its written statement. Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section, section 25.4, shall bear interest at seven percent (7%) per annum.

# 25.4.3. STEP 3:

- **25.4.3.1** Any disputed portion of the Claim, as identified by Contractor in writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation, with the District and Contractor sharing the associated costs equally. The District and Contractor shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days after the disputed portion of the Claim has been identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the Claim. Each party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the Claim remaining in dispute shall be subject to applicable procedures outside this section.
- **25.4.3.1.1** For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, neutral evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the parties in dispute resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to the timeframes in this section.
- **25.4.3.2 Unless** otherwise agreed to by the District and Contractor in writing, the mediation conducted pursuant to this section shall excuse any further obligation under Public Contract Code section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been commenced.

## 25.4.4 STEP 4:

**25.4.4.1** If mediation under this section does not resolve the parties' dispute, the District may, but does not require arbitration of disputes under private arbitration or the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program.

### 25.5. Subcontractor Pass-Through Claims

- **25.5.1.** If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to assert a claim against a District because privity of contract does not exist, the contractor may present to the District a Claim on behalf of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his or her own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that Contractor present a Claim for work which was performed by the subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting that the Claim be presented to the District shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the Claim.
- **25.5.2.** Within 45 days of receipt of this written request from a subcontractor, Contractor shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to whether the Contractor presented the Claim to the District and, if Contractor did not present the Claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done so.
- **25.5.3.** The Contractor shall bind all its Subcontractors to the provisions of this section and will hold the District harmless against Claims by Subcontractors.

### 25.6. Government Code Claim Act Claim

**25.6.1.** If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable Claim Resolution requirements, including those pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204, the Contractor shall comply with

all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commending with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to the Contractor's right to bring a civil action against the District. For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be presented to the District shall be tolled from the time Contractor submits its written Claim until the time the Claim is denied, including any time utilized by any applicable meet and confer process.

### 25.7. Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq.

- **25.7.1** In the event of a disagreement between the parties as to performance of the Work, the interpretation of this Contract, or payment or nonpayment for Work performed or not performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve all claims of three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars (\$375,000) or less which arise between Contractor and District by those procedures set forth in Public Contract Code section 20104, et seq., to the extent applicable.
- **25.7.1.1** Contractor shall file with the District any written Claim, including the documents necessary to substantiate it, upon the application for final payment.
- **25.7.1.2** For claims of less than fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000), the District shall respond in writing within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the Claim or may request in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Claim any additional documentation supporting the Claim or relating to defenses or claims the District may have against the Contractor.
- **25.7.1.2.1** If additional information is required, it shall be requested and provided by mutual agreement of the parties.
- **25.7.1.2.2** District's written response to the documented Claim shall be submitted to the Contractor within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the further documentation or within a period of time no greater than that taken by the Contractor to produce the additional information, whichever is greater.
- **25.7.1.3** For claims of over fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) and less than or equal to three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars (\$375,000), the District shall respond in writing to all written Claims within sixty (60) days of receipt of the claim, or may request, in writing, within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Claim any additional documentation supporting the Claim or relating to defenses or claims the District may have against the Contractor.
- **25.7.1.3.1** If additional information is required, it shall be requested and provided upon mutual agreement of the District and the Contractor.
- **25.7.1.3.2** The District's written response to the Claim, as further documented, shall be submitted to the Contractor within thirty (30) days after receipt of the further documentation, or within a period of time no greater than that taken by the Contractor to produce the additional information or requested documentation, whichever is greater.
  - 25.7.1.4 If Contractor disputes the District's written response, or the District fails to respond within the time prescribed, Contractor may so notify the District, in writing, either within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the District's response or within fifteen (15) days of the District's failure to respond within the time prescribed, respectively, and demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon a demand, the District shall schedule a meet and confer conference within thirty (30) days for settlement of the dispute.
  - **25.7.1.5** Following the meet and confer conference, if the Claim or any portion of it remains in dispute, the Contractor may file a claim as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code. For purposes of those provisions the running of the time within which a claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time the Contractor submits its written Claim until the time the Claim is denied, including any period of time utilized by the meet and confer process.
  - **25.7.1.6** For any civil action filed to resolve claims filed pursuant to this section, within sixty (60) days, but no earlier than thirty (30) days, following the filing of responsive pleadings, the court shall submit the matter to nonbinding mediation unless waived by mutual stipulation of both parties. The mediation process shall provide for the selection with fifteen (15) days by

both parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days of the submittal, and shall be concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the mediation unless a time requirement is extended upon a good cause showing to the court or by stipulation of both parties. If the parties fail to select a mediator within the 15-day period, any party may petition the court to appoint the mediator.

- 25.7.1.7 If the matter remains in dispute, the case shall be submitted to judicial arbitration pursuant to Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 1141.10) of the Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil Procedure, notwithstanding Section 1141.11 of that code. The Civil Discovery Act of 1986, (Article 3 (commencing with Section 2016) of Chapter 3 of Title 3 of part 4 of the Code of Civil Procedure) shall apply to any proceeding brought under this subdivision consistent with the rules pertaining to judicial arbitration.
- **25.7.1.8** The District shall not fail to pay money as to any portion of a Claim which is undisputed except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. In any suit filed pursuant to this section, the District shall pay interest due at the legal rate on any arbitration award or judgment. Interest shall begin to accrue on the date the suit is filed in a court of law.
- **25.7.2** Contractor shall bind its Subcontractors to the provisions of this Section and will hold the District harmless against disputes by Subcontractors.

#### 25.8 Claim Resolution Non-Applicability

- **25.8.1** The procedures for dispute and claim resolutions set forth in this Article shall not apply to the following:
  - **25.8.1.1** Personal injury, wrongful death or property damage claims;
  - **25.8.1.2** Latent defect or breach of warranty or guarantee to repair;
  - 25.8.1.3 Stop payment notices;
  - **25.8.1.4** District's rights set forth in the Article on Suspension and Termination
  - **25.8.1.5** Disputes arising out of labor compliance enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations; or
  - **25.8.1.6** District rights and obligations as a public entity set forth in applicable statutes; provided, however, that penalties imposed against a public entity by statutes, including, but not limited to, Public Contract Code sections 20104.50 and 7107, shall be subject to the Claim Resolution requirements provided in this Article.

#### 25.9 Attorney's Fees

**25.9.1** Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of this Agreement, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection expenses, witness fees, court costs and attorney's fees.

#### 26 STATE LABOR, WAGE & HOUR, APPRENTICE, AND RELATED PROVISIONS

# 26.1 <u>Labor Compliance and Enforcement</u>

Since this Project is subject to labor compliance and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations ("DIR"), Contractor specifically acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Work of this Agreement while complying with all the applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, of the Labor Code and Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations, including, without limitation, the requirement that the Contractor and all Subcontractors shall timely furnish complete and accurate electronic certified payroll records directly to the DIR. The District may not issue payment if this requirement is not met.

# 26.2 Wage Rates, Travel, and Subsistence

**26.2.1** Pursuant to the provisions of Article 2 (commencing at section 1770), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of the Labor Code, the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and

overtime work in the locality in which this public work is to be performed for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute this Contract are on file at the District's principal office and copies will be made available to any interested party on request. Contractor shall obtain and post a copy of these wage rates at the job site.

- **26.2.2** Holiday and overtime work, when permitted by law, shall be paid for at the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work on file with the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations unless otherwise specified. The holidays upon which those rates shall be paid need not be specified by the District but shall be all holidays recognized in the applicable collective bargaining agreement. If the prevailing rate is not based on a collectively bargained rate, the holidays upon which the prevailing rate shall be paid shall be as provided in Section 6700 of the Government Code.
- **26.2.3** Contractor shall pay and shall cause to be paid each worker engaged in Work on the Project the general prevailing rate of per diem wages determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between Contractor or any Subcontractor and such workers.
- **26.2.4** If during the period this bid is required to remain open, the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations determines that there has been a change in any prevailing rate of per diem wages in the locality in which the Work under the Contract is to be performed, such change shall not alter the wage rates in the Notice to Bidders or the Contract subsequently awarded.
- **26.2.5** Pursuant to Labor Code section 1775, Contractor shall, as a penalty to District, forfeit the statutory amount (believed by the District to be currently up to two hundred dollars (\$200)) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the prevailing rates, determined by the District and/or the Director, for the work or craft in which that worker is employed for any public work done under Contract by Contractor or by any Subcontractor under it. The difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by Contractor.
- **26.2.6** Any worker employed to perform Work on the Project, which Work is not covered by any classification listed in the general prevailing wage rate of per diem wages determined by the Director, shall be paid not less than the minimum rate of wages specified therein for the classification which most nearly corresponds to Work to be performed by him, and such minimum wage rate shall be retroactive to time of initial employment of such person in such classification.
- **26.2.7** Pursuant to Labor Code section 1773.1, per diem wages are deemed to include employer payments for health and welfare, pension, vacation, travel time, subsistence pay, and apprenticeship or other training programs authorized by section 3093, and similar purposes.
- **26.2.8** Contractor shall post at appropriate conspicuous points on the Site of Project, a schedule showing all determined minimum wage rates and all authorized deductions, if any, from unpaid wages actually earned. In addition, Contractor shall post a sign-in log for all workers and visitors to the Site, a list of all subcontractors of any tier on the Site, and the required Equal Employment Opportunity poster(s).

# 26.3 Hours of Work

- **26.3.1** As provided in article 3 (commencing at section 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of the Labor Code, eight (8) hours of labor shall constitute a legal day's work. The time of service of any worker employed at any time by Contractor or by any Subcontractor on any subcontract under this Contract upon the Work or upon any part of the Work contemplated by this Contract shall be limited and restricted by Contractor to eight (8) hours per day, and forty (40) hours during any one week, except as hereinafter provided. Notwithstanding the provisions hereinabove set forth, Work performed by employees of Contractor in excess of eight (8) hours per day and forty (40) hours during any one week, shall be permitted upon this public work upon compensation for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day at not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay.
- **26.3.2** Contractor shall keep and shall cause each Subcontractor to keep an accurate record showing the name of and actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by each worker employed by Contractor in connection with the Work or any part of the Work contemplated by this Contract. The record shall be kept open at all reasonable hours to the inspection of District and to the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the DIR.
- **26.3.3** Pursuant to Labor Code section 1813, Contractor shall as a penalty to the District forfeit the statutory amount (believed by the District to be currently twenty-five dollars (\$25)) for each worker employed in the execution of this Contract by Contractor or by any Subcontractor for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight (8) hours in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one calendar week in violation of the provisions of article 3 (commencing at section 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2, of the Labor Code.

**26.3.4** Any Work necessary to be performed after regular working hours, or on Sundays or other holidays shall be performed without additional expense to the District.

# 26.4 Payroll Records

- **26.4.1** Contractor shall upload, and shall cause each Subcontractor performing any portion of the Work under this Contract to upload, an accurate and complete certified payroll record ("CPR") electronically using DIR's eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering each record manually using the DIR's iform (or current form) online on a weekly basis and within ten (10) days of any request by the District or Labor Commissioner at <a href="https://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html">https://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html</a> or current application and URL, showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight-time, and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by the Contractor and/or each Subcontractor in connection with the Work.
  - <u>26.4.1.1</u> The CPRs enumerated hereunder shall be filed directly with the DIR on a weekly basis or to the requesting party, whether the District or DIR, within ten (10) days after receipt of each written request. The CPRs from the Contractor and each Subcontractor for each week shall be provided on or before Wednesday of the week following the week covered by the CPRs. District may not make any payment to Contractor until:
    - 26.4.1.1.1 Contractor and/or its Subcontractor(s) provide CPRs acceptable to the DIR; and
    - **26.4.1.1.2** Any delay in Contractor and/or its Subcontractor(s) providing CPRs to the DIR in a timely manner may directly delay Contractor's payment.
- **26.4.2** All CPRs shall be available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of Contractor on the following basis:
  - <u>26.4.2.1</u> A certified copy of an employee's CPR shall be made available for inspection or furnished to the employee or his/her authorized representative on request.
  - **26.4.2.2** CPRs shall be made available for inspection or furnished upon request to a representative of District, Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, Division of Apprenticeship Standards, and/or the DIR.
  - <u>26.4.2.3</u> CPRs shall be made available upon request by the public for inspection or copies thereof made; provided, however, that a request by the public shall be made through the District, Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement. If the requested CPRs have not been provided pursuant to the provisions herein, the requesting party shall, prior to being provided the records reimburse the costs of preparation by Contractor, Subcontractors, and the entity through which the request was made. The public shall not be given access to the records at the principal office of Contractor.
- **26.4.3** Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by District, Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or Division of Labor Standards Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent disclosure of an individual's name, address, and social security number. The name and address of Contractor awarded Contract or performing Contract shall not be marked or obliterated.
- **26.4.4** Contractor shall inform District of the location of the records enumerated hereunder, including the street address, city, and county, and shall, within five (5) working days, provide a notice of change of location and address.
- **26.4.5** In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this section, Contractor shall have ten (10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying in what respects Contractor must comply with this section. Should noncompliance still be evident after the ten (10) day period, Contractor shall, as a penalty to District, forfeit up to one hundred dollars (\$100) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Labor Commissioner, these penalties shall be withheld from progress payments then due.
- 26.4.6 [RESERVED]
- 26.5 [RESERVED]
- 26.6 Apprentices

- **26.6.1** Contractor acknowledges and agrees that, if this Contract involves a dollar amount greater than or a number of working days greater than that specified in Labor Code section 1777.5, then this Contract is governed by the provisions of Labor Code Section 1777.5. It shall be the responsibility of Contractor to ensure compliance with this Article and with Labor Code section 1777.5 for all apprenticeship occupations.
- **26.6.2** Apprentices of any crafts or trades may be employed and, when required by Labor Code section 1777.5, shall be employed provided they are properly registered in full compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code.
- **26.6.3** Every such apprentice shall be paid the standard wage paid to apprentices under the regulations of the craft or trade at which he/she is employed and shall be employed only at the work of the craft or trade to which she/he is registered.
- **26.6.4** Only apprentices, as defined in section 3077 of the Labor Code, who are in training under apprenticeship standards and written apprentice agreements under chapter 4 (commencing at section 3070), division 3, of the Labor Code, are eligible to be employed. The employment and training of each apprentice shall be in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship standards and apprentice agreements under which he/she is training.
- **26.6.5** Pursuant to Labor Code section 1777.5, if that section applies to this Contract as indicated above, Contractor and any Subcontractors employing workers in any apprenticeable craft or trade in performing any Work under this Contract shall apply to the applicable joint apprenticeship committee for a certificate approving the Contractor or Subcontractor under the applicable apprenticeship standards and fixing the ratio of apprentices to journeymen employed in performing the Work.
- **26.6.6** Pursuant to Labor Code section 1777.5, if that section applies to this Contract as indicated above, Contractor and any Subcontractor may be required to make contributions to the apprenticeship program.
- **26.6.7** If Contractor or Subcontractor willfully fails to comply with Labor Code section 1777.5, then, upon a determination of noncompliance by the Administrator of Apprenticeship, it shall:
  - <u>26.6.7.1</u> Be denied the right to bid on any subsequent project for one (1) year from the date of such determination:
  - **26.6.7.2** Forfeit as a penalty to District the full amount as stated in Labor Code section 1777.7. Interpretation and enforcement of these provisions shall be in accordance with the rules and procedures of the California Apprenticeship Council and under the authority of the Chief of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards.
- **26.6.8** Contractor and all Subcontractors shall comply with Labor Code section 1777.6, which section forbids certain discriminatory practices in the employment of apprentices.
- **26.6.9** Contractor shall become fully acquainted with the law regarding apprentices prior to commencement of the Work. Special attention is directed to sections 1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 of the Labor Code, and title 8, California Code of Regulations, section 200 et seq. Questions may be directed to the State Division of Apprenticeship Standards, 455 Golden Gate Avenue, 9<sup>th</sup> floor, San Francisco, California 94102.

# 26.7 <u>Non-Discrimination</u>

- **26.7.1** Contractor herein agrees not to discriminate in its recruiting, hiring, promotion, demotion, or termination practices on the basis of race, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, or physical handicap in the performance of this Contract and to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246, and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Contractor and Subcontractor.
- **26.7.2** Special requirements for Federally Assisted Construction Contracts: During the performance of this Contract, Contractor agrees to incorporate in all subcontracts the provisions set forth in Chapter 60-1.4(b) of Title 41 published in Volume 33 No. 104 of the Federal Register dated May 28, 1968.

#### 26.8 <u>Labor First Aid</u>

Contractor shall maintain emergency first aid treatment for Contractor's workers on the Project which complies with the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.) and the California Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1973 (Lab. Code §6300 et seq.; 8 Cal. Code of Regs., §330 et seq.).

#### 27 [RESERVED]

#### 28 MISCELLANEOUS

#### 28.1 Assignment of Antitrust Actions

#### 28.1.1 Section 7103.5(b) of the Public Contract Code states:

In entering into a public works contract or subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the Contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, which assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders final payment to the Contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties.

#### 28.1.2 Section 4552 of the Government Code states:

In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the bidder.

#### 28.1.3 Section 4553 of the Government Code states:

If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment or settlement, a monetary recovery for a cause of action assigned under this chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive reimbursement for actual legal costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were paid by the assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the recovery.

#### 28.1.4 Section 4554 of the Government Code states:

Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from such demand, reassign the cause of action assigned under this part if the assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of law for which the cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action.

**28.1.5** Under this Article, "public purchasing body" is District and "bidder" is Contractor.

# 28.2 <u>Excise Taxes</u>

If, under Federal Excise Tax Law, any transaction hereunder constitutes a sale on which a Federal Excise Tax is imposed and the sale is exempt from such Federal Excise Tax because it is a sale to a State or Local Government for its exclusive use, District, upon request, will execute documents necessary to show (1) that District is a political subdivision of the State for the purposes of such exemption, and (2) that the sale is for the exclusive use of District. No Federal Excise Tax for such materials shall be included in any Contract Price.

#### **28.3** Taxes

Contract Price is to include any and all applicable sales taxes or other taxes that may be due in accordance with section 7051 of the Revenue and Taxation Code Regulation 1521 of the State Board of Equalization or any other tax code that may be applicable.

#### 28.4 Shipments

All shipments must be F.O.B. destination to Site or sites, as indicated in the Contract Documents. There must be no charge for containers, packing, unpacking, drayage, or insurance. The total Contract Price shall be all inclusive (including sales tax) and no additional costs of any type will be considered.

#### 28.5 Compliance with Government Reporting Requirements

If this Contract is subject to federal or other governmental reporting requirements because of federal or other governmental financing in whole or in part for the Project of which it is part, or for any other reason, Contactor shall comply with those reporting requirements at the request of the District at no additional cost.

\*\*\*\*\*

# **Construction Manager**

Lompoc Unified School District's Director of Maintenance & Operations, Doug Sorum, is the Site and Construction contact for this Project. He may be reached at (805) 742-3170 or <a href="maintenance">sorum.douglas@lusd.org</a>.

#### **Program Manager**

Lompoc Unified School District's Manager of Purchasing Services, Angelica Hernandez, is the Business Contact for this Project. Her contact information is (805) 742-3256 or <a href="mailto:hernandez.angelica@lusd.org">hernandez.angelica@lusd.org</a>.



# B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK BID SUBMITTAL DOCUMENTS

Document 00 41 13

# **BID FORM AND PROPOSAL**

Lompo	Unified School District ("District" or "Owner")
From:	
_	(Proper Name of Bidder)

The undersigned declares that the Bidder has read and understands the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, the Notice to Bidders and the Instructions to Bidders, and agrees and proposes to furnish all necessary labor, materials, and equipment to perform and furnish all work in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, the Drawings and Specifications of Bid No.: **B3-20** 

PROJECT: **HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK** ("Project" or "Contract") and will accept in full payment for that Work the following total lump sum amount, all taxes included.

# LOMPOC UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK BID SCHEDULE

BIDDER: \_\_\_\_\_

ITEM NO.	BID ITEMS	PAYMENT REFERENCE	UNIT	TOTAL QUANTITIES	UNIT PRICE	*TOTAL COST
1	Install PCC Pavement	03 30 53 - 1.2	SF	4,015		
2	New Pavement Markings	32 17 23 - 4	LS	1		
3	Irrigation Repair Allowance	02 41 15 - 1.2	LS	1		\$ 5,000.00
4	Landscape Restoration Allowance	32 93 15 - 4	LS	1		\$ 5,000.00

### **TOTAL**

10172			
BASE BID TOTAL AMOUNT IN FIGURES:			
BASE BID TOTAL AMOUNT IN WORDS:			

Bidder acknowledges and agrees that the Base Bid accounts for any and all Allowance(s) and Total Cost for Unit Prices as detailed in the above bid schedule.

<sup>\*</sup>NOTE: In case of error in extension of price into the total price column, the unit price will govern.

#### ALLOWANCE TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BASE "BID AMOUNT"

#### SEE "UTILITY ALLOWANCE" INCLUDED IN THE BID SCHEDULE

- 2. **Allowance.** The above allowance shall only be allocated for unforeseen items relating to the Work. Contractor shall not bill for or be due any portion of this allowance unless the District has identified specific work, Contractor has submitted a price for that work or the District has proposed a price for that work, the District has accepted the cost for that work, and the District has prepared a change order incorporating that work. Contractor hereby authorizes the District to execute a unilateral deductive change order at or near the end of the Project for all or any portion of the Site Utility Allowances not allocated.
- 3. The undersigned has reviewed the Work outlined in the Contract Documents and fully understands the scope of Work required in this Proposal, understands the construction and project management function(s) is described in the Contract Documents, and that each Bidder who is awarded a contract shall be in fact a prime contractor, not a subcontractor, to the District, and agrees that its Proposal, if accepted by the District, will be the basis for the Bidder to enter into a contract with the District in accordance with the intent of the Contract Documents.
- 4. The undersigned has notified the District in writing of any discrepancies or omissions or of any doubt, questions, or ambiguities about the meaning of any of the Contract Documents and has contacted the Program Manager before bid date to verify the issuance of any clarifying Addenda.
- 5. The undersigned agrees to commence work under this Contract on the date established in the Contract Documents and to complete all work within the time specified in the Contract Documents.
- 6. The liquidated damages clause of the General Conditions and Agreement is hereby acknowledged.
- 7. It is understood that the District reserves the right to reject this bid and that the bid shall remain open to acceptance and is irrevocable for a period of ninety (90) days.
- 8. The following documents are attached hereto:
  - Bid Bond on the District's form or other security
  - Designated Subcontractors List
  - Site Visit Certification
  - Non-Collusion Declaration
  - Iran Contracting Act Certification if contract value is \$1,000,000 or more

9. Receipt and acceptance of the following Addenda is hereby acknowledged:

No, Dated	No, Dated
No, Dated	No, Dated
No, Dated	No, Dated
No, Dated	No, Dated

- 10. Bidder acknowledges that the license required for performance of the Work is an "A" or "C-12" license.
- 11. The undersigned hereby certifies that Bidder is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be employed on the Work.
- 12. Bidder specifically acknowledges and understands that if it is awarded the Contract, that it shall perform the Work of the Project while complying with all requirements of the Department of Industrial Relations.
- 13. The Bidder represents that it is competent, knowledgeable, and has special skills with respect to the nature, extent, and inherent conditions of the Work to be performed. Bidder further acknowledges that there are certain peculiar and inherent conditions existent in the construction of the Work that may create, during the Work, unusual or peculiar unsafe conditions hazardous to persons and property.
- 14. Bidder expressly acknowledges that it is aware of such peculiar risks and that it has the skill and experience to foresee and to adopt protective measures to adequately and safely perform the Work with respect to such hazards.
- 15. Bidder expressly acknowledges that it is aware that if a false claim is knowingly submitted (as the terms "claim" and "knowingly" are defined in the California False Claims Act, Cal. Gov. Code, §12650 et seq.), the District will be entitled to civil remedies set forth in the California False Claim Act. It may also be considered fraud and the Contractor may be subject to criminal prosecution.
- 16. The undersigned Bidder certifies that it is, at the time of bidding, and shall be throughout the period of the contract, licensed by the State of California to do the type of work required under the terms of the Contract Documents and registered as a public works contractor with the Department of Industrial Relations. Bidder further certifies that it is regularly engaged in the general class and type of work called for in the Contract Documents.

Furthermore, Bidder hereby certifies to the District that all representations, certifications, and statements made by Bidder, as set forth in this bid form, are true and correct and are made under penalty of perjury.

Dated this	day	of	2019
Name of Bidder:			
Type of Organization:			
Signed by:			
Title of Signer:			
Address of Bidder:			
Taxpayer's Identification No. o	of Bidder:		
Telephone Number:			
Fax Number:			
E-mail:		Web page:	
Contractor's License No(s):	No.:	Class:	Expiration Date:
	No.:	Class:	Expiration Date:
Public Works Contractor Regi	stration No.:		

# THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. DOCUMENT 00 43 13

#### **BID BOND**

(Note: If Bidder is providing a bid bond as its bid security, Bidder must use this form, NOT a surety company form.) KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the undersigned, Principal ("Principal"), as Surety ("Surety"). a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California and authorized to do business as a surety in the State of California, are held and firmly bound unto the Lompoc Unified School District ("District") of Santa Barbara County, State of California as Obligee, in an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the Base Bid plus alternates, in the sum of Dollars (\$ \_ lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we, and each of us, bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that whereas the Principal has submitted a bid to the District for all Work specifically described in the accompanying bid for the following project: B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK ("Project" or "Contract"). NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal is awarded the Contract and, within the time and manner required under the Contract Documents, after the prescribed forms are presented to Principal for signature, enters into a written contract, in the prescribed form in accordance with the bid, and files two bonds, one guaranteeing faithful performance and the other guaranteeing payment for labor and materials as required by law, and meets all other conditions to the contract between the Principal and the Obligee becoming effective, or if the Principal shall fully reimburse and save harmless the Obligee from any damage sustained by the Obligee through failure of the Principal to enter into the written contract and to file the required performance and labor and material bonds, and to meet all other conditions to the Contract between the Principal and the Obligee becoming effective, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and effect. The full payment of the sum stated above shall be due immediately if Principal fails to execute the Contract within seven (7) days of the date of the District's Notice of Award to Principal. Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or the call for bids, or to the work to be performed thereunder, or the specifications accompanying the same, shall in any way affect its obligation under this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or the call for bids, or to the work, or to the specifications. In the event suit is brought upon this bond by the Obligee and judgment is recovered, the Surety shall pay all costs incurred by the Obligee in such suit, including a reasonable attorneys' fee to be fixed by the Court. If the District awards the bid, the security of unsuccessful bidder(s) shall be returned within sixty (60) days from the time the award is made. Unless otherwise required by law, no bidder may withdraw its bid for ninety (90) days after the date of the bid opening. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duty executed by the Principal and Surety above named, on the \_day of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_, 2019. Principal Βv Surety Name of California Agent of Surety

<u>Bidder must attach Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety and a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures. The California Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted Surety Insurer.</u>

Address of California Agent of Surety

Telephone Number of California Agent of Surety

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

#### **DOCUMENT 00 43 36**

# **DESIGNATED SUBCONTRACTORS LIST**

(Public Contract Code Sections 4100-4114)

#### **B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK**

Bidder acknowledges and agrees that it must clearly set forth below the name, location and California contractor license number of each subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to the Bidder in or about the construction of the Work or who will specially fabricate and install a portion of the Work according to detailed drawings contained in the plans and specifications in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent (0.5%) of Bidder's total Bid and the kind of Work that each will perform. Vendors or suppliers of materials only do not need to be listed.

Bidder acknowledges and agrees that if Bidder fails to list as to any portion of Work, or if Bidder lists more than one subcontractor to perform the same portion of Work, Bidder must perform that portion itself or be subjected to penalty under applicable law. In case more than one subcontractor is named for the same kind of Work, state the portion of the kind of Work that each subcontractor will perform.

If alternate bid(s) are called for and Bidder intends to use subcontractors different from or in addition to those subcontractors listed for work under the base Bid, Bidder must list subcontractors that will perform Work in an amount in excess of one half of one percent (0.5%) of Bidder's total Base Bid plus alternate(s).

If further space is required for the list of proposed subcontractors, attach additional copies of page 2 showing the required information, as indicated below.

Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	

CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
CA Cont. Lic. #:	Location:
Portion of Work:	
Date:	
Proper Name of Bidder:	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	

The undersigned declares:

# **DOCUMENT 00 45 19**

# **NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION**

# TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID Public Contract Code Section 7106

# **B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK**

I am the_ bid.		of	, the party making the foregoing		
Dia.	[Title]	[Name of F	Firm]		
[Title] [Name of Firm]  The bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partners company, association, organization, or corporation. The bid is genuine and not collusive sham. The bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put if false or sham bid. The bidder has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or to refrain from bidding. bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder. All statemed contained in the bid are true. The bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid depository to any member or agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, and has not paid, will not pay, any person or entity for such purpose.  Any person executing this declaration on behalf of a bidder that is a corporation, partnership into venture, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, her represents that he or she has full power to execute, and does execute, this declaration on be of the bidder.  I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoin					
			recuted on, [Date]		
at[Ci	ty] ' [S	 State]			
Date:					
Proper Nai	me of Bidder:				
Signature:					
Print Name	e:				
Title:					



# B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK EXECUTION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

# DOCUMENT 00 51 00 NOTICE OF AWARD (SAMPLE ONLY)

Dated:		2019					
To: To:			(Contractor)				
10.	(Addre	ess)	·				
From:	Gover	ning Board ("Board") of <b>Lompoc</b>	Unified School District ("District" or "Owner")				
Project:	B3-20	HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SC	HOOL OUTDOOR TRACK ("Project" or "Contract").				
Contracto	or has be	en awarded the referenced Contract on _	, 2019, by action of the District's Board.				
The Cont	ract Pric	e is	Dollars ( <u>\$</u> ),				
and inclu	des alter	nates					
You must	t comply	with the following conditions precedent wi	thin <b>SEVEN (7)</b> calendar days of the date of this Notice of Award.				
The Confollowing	tractor g the da	shall execute and submit the follow ite of the Notice of Award.	ing documents by 5:00 p.m. of the <b>SEVENTH (7<sup>th</sup>)</b> calendar day				
	a.	Agreement: To be executed by succes	sful Bidder. Submit two (2) copies, each bearing an original signature.				
	<b>D.</b> Performance Bond (100%): On the form provided in the Contract Documents and fully executed as indicated on the form.						
	C. Payment Bond (100%) (Contractor's Labor and Material Bond): On the form provided in the Contract Documents and fully executed as indicated on the form.						
	d.	Insurance Certificates and Endorsen	nents as required.				
	f.	Workers' Compensation Certification	1				
	G. Prevailing Wage and Related Labor Requirements Certification						
	n. Drug-Free Workplace Certification						
	I. Tobacco-Free Environment Certification						
	J. Hazardous Materials Certification						
	<del>K.</del>	Lead-Based Materials Certification					
	l.	Imported Materials Certification					
	m.	Criminal Background Investigation/F					
	n.	of each subcontractor for all tiers.	t include Department of Industrial Relations (DIR registration number				
Failure to of Award,	comply and to c	with these conditions within the time spec declare your Bid Security forfeited, as well	ified will entitle District to consider your bid abandoned, to annul this Notice as any other rights the District may have against the Contractor.				
After you	comply	with these conditions, District will return to	you one fully signed counterpart of the Agreement.				
			LOMPOC UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT				
			BY:				
			NAME:				

TITLE: Assistant Superintendent – Business Services

#### DOCUMENT 00 52 13

# <u>AGREEMENT</u>

(sample only)

THIS AGREEMENT IS MADE AND ENTERED INTO THIS	` '	DÁY OF	, 2019, by and between the
Lompoc Unified School District ("District") and			("Contractor") ("Agreement")

WITNESSETH: That the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed, and by these presents do covenant and agree with each other, as follows:

**1.** The Work: Contractor agrees to furnish all tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, labor, and material necessary to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner, the work of the following project:

#### PROJECT: B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK ("Project" or "Contract")

It is understood and agreed that the Work shall be performed and completed as required in the Contract Documents including, without limitation, the Drawings and Specifications and submission of all documents required to secure funding or by the Division of the State Architect for close-out of the Project, under the direction and supervision of, and subject to the approval of, the District or its authorized representative.

- 2. The Contract Documents: The complete Contract consists of all Contract Documents as defined in the General Conditions and incorporated herein by this reference. Any and all obligations of the District and Contractor are fully set forth and described in the Contract Documents. All Contract Documents are intended to cooperate so that any Work called for in one and not mentioned in the other or vice versa is to be executed the same as if mentioned in all Contract Documents.
- **3.** Interpretation of Contract Documents: Should any question arise concerning the intent or meaning of Contract Documents, including the Drawings or Specifications, the question shall be submitted to the District for interpretation. If a conflict exists in the Contract Documents, valid, written modifications, beginning with the most recent, shall control over this Agreement (if any), which shall control over the Special Conditions, which shall control over any Supplemental Conditions, which shall control over the General Conditions, which shall control over the remaining Division 0 documents, which shall control over Division 1 Documents which shall control over Division 2 through Division 49 documents, which shall control over figured dimensions, which shall control over large-scale drawings, which shall control over small-scale drawings. In no case shall a document calling for lower quality and/or quantity material or workmanship control. The decision of the District in the matter shall be final.
- **Time for Completion**: It is hereby understood and agreed that the work under this contract shall be completed no later than (date) \_\_\_\_\_\_\_.
- Completion-Extension of Time: Should the Contractor fail to complete this Contract, and the Work provided herein, within the time fixed for completion, due allowance being made for the contingencies provided for herein, the Contractor shall become liable to the District for all loss and damage that the District may suffer on account thereof. The Contractor shall coordinate its work with the Work of all other contractors. The District shall not be liable for delays resulting from Contractor's failure to coordinate its Work with other contractors in a manner that will allow timely completion of Contractor's Work. Contractor shall be liable for delays to other contractors caused by Contractor's failure to coordinate its Work with the work of other contractors.
- **Liquidated Damages**: Time is of the essence for all work under this Agreement. It is hereby understood and agreed that it is and will be difficult and/or impossible to ascertain and determine the actual damage that the District will sustain in the event of and by reason of Contractor's delay; therefore, Contractor agrees that it shall pay to the District the sum of **Two Hundred Fifty and no/100's dollars (\$250.00)** per day as liquidated damages for each and every day's delay beyond the time herein prescribed in finishing the Work.

It is hereby understood and agreed that this amount is not a penalty.

In the event that any portion of the liquidated damages is not paid to the District, the District may deduct that amount from any money due or that may become due the Contractor under this Agreement, and such deduction does not constitute a withholding or penalty. The District's right to assess liquidated damages is as indicated herein and in the General Conditions.

The time during which the Contract is delayed for cause as hereinafter specified may extend the time of completion for a reasonable time as the District may grant, provided that Contractor has complied with the claims procedure of the Contract Documents. This provision does not exclude the recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions in the Contract Documents.

- **7.** Loss Or Damage: The District and its authorized representatives shall not in any way or manner be answerable or suffer loss, damage, expense, or liability for any loss or damage that may happen to the Work, or any part thereof, or in or about the same during its construction and before acceptance, and the Contractor shall assume all liabilities of every kind or nature arising from the Work, either by accident, negligence, theft, vandalism, or any cause whatsoever; and shall hold the District and its authorized representatives harmless from all liability of every kind and nature arising from accident, negligence, or any cause whatsoever.
- **8. Insurance and Bonds**: Prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed by the District, Contractor shall provide all required certificates of insurance, insurance endorsements, and payment and performance bonds as evidence thereof.
- **9. Prosecution of Work**: If the Contractor should neglect to prosecute the Work properly or fail to perform any provisions of this contract, the District may, pursuant to the General Conditions and without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, make good such deficiencies and may deduct the cost thereof from the payment then or thereafter due the Contractor.

- **10.** Authority of Architect, Project Inspector, and DSA: Contractor hereby acknowledges that the Architect(s), the Project Inspector(s), and the Division of the State Architect ("DSA") have authority to approve and/or suspend Work if the Contractor's Work does not comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, and all applicable laws and regulations. The Contractor shall be liable for any delay caused by its non-compliant Work.
- **11.** Assignment of Contract: Neither the Contract, nor any part thereof, nor any moneys due or to become due thereunder, may be assigned by the Contractor without the prior written approval of the District, nor without the written consent of the Surety on the Contractor's Performance Bond (the "Surety"), unless the Surety has waived in writing its right to notice of assignment.
- 12. Classification of Contractor's License: Contractor hereby acknowledges that it currently holds valid Type \_\_\_\_\_ Contractor's license(s) issued by the State of California, Contractor's State Licensing Board, in accordance with division 3, chapter 9, of the Business and Professions Code and in the classification called for in the Contract Documents.
- **13.** Registration as Public Works Contractor: The Contractor and all Subcontractors currently are registered as public works contractors with the Department of Industrial Relations, State of California, in accordance with Labor Code section 1771.4.
- **14.** Payment of Prevailing Wages: The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall pay all workers on all Work performed pursuant to this Contract not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, State of California, for the type of work performed and the locality in which the work is to be performed within the boundaries of the District, pursuant to sections 1770 et seq. of the California Labor Code.
- 15. Labor Compliance: This project is subject to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1771.4 and Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. Contractor specifically acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Work of this Agreement while complying with all the applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, of the Labor Code, including, without limitation, the requirement that the Contractor and all of its Subcontractors shall timely submit complete and accurate electronic certified payroll records as required by the Contract Documents, or the District may not issue payment.
- **16. Contract Price**: In consideration of the foregoing covenants, promises, and agreements on the part of the Contractor, and the strict and literal fulfillment of each and every covenant, promise, and agreement, and as compensation agreed upon for the Work and construction, erection, and completion as aforesaid, the District covenants, promises, and agrees that it will well and truly pay and cause to be paid to the Contractor in full, and as the full Contract Price and compensation for construction, erection, and completion of the Work hereinabove agreed to be performed by the Contractor, the following price:

Dollars (\$

- in lawful money of the United States, which sum is to be paid according to the schedule provided by the Contractor and accepted by the District and subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract. This amount supersedes any previously stated and/or agreed to amount(s).
- 17. No Representations: No representations have been made other than as set forth in writing in the Contract Documents, including this Agreement. Each of the Parties to this Agreement warrants that it has carefully read and understood the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all Contract Documents, and that it has not relied upon the representations or advice of any other Party or any attorney not its own.
- **18. Entire Agreement:** The Contract Documents, including this Agreement, set forth the entire agreement between the parties hereto and fully supersede any and all prior agreements, understandings, written or oral, between the parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter thereof.
- **19. Severability**: If any term, covenant, condition, or provision in any of the Contract Documents is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions in the Contract Documents shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, accepted and agreed on the date indicated above:

CONTRACTOR	DISTRICT
	LOMPOC UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
By:	Ву:
Name:	Name:
Title:	Title: Assistant Superintendent – Business Services

NOTE: If the party executing this Contract is a corporation, a certified copy of the by-laws, or of the resolution of the Board of Directors, authorizing the officers of said corporation to execute the Contract and the bonds required thereby must be attached hereto.

# DOCUMENT 00 61 13.13

# PERFORMANCE BOND (100% of Contract Price)

(Note: Contractor must use this form, NOT a surety company form.)

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

WHEREAS, the governing board ("Board") of the Lomp	oc Unified School District, ("District") and
	, ("Principal)" have entered into a contract for the furnishing of all materials
and labor, services and transportation, necessary, conv	venient, and proper to perform the following project:
,2019, and all of the Contract Docu	ITDOOR TRACK ("Project" or "Contract") which Contract dated uments attached to or forming a part of the Contract, are hereby referred to and
made a part hereof, and	
	of the Contract to furnish a bond for the faithful performance of the Contract.
NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and	("Surety") are held and firmly
bound unto the Board of the District in the penal sum of (\$), lawful money of the U	f DOLLARS  United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made we bind sors, and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these presents, to:
Promptly perform all the work required  Pout to the District all demages the Dist	
complete the Project.	trict incurs as a result of the Principal's failure to perform all the Work required to
conditions, and upon determination by the District of the lower make available as Work progresses sufficient funds to pay the obligations of Principals under the Contract, including, without liquidated damages. The term "balance of the Contract Price District under the Contract and any modifications thereto, less	nall obtain a bid or bids for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and est responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and the District and ne cost of completion less the "balance of the Contract Price," and to pay and perform all ut limitation, all obligations with respect to warranties, guarantees and the payment of e," as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable to Principal by the is the amount previously paid by the District to the Principal, less any withholdings by the irred or obligated to accept a tender of a completion contractor from the Surety for any or no
shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and tri and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, of including all contractual guarantees and warrantees of	bound Principal, his or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns ruly keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in the Contract on its part to be kept and performed at the time and in the intent and meaning materials and workmanship, and shall indemnify and save harmless the District hen this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it shall be and remain in
of default by the Principal. Surety shall not utilize Pri	contractor or subcontractor proposed by Surety to fulfill its obligations in the even incipal in completing the Work nor shall Surety accept a Bid from Principal for notipal to be in default and notifies Surety of the District's objection to Principal's
warranty and/or guarantee period of the Contract, during complete, and satisfactory repair and replacements at defective materials or faulty workmanship. The obligate	n of the Contract, the above obligation shall hold good for a period equal to the gwhich time Surety's obligation shall continue if Contractor shall fail to make full and totally protect the District from loss or damage resulting from or caused by tions of Surety hereunder shall continue so long as any obligation of Contractor the Contractor or Surety's obligations under the Contract, law or equity, including action 337.15.
contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the this bond. The Surety also stipulates and agrees that overpayment or underpayment by the District that is be	grees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation of the shall not be exonerated or released from the obligation of this bond by any assed upon estimates approved by the Architect. The Surety does hereby waiven, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work or to the specifications.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterpart thereof, have been duly executed by the Principal and 9 2019.	ts of this instrument, each of which shall for all purposes be deemed an origina Surety above named, on the,
Principal	Surety
Ву	Ву
	Name of California Agent of Surety

Address of California Agent of Surety		
Telephone Number of California Agent of Surety		

Contractor must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and a Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety. The California Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer.

#### **DOCUMENT 00 61 13.16**

# PAYMENT BOND Contractor's Labor & Material Bond

ontractor's Labor & Material Bond (100% of Contract Price)

(Note: Contractor must use this form, NOT a surety company form.)

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: WHEREAS, the governing board ("Board") of the Lompoc Unified School District, ("District") and \_, ("Principal") have entered into a contract for the furnishing of all materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, convenient, and proper to perform the following project: B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK ("Project" or "Contract") which Contract dated 2019, and all of the Contract Documents attached to or forming a part of the Contract, are hereby referred to and made a part hereof, and WHEREAS, pursuant to law and the Contract, the Principal is required, before entering upon the performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient bond with the body by which the Contract is awarded in an amount equal to 100 percent (100%) of the Contract price, to secure the claims to which reference is made in sections 9000 through 9510 and 9550 through 9566 of the Civil Code, and division 2, part 7, of the Labor Code. , ("Surety") are held and firmly NOW. THEREFORE, the Principal and bound unto all laborers, material men, and other persons referred to in said statutes in the sum of Dollars (\$ ), lawful money of the United States, being a sum not less than the total amount payable by the terms of Contract, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, jointly and severally, by these presents. The condition of this obligation is that if the Principal or any of its subcontractors, or their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns of any, all, or either of them shall fail to pay for any labor, materials, provisions, or other supplies, used in, upon, for or about the performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of employees of the Principal or any of his or its subcontractors of any tier under Section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to such work or labor, that the Surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the amount herein above set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay a reasonable attorney's fee to be awarded and fixed by the Court, and to be taxed as costs and to be included in the judgment therein It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under section 9100 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in any suit brought upon Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and affect. And the Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of Contract or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension, alteration, or addition. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which shall for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above named, on the \_ day of \_ 2019. Principal Surety Ву Ву Name of California Agent of Surety Address of California Agent of Surety Telephone Number of California Agent of Surety

Bidder must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and a Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety. The California Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer.

# **DOCUMENT 00 45 26**

# **WORKERS' COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION**

	("Contractor" or	
"Bidder").		
Labor Code	e section 3700 in relevant part provides:	
	ry employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one ore of the following ways:	
a.	By being insured against liability to pay compensation by one or more insurers duly authorized to write compensation insurance in this state; and/or	
b.	By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self-insure, which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of ability to self-insure and to pay any compensation that may become due to his employees.	
employer to insurance	e of the provisions of section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such before commencing the performance of the Work of this Contract.	
Date:		
Proper Nar	ne of Contractor:	
Signature:		
Print Name	:	
Title:		
•	nce with Labor Code sections 1860 and 1861, the above certificate must be signed the the awarding body prior to performing any Work under this Contract.)	

DOCUMENT 00 45 46.01

# PREVAILING WAGE AND

# RELATED LABOR REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: **B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK** ("Contract" or "Project")

(Contract of Troject)	
between Lompoc Unified Sc	chool District ("District") and
	("Contractor" or "Bidder").
requirements regarding pre- payroll records, and apprer above Project including,	I conform to the State of California Public Works Contract evailing wages, benefits, on-site audits with 48-hours' notice, ntice and trainee employment requirements, for all Work on the without limitation, the labor compliance monitoring and ment of Industrial Relations.
Date:	
Proper Name of Contractor	:
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	

#### **DOCUMENT 00 45 46.03**

# DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: **B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK** ("Contract" or "Project") between Lompoc Unified School District ("District") and

\_\_\_\_\_ ("Contractor" or "Bidder").

This Drug-Free Workplace Certification form is required from the successful Bidder pursuant to Government Code section 8350 et seq., the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990. The Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 requires that every person or organization awarded a contract or grant for the procurement of any property or service from any state agency must certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing certain specified acts. In addition, the Act provides that each contract or grant awarded by a state agency may be subject to suspension of payments or termination of the contract or grant, and the contractor or grantee may be subject to debarment from future contracting, if the contracting agency determines that specified acts have occurred.

The District is not a "state agency" as defined in the applicable section(s) of the Government Code, but the District is a local agency and public school district under California law and requires all contractors on District projects to comply with the provisions and requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990.

Contractor shall certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing all of the following:

- **a.** Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person's or organization's workplace and specifying actions which will be taken against employees for violations of the prohibition.
- b. Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of the following:
  - (1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.
  - (2) The person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.
  - The availability of drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee-assistance programs.
  - (4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- C. Requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the contract or grant be given a copy of the statement required above, and that, as a condition of employment on the contract or grant, the employee agrees to abide by the terms of the statement.

I, the undersigned, agree to fulfill the terms and requirements of Government Code section 8355 listed above and will publish a statement notifying employees concerning (a) the prohibition of controlled substance at the workplace, (b) establishing a drug-free awareness program, and (c) requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the Contract be given a copy of the statement required by section 8355(a), and requiring that the employee agree to abide by the terms of that statement.

I also understand that if the District determines that I have either (a) made a false certification herein, or (b) violated this certification by failing to carry out the requirements of section 8355, that the Contract awarded herein is subject to termination, suspension of payments, or both. I further understand that, should I violate the terms of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990, I may be subject to debarment in accordance with the requirements of the aforementioned Act.

I acknowledge that I am aware of the provisions of and hereby certify that I will adhere to the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990.

Date:	
Proper Name of Contractor:	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	

#### **DOCUMENT 00 45 46.04**

# TOBACCO-FREE ENVIRONMENT CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK ("Project" or "Contract") between Lompoc Unified School District ("District") and ("Contractor" or "Bidder"). This Tobacco-Free Environment Certification form is required from the successful Bidder. Pursuant to, without limitation, 20 U.S.C section 6083, Labor Code section 6400 et seq., Health & Safety Code section 104350 et seg. and District Board policies, all District sites, including the Project site, are tobacco-free environments. Smoking and the use of tobacco products by all persons is prohibited on or in District property. District property includes school buildings, school grounds, school-owned vehicles and vehicles owned by others while on District property. I acknowledge that I am aware of the District's policy regarding tobacco-free environments at District sites, including the Project site and hereby certify that I will adhere to the requirements of that policy and not permit any of my firm's employees, agents, subcontractors, or my firm's subcontractors' employees or agents to use tobacco and/or smoke on the Project site. Date: Proper Name of Contractor: \_\_\_\_\_ Signature: Print Name:

END OF DOCUMENT

Title:

#### DOCUMENT 00 45 46.05

# HAZARDOUS MATERIALS CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: **B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK** ("Project" or "Contract") between **Lompoc Unified School District** ("District" or "Owner") and

	("Contractor" or "Bidder").
1.	Contractor hereby certifies that no asbestos, or asbestos-containing materials,
	polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or any material listed by the federal or state

Environmental Protection Agency or federal or state health agencies as a hazardous material, or any other material defined as being hazardous under federal or state laws, rules, or regulations ("New Hazardous Material"), shall be furnished, installed, or incorporated in any way into the Project or in any tools, devices, clothing, or

- equipment used to affect any portion of Contractor's work on the Project for District.

  2. Contractor further certifies that it has instructed its employees with respect to the above-mentioned standards, hazards, risks, and liabilities.
- 3. Asbestos and/or asbestos-containing material shall be defined as all items containing but not limited to chrysotile, crocidolite, amosite, anthophyllite, tremolite, and actinolite. Any or all material containing greater than one-tenth of one percent (0.1%) asbestos shall be defined as asbestos-containing material.
- 4. Any disputes involving the question of whether or not material is New Hazardous Material shall be settled by electron microscopy or other appropriate and recognized testing procedure, at the District's determination. The costs of any such tests shall be paid by Contractor if the material is found to be New Hazardous Material.
- 5. All Work or materials found to be New Hazardous Material or Work, or material installed with equipment containing "New Hazardous Material" will be immediately rejected and this Work will be removed at Contractor's expense at no additional cost to the District.
- **6.** Contractor has read and understood the document Hazardous Materials Procedures & Requirements and shall comply with all the provisions outlined therein.

Date:	
Proper Name of Contractor	: :
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	

END OF DOCUMENT

[Type here]

This page intentionally blank

# DOCUMENT 00 45 46.07 IMPORTED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION

 $\label{eq:project/contract} \mbox{PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: } \textbf{B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK} \\ \mbox{between Lompoc}$ 

between Lompo	С		
Unified School D	District ("District") and actor" or "Bidder") ("Contract" o	or "Project").	
any soils, aggre the District at le environmental r California Enviro ("CEQA"), and a requirements fo	pe executed by all entities that, gate, or related materials ("Fill' east ten (10) days before delive eview of the Project performed onmental Quality Act, section 2: all requirements of section 1721 r a Phase I environmental asse	") to the Project Sitry. All Fill shall sat pursuant to the state 1000 et seq. of the Edusement acceptable	e and shall be provided to isfy all requirements of any atutes and guidelines of the Public Resources Code ucation Code, including to the State of California
Certification of:	<ul><li>Delivery Firm/Transporter</li><li>Wholesaler</li><li>Distributor</li></ul>	<ul><li>□ Supplier</li><li>□ Broker</li><li>□ Other</li></ul>	
Type of Entity	<ul><li>□ Corporation</li><li>□ Limited Partnership</li><li>□ Sole Proprietorship</li></ul>	<ul><li>□ General Partne</li><li>□ Limited Liability</li><li>□ Other</li></ul>	•
Name of firm ("	Firm"):		
Mailing address:	·		
Addresses of bra	anch office used for this Project	:	
If subsidiary, na	me and address of parent com	pany:	
Safety Code and material. I furth provided, delive this Firm to the 25260 of the He	e below, I hereby certify that I and the sections referenced thereing the recentify on behalf of the Firmared, and/or supplied or that will project Site are free of any and ealth and Safety Code. I furthe pehalf of the Firm.	n regarding the def that all soils, aggr I be provided, deliv I all hazardous mate	inition of hazardous egates, or related materials ered, and/or supplied by erial as defined in section
Date:			
Proper Name of	Firm:		
Signature:			
Print Name:			
Title:			

[Type here]

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

#### **DOCUMENT 00 45 46.08**

# CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION/ FINGERPRINTING CERTIFICATION

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.: B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK ("Project" or "Contract") between Lompoc Unified School District ("District") and \_\_\_\_\_("Contractor" or "Bidder"). The undersigned does hereby certify to the governing board of the District as follows: That I am a representative of the Contractor currently under contract ("Contract") with the District; that I am familiar with the facts herein certified and am authorized and qualified to execute this certificate on behalf of Contractor. Contractor certifies that it has taken at least one of the following actions with respect to the construction Project that is the subject of the Contract (check all that applies): The Contractor has complied with the fingerprinting requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 with respect to all Contractor's employees and all of its subcontractors' employees who may have contact with District pupils in the course of providing services pursuant to the Contract, and the California Department of Justice has determined that none of those employees has been convicted of a felony, as that term is defined in Education Code section 45122.1. A complete and accurate list of Contractor's employees and of all of its subcontractors' employees who may come in contact with District pupils during the course and scope of the Contract is attached hereto; and/or Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, Contractor has installed or will install, prior to commencement of Work, a physical barrier at the Work Site, that will limit contact between Contractor's employees and District pupils at all times; and/or Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, Contractor certifies that all employees will be under the continual supervision of, and monitored by, an employee of the Contractor who the California Department of Justice has ascertained has not been convicted of a violent or serious felony. The name and title of the employee who will be supervising Contractor's employees and its subcontractors' employees is Name: The Work on the Contract is at an unoccupied school site and no employee and/or subcontractor or supplier of any tier of Contract shall come in contact with the District pupils. Contractor's responsibility for background clearance extends to all of its employees, Subcontractors, and employees of Subcontractors coming into contact with District pupils regardless of whether they are designated as employees or acting as independent contractors of the Contractor. Date: Proper Name of Contractor: Signature: Print Name: Title:

END OF DOCUMENT

[Type here]

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

# **DOCUMENT 00 45 49**

# REGISTERED SUBCONTRACTORS LIST (Labor Code Section 1771.1)

PROJECT: **B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK** 

Date Submitted (for Updates):
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it must clearly set forth below the name and Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) registration number of each subcontractor <b>for all tiers</b> who will perform work or labor or render service to Contractor or its subcontractors in about the construction of the Work <b>at least two (2) weeks before the subcontractor is scheduled to perform work</b> . This document is to be updated as all tiers of subcontractors are identified.
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that, if Contractor fails to list as to any subcontractor of any tier who performs any portion of Work, the Contract is subject to cancellation and the Contractor will be subjected to penalty under applicable law.
If further space is required for the list of proposed subcontractors, attach additional copies of page 2 showing the required information, as indicated below.
Subcontractor Name:
DIR Registration #:
Portion of Work:
Subcontractor Name:
DIR Registration #:
Portion of Work:
Subcontractor Name:
DIR Registration #:
Portion of Work:
Subcontractor Name:
DIR Registration #:
Portion of Work:
Subcontractor Name:
DIR Registration #:
Portion of Work:

Subcontractor Name:	
DIR Registration #:	
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
DIR Registration #:	
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
DIR Registration #:	
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
DIR Registration #:	
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
DIR Registration #:	
Portion of Work:	
Subcontractor Name:	
DIR Registration #:	
Portion of Work:	_
Subcontractor Name:	
Portion of Work:	
Date:	
Name of Contractor:	
Signature:	
Print Name:	
Title:	

END OF DOCUMENT

# **DOCUMENT 00 55 00**

# NOTICE TO PROCEED (sample only)

Dated:	, 2019
ΓΟ: ("Contrac	etor")
ADDRESS:	
PROJECT:	
	CONTRACT NO.: B3-20 HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR Project" or "Contract") between the Lompoc Unified School District and
You are not	ified that the Contract Time under the above Contract will commence to run on
	, <b>2019.</b> By that date, you are to start performing your obligations
under the C	ontract Documents. In accordance with the Agreement executed by
Contractor,	the date of completion is, 2019.
You must sub of this Notice t	mit the following documents by 5:00 p.m. of the <b>TENTH (10<sup>th</sup>)</b> calendar day following the date to Proceed:
a.	Contractor's preliminary schedule of construction.
b.	Contractor's preliminary schedule of values for all of the Work.
C.	Contractor's preliminary schedule of submittals, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples submittals
d.	Contractor's Safety Plan specifically adapted for the Project.
e.	A complete subcontractors list, including the name, address, telephone number, email address, facsimile number, California State Contractors License number, license classification, Department of Industrial Relations registration number, and monetary value of all Subcontracts.
Гhank you. W	e look forward to a very successful Project.
	LOMPOC UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
	BY:
	NAME:
	TITLE: Assistant Superintendent – Business Services

[Type here]

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

# LOMPOC UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL OUTDOOR TRACK

# LOMPOC UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT - HAPGOOD ELEMENTARY LOMPOC, CA

# **TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS**

# Table of Contents

00 00 00	Table of Contents
02 41 15	Site Utility Repair
03 30 53	Sitework Concrete
32 17 23	Pavement Marking
32 93 15	Landscape Restoration

[Type here]

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

#### **SECTION 02 41 15 SITE UTILITY REPAIR**

#### **PART 1 GENERAL**

#### 1.1 SUMMARY

- A. Includes But Not Limited To
  - 1. The contractor shall identify the location of the existing utilities for the site using existing plans, obvious surface features, locations of facilities, locator services and other practical means **48 hours prior to ground disturbance**.
  - 2. At locations where identified site utilities may conflict with the planned construction, the contractor shall pothole the utility 5 days in advance of the work to ascertain if a conflict exists. If a conflict does exist, the contractor shall notify the Owner and Engineer immediately.
  - 3. Repair of existing utilities damaged during the course of construction.

#### 1.2 PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

- A. Payment for Repairs
  - A Utility Repair Allowance is included in the project Bid Schedule. The contractor shall include this amount in his total bid.
  - 2. Payment for site utility repairs shall be made as follows:
    - a. Damaged due to Contractor's error or negligence paid by Contractor
    - Damage due to unidentifiable or unknown conditions paid through Site Utility Repair Allowance.
      - 1) Subcontractor markup limited to 5%
      - 2) Own forces markup 15%
      - 3) "Greenbook" and Cal Trans Force Account rules do not apply to this project. Only equipment, material and personnel directly associated to repair shall be considered "extra work" by project owner.
      - 4) No compensation for delays related to site utility repairs.
- B. Remaining monies in the Site Utility Repair Allowance at completion of job shall be credited back to owner by a change order.

#### 1.3 ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

- A. Coordination
  - 1. Contractor shall coordinate with affected utilities.
  - Contractor shall coordinate with other contractors working on the site.
  - 3. Coordinate with site landscape maintenance company.
- B. Preconstruction Meeting
  - Contractor shall schedule a preconstruction meeting prior to initiating work.
  - 2. Attendees at the preconstruction meeting shall include but not be limited to:
    - a. Owner's Representative
    - b. Contractor's General Foreman
    - c. Subcontractors (if applicable)
    - d. QA Representative
    - e. QC Representative
    - f. Other site users or affected parties as applicable.

## C. Scheduling

- 1. The location of underground facilities shall be included as an initial schedule activity.
- Potholing of potential conflicting utilities shall be performed within 48 hours after the conflict is identified.

#### 1.4 SUBMITTALS

- A. The workman or subcontractors to perform the repairs shall be identified prior to the initiation of work and telephone number made available to the Owner's Representative.
  - 1. The contractor shall have the resources available to immediately and expeditiously repair damaged utilities, without impact to the schedule, including:
    - a. site lighting
    - b. irrigation lines and wires
    - c. water services
    - d. electrical lines

#### 1.5 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

A. Provide Owner with record drawings indicating site utility repairs with related information including photographs.

#### **PRODUCTS**

#### 1.6 MATERIALS

- A. The materials used for repairs shall be compatible and similar with the site utility to be repaired.
- B. Minimum thickness of plastic pipe for irrigation repairs shall be Schedule 40.
- C. Utility Boxes: Traffic-rated box and lid in pavement areas; Plastic or composite boxin landscape areas.
- D. Wire Connectors: 3M AY type connectors shall be used for wire splices.

# **PART 2 EXECUTION**

#### 2.1 PROTECTION

A. The contractor is responsible for protecting existing site utilities identified or which should have been identified by compliance with these specifications.

#### 2.2 CONSTRUCTION

- A. Repair of damaged lines or wiring due to the contractor's failure to adequately identify or protect existing utility lines shall be the contractor's responsibility.
- B. Damaged utilities which were not able to be identified or protected shall be repaired by the contractor.
  - 1. The contractor shall make all repairs in accordance with the applicable codes. Care shall be exercised to avoid further damage to existing facilities during repairs.
  - 2. The repaired lines or wiring shall be tested prior to backfilling.
  - 3. The contractor shall be responsible for any damage to the completed work due to improper repairs of existing site utilities.
  - 4. Electrical splices:
    - a. Damaged electrical lines shall be replaced from existing pull boxes or facilities. Splices shall only be made with the express permission of the Owner.
    - b. Damaged irrigation wiring may be spliced with wire connectors. Splices in wiring run shall have a utility box placed over the splice.

**EN000D OF SECTION** 

#### **SECTION 03 30 53 SITEWORK CONCRETE**

#### **PART 1 GENERAL**

#### 1.1 SUMMARY

- A. Includes But Not Limited To
  - 1. Removal of existing concrete and related materials.
  - Compact subgrade for cast-in-place concrete site elements as described in Contract Documents.
  - Furnish and install granular base for cast-in-place concrete site elements as described in Contract Documents.
  - 4. Furnish and install cast-in-place concrete site elements as described in Contract Documents.

# B. Related Sections

- 1. Section 02 41 13 Site Demolition
- 2. Section 03 90 05 Concrete Joint Sealant
- 3. Section 31 23 00 Excavation, Grading & Backfill
- 4. Section 32 00 01 General Exterior Site Construction Requirements

#### 1.2 PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES

- A. Detectable Warning Surface measured and paid for on a square foot basis as listed in the bid schedule.
- B. Stair Treads included in the bid price for stair construction and no separate payment will be made.
- C. Joint Sealant concrete joint sealant shall be included in the various items of work.
- D. All other items of sitework concrete to be measured and paid for as listed in the bid schedule and shall be considered full compensation for all labor, equipment, and materials required to perform the work as described herein.
- E. If sample panel(s) is required it shall be included in the unit cost of the work.

#### 1.3 REFERENCES

- A. American Society for Testing and Materials (Most recent version)
  - ASTM D 1751, 'Standard Specification for Preformed Expansion Joint Filler for Concrete Paving and Structural Construction (Non-extruding and Resilient Bituminous Types)'
  - 2. ASTM A 615, 'Standard Specification for Deformed and Plain Billet-Steel Bars for Concrete Reinforcement'
  - 3. ASTM C 33, 'Standard Specifications for Concrete Aggregates'
  - 4. ASTM C 94, 'Standard Specifications for Ready-Mixed Concrete'
  - 5. ASTM C 150, Standard Specifications for Portland Cement'
- B. 2010 Caltrans Standard Specifications immediately connected to concrete work
- C. California Building Code. (2013 or most recent version)

- D. American Disabilities Act including most recent rulings
- E. Applicable latest Caltrans Standard Details if applicable to the work (either because within Caltrans Right of Way or by municipal reference)

#### 1.4 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

A. Reinforcing steel shall be free of mud, heavy rust scales or flakes, or other coating at time of delivery and placing. Properly protect rebar on site after delivery.

#### 1.5 SUBMITTALS

- A. Concrete Mix Designs
- B. Aggregate Base
- C. Safety Treads
- D. Detectable Warning Surface
- E. Concrete Joint Primer and Sealant
- F. Concrete Color
- G. Concrete Stamp Patterns

#### 1.6 ACTION SUBMITTALS

- A. Delivery Tickets Require mix plant to furnish delivery ticket for each batch of concrete. Keep delivery tickets at jobsite for use of Owner or representatives. Tickets shall show following:
  - 1. Name of ready-mix plant
  - 2. Serial number of ticket
  - 3. Date and truck number
  - Name of Contractor
  - 5. Name and location of Project
  - 6. Specific class or designation of concrete in conformance with the specifications. Class or designation shall match mix approved mix design.
  - 7. Amount of concrete
  - 8. Time loaded
  - 9. Type, name, and amount of admixtures used.
  - 10. Amount and type of cement
  - 11. Total water content
  - 12. Sizes and weights of sand and aggregate
  - 13. Fiber additive

#### 1.7 QUALTIY ASSURANCE

- A. Quality Assurance (QA) Inspection and/or Testing.
  - 1. Owner may, at their option, have independent quality assurance inspection and testing.
    - a. Inspections may be made during or after the work.
    - b. QA Inspection and testing is for the sole purpose of providing the Owner a greater degree of assurance that the requirements of the contract have been met. QA inspection and testing does not relieve the Contractor of any

responsibility to comply with or perform in accordance with the Contract documents.

- All QA concrete testing laboratories shall be CCRL, ACI or otherwise qualified under ASTM C1077-14.
- B. Notification Required Allow Owner's Agent to verify grades and elevations or to schedule QA personnel, notify Owner's Agent 48 hours minimum prior to placing concrete.

#### **PART 2 PRODUCTS**

#### 2.1 MATERIALS

- A. Formwork
  - 1. Material: Wood, metal or plastic
  - 2. Size
    - a. Straight Runs 2-inch nominal thickness minimum.
    - b. Curves laminated to 3/4-inch thickness minimum.
    - c. Depth Within 2 inches of specified depth.
  - 3. Staking 2 foot maximum spacing.
- B. Aggregate Base -
  - 1. 3/4-inch Class 2 Aggregate per Section 26 of Caltrans Standard Specifications.
  - 2. Onsite Recycled Base per Section 32 12 16.
  - 3. Grindings from cold planning less than 2 inches in maximum dimension.
- C. Expansion Joints
  - Manufactured commercial fiber type meeting requirements of ASTM D 1751 and 1/2 inch thick.
- D. Concrete Reinforcing Steel
  - 1. Grade 40 deformed bars.
- E. Concrete
  - 1. Type I/II Cement
  - 2. All concrete except swales and PCC pads for dumpsters:
    - a. 1" maximum aggregate size.
    - b. 5 sack minimum.
    - c. 2,500 psi in 28 days.
    - d. 4-inch maximum slump.
    - e. Fibermesh Polypropylene Fibers, or equivalent, 3/4" minimum length @ 1.5 lbs/cy (0.01% by volume).
  - 3. Concrete swales and PCC pads for dumpsters:
    - a. 1" maximum aggregate size.
    - b. 6 sack minimum.
    - c. 2,000 psi in 7 days.
    - d. 3,500 psi in 28 days.
    - e. 4-inch maximum slump.
    - f. Fibermesh Polypropylene Fibers, or equivalent, 3/4" minimum length @ 3.0 lbs/cy (0.02% by volume).
  - 4. Omit Fibermesh on colored and/or textured concrete.
- F. Safety Treads Wooster Products Inc. Type 231 complying with latest addition of UBC for placement and color.
  - 1. Warning strip on top and bottom steps to differ in color from intermediate stair treads.

- G. Detectable Warning Surface -
  - 1. Tactile warning dots per Section 1133B.8.5 of the most recent edition of the California Building Code.
    - a. 36" Minimum width.
    - b. Durable, slip resistant material with a surface texture composed of raised, truncated domes in a staggered pattern with a diameter of nominal 0.9" at the base tapering to 0.45" at the top, a height of nominal 0.2", and a centerspacing of nominal 2.35".
    - Color as specified on plans. If no color is specified, color shall be Safety Yellow.
    - d. "Set-in-concrete' system required (No glued & screwed mat systems installed after finished concrete)
  - 2. Acceptable Products (in safety yellow color):
    - a. "Wet-Anchor Box" by Disability Devices, Inc. http://www.disabilitydevices.com/Offset\_Dome\_Tactile\_Warning\_Mat.html
    - b. "Cast-in-Place System" by Armor-Tile.

http://www.armor-tile.com/truncateddomes/surface-applied-systems.htm

- c. Approved equal by Owner's Agent prior to bidding.
- H. Concrete Joint Sealant
  - 1. Pourthane SL Product 773-A by W. R. Meadows/Seal Tight
  - 2. Sikaflex Self-Leveling Sealant
  - 3. Or equal

#### **PART 3 EXECUTION**

#### 3.1 PREPARATION

- A. Survey and stake sitework concrete to indicate location and elevations required by the Contract Documents. Notification to Owners Representative of grades set by contractor Required Allow Owner's Agent to verify grades and elevations 48 hours minimum prior to placing concrete.
- B. Subgrade
  - 1. Fine grade to elevations required by Contract Documents with allowances for required concrete and aggregate base thickness.
  - 2. Compact native soils to 90 percent relative compaction at optimum moisture +/-2 percent.
- C. Aggregate Base
  - 1. Where required, place required thickness.
  - 2. Fine grade to elevations required by Contract Documents with allowances for required concrete and aggregate base thickness.
  - 3. Compact to 90 percent relative compaction at optimum moisture +/- 2 percent.
- D. Sidewalk sample for specified finishes (not including broom-finished concrete)
  - 1. Prior to placing any concrete for sidewalks, Contractor shall prepare a 4 foot by 4-foot sample with the specified finish(s) for approval by the Owner's Representative.
    - a. Approved sample shall remain on site for the duration of the concrete work and shall be disposed of at the completion of the final concrete pour.
    - b. Approved sample work shall not be a part of the finished work product.
- E. Protection of Existing Facilities



- 1. All vertical surfaces within 10 feet of the work shall be covered to a height of 3 feet with sheet plastic
- 2. Existing hardscape surfaces shall be protected with tape and plastic sheeting.
- 3. Any damage to adjacent finishes shall be repaired to the satisfaction of the owner. Repainting shall extend across the entire plane from corner to corner.
- 4. Horizontal surfaces shall be protected from graffiti or other damage.

#### 3.2 INSTALLATION

#### A. Site Tolerances

- 1. Vertical
  - a. Subgrade 0.00 feet high.
  - b. Aggregate Base 0.00 feet high.
  - c. Finish Concrete +/- 0.02 feet.
- Horizontal
  - a. General Finish Concrete +/- 0.10 feet.
  - b. Required Widths 0.00 to +0.10 feet.
- 3. Layout
  - a. Horizontal dimensions shall be within +/- 0.10 feet.
- 4. Exterior Accessible Travel Paths
  - a. Landings, Ramps, Crosswalks, Sidewalks, and other Pedestrian Travel Paths Cross slopes 2 percent or less.
  - b. Sidewalks 5 percent or less longitudinal slope.
  - c. Ramps 8.33 percent or less longitudinal slope.
  - d. Maximum vertical distance between landings 30 inches.
- 5. Variations in stairs
  - Consecutive steps-
    - 1) Treads -1/4-inch, 11-inch minimum width.
    - 2) Risers 1/4-inch, 4 inch minimum, 7 inch maximum.
  - b. Flight of stairs -
    - 1) Treads -3/8 inch.
    - 2) Risers 3/8 inch.
- 6. Landings at Doorways
  - a. 1/4-inch maximum differential between top of threshold and surface of landing.
- 7. Forms
  - a. Vertical surfaces shall be formed to within 2 inches of subgrade.
  - b. Gaps between forms shall not exceed 1/4".

## B. Joints

- 1. Align joints of sidewalk and curb and gutter.
- 2. Expansion Joints with joint material -

- a. Spacing -
  - 1) Sidewalks, Curbs, and Curb & Gutter 50 feet on center.
  - 2) Mow Strips 10 feet on center.
  - 3) Flat Drainage Structures 50 feet on center.
  - 4) Retaining Walls 36 feet on center.
- b. Full depth of sidewalk, curbs, gutters, pads, etc.
- c. If reinforcement required, rebar to extend through expansion joint material.
- d. Place at corner of curb and curb & gutter.
- e. Install so top of expansion joint material is 1/4 inch below finished concrete surface.
- f. No expansion joint required between curbs and walks parallel to curb.
- g. Provide expansion joint at end of walks perpendicular to and terminating at curb.
- h. Provide expansion joint between concrete work and buildings. Expansion joint shall be 1/2" below finished concrete surface. Caulk per Section 30 90 05.
- 3. Contraction Joint Spacing -
  - 1) Sidewalks, Curbs, and Curb & Gutter 10 feet on center.
  - 2) Mechanical Pads, Dumpster Enclosures, etc. 12 feet on center.
  - 3) Flat Drainage Structures 10 feet on center.
  - b. Contraction Joint Depth
    - 1) 1-inch minimum depth.
    - 2) 1/4 to 1/3 concrete thickness.
  - c. Location
    - 1) Align sidewalk and curb and/or gutter.
    - 2) If placing on existing concrete, align with underlying contraction joints and cracks if feasible.
    - 3) Place at all inside corners.
    - 4) At square utility boxes, place contraction joints at each corner.
    - At round utility boxes, place joint through center to nearest edges of concrete.
    - 6) Spacing may be increased or decreased to 12 feet to accommodate utility boxes.
  - d. Type
    - 1) Tooled joint up to 6" concrete depth. Tooled joint required for all sidewalks. Sawcuts not allowed. Tooled joint may be deepened with sawcut within 24 hours of concrete placement if necessary.
    - 2) Sawcut or parting strip for concrete depths over 6 inches. All sawcuts shall be made within 24 hours of concrete placement.
- 4. Inserts, Stair Treads, etc. Precut and place prior to concrete placement where practical.
- Crack Repair Cracks resulting from failure to comply with requirements will require removal and replacement of entire panel or section of concrete to adjacent contraction joints.

#### C. Finish

- 1. Curb, Gutter, Slabs, Mow Strips, Flat Drainage Structures, And Miscellaneous
  - a. Light Broom finish.
  - b. Round edges including edges formed by expansion joints.
  - c. Remove edger marks.
- 2. Sidewalk Unless specified otherwise on plans, sidewalks shall have a lightbroom finish with the following requirements:
  - a. Washed, Fine Aggregate surface (3/8" max. size aggregate).
  - b. Round edges including edges formed by expansion joints.
  - c. Remove edger marks.
- 3. Curb Faces -

- a. Remove forms as soon as practical.
- b. Fill voids with fresh concrete if necessary.
- c. Finish face full depth with smooth steel trowel finish.
- Remove any excess concrete beyond form line at bottom of curb face at time of finishing.
- 4. Walls
  - a. Immediately after removing forms, remove joints, marks, bellies, projections, loose materials, and cut back metal ties from surfaces to be exposed.
  - b. Point up voids with cement mortar, 1:2 mix, and rub exposed surface with carborundum to smooth, even surface.
- 5. Ramps
  - a. Medium broom finish transverse to direction of travel on ramp.

#### D. Special Requirements

- 1. Form vertical surfaces full depth. Do not allow concrete to flow out from under forms in any degree. Remove any excess concrete beyond form face immediately after forms removed.
- 2. Sidewalks, Exterior Stairs, And Landings
  - a. Slope to drain.
    - 1) Slope sidewalks with cross slope of 1 percent minimum to 2 percent maximum in direction of intended drainage.
    - 2) Slope sidewalks away from building one percent minimum.
  - b. Dusting with cement not permitted.
  - c. Adding water during finish not permitted.
- 3. At Channel Iron over Rainleaders
  - a. Grout space between pipe and channel iron at curb face and sidewalk edge.
  - b. Grind 1/4-inch bevel on sawcut edge if applicable prior to concrete placement. Round over concrete edge of fresh concrete.
- 4. Light Pole Bases

#### E. Detectable Warning Surfaces -

- 1. Layout
  - a. 36-inch minimum width, length per plan.
  - b. Surface flush with adjacent concrete.
- 2. Install warning surface in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.

#### F. Concrete Joint Sealant

- 1. Cleaning
  - a. Remove all contaminants including dirt, paint, curing compounds, grease, oil or other non-compatible substances or compounds.
  - b. Do not use any oil-based cleaning compounds.
  - c. After cleaning, vacuum thoroughly.
- 2. Sealant
  - a. Cure new concrete a minimum of 28 days prior to sealing.
  - b. Application
    - 1) Surface of sealant shall be 1/16" to 3/16" below the concrete surface.
    - 2) Clean all sealant off adjacent concrete surfaces.
  - c. Protection
    - 1) Protect sealed joints until sealant is fully set.

# 3.3 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Formwork Dimensions and Grades
  - 1. Contractor shall verify that the formwork conforms to the required dimensions and elevations prior to placement of concrete.

- B. Contractor shall verify ADA travel path slopes and cross slopes
  - 1. Check formwork prior to concrete placement
  - Check placed concrete during finishing
  - 3. Check completed work prior to placing curing compound
- C. Concrete Drainage Structures
  - Contractor shall water test flowlines of drainage structures such as gutters, swales and v-ditches during the finishing process to eliminate high or low areas and any areas of ponding.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### **SECTION 32 17 23 PAVEMENT MARKING**

#### **PART 1 GENERAL**

#### 1.1 SUMMARY

- A. Includes But Not Limited To
  - Furnish material and apply pavement and curb markings as described in Contract Documents.
  - 2. Remove existing pavement markings in sealcoat areas which will conflict with new striping layout.
- B. Related Sections
  - 1. Section 32 00 01 General Exterior Site Construction Requirements

## 1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Regulatory Requirements Paint accessible parking spaces to conform to ADA Standards and local code requirements.
- B. Notify Owners Representative 48 hours in advance of paint application to allow for review of layout.

## 1.3 SUBMITTALS

A. Manufacturers Product Datasheet

## 1.4 PROJECT CONDITIONS

- A. Project Environmental Requirements
  - 1. Apply only on dry surfaces, during favorable weather, and when damage by rain, fog, or condensation not anticipated.
  - 2. Latex Paint
    - a. Atmospheric temperature above 50 degrees F.
    - b. When temperature is not anticipated to drop below 50 degrees F during drying period.
  - 3. Alkyd Paint
    - a. Atmospheric temperature above 40 degrees F.
    - b. When temperature is not anticipated to drop below 40 degrees F during drying period.

#### **PART 2 PRODUCTS**

#### 2.1 MATERIAL

- A. Paint
  - 1. Non-reflectorized.
  - 2. Types Either Acrylic or Latex
  - 3. Colors
    - a. Yellow Parking stripes, crosswalk stripes, and safety markings.
    - b. Blue and White Accessible Parking space markings.
    - c. Red Fire lanes and no parking zones.
  - 4. Acceptable Products and Manufacturers
    - a. 442XX Traffic Marking Paint by Devoe, Louisville, KY (800) 654-2616Set-Fast Traffic Marking Paint by Sherwin-Williams, Cleveland, OH (800) 321-8194.
    - b. Equal as approved by Owner's Agent before installation.

#### **PART 3 EXECUTION**

#### 3.1 PREPARATION

- Do not apply paint until hot-mix asphalt has cooled below 120 degrees F for at least one hour.
- B. Surfaces shall be dry and free of grease and loose dirt particles. Scrape and wire brush chipped or damaged paint on existing curbs. Power wash curbs after paving but prior to painting with 3500 psi minimum pressure.
- C. Perform layout with chalk or lumber crayon only. No blackout paint allowed.

#### 3.2 APPLICATION

- A. Site Tolerances
  - 1. General Make parking lot lines parallel, evenly spaced, and with sharply defined edges.
    - a. Line Widths Parking Spaces 4 inch. Playground markings shall match existing layout and width prior to sealcoat or current plan if on new pavement.
    - b. Plus, or minus 1/4-inch variance on straight segments.
    - c. Plus, or minus 1/2-inch variance on curved alignments.
- B. Provide complete coverage in **one** application at 75 sq ft per gallon, or **two** coatapplication, each coat with maximum coverage of 150 sq ft per gal. Do not apply second coat within three hours minimum or until first coat is thoroughly dried, whichever is longer.
- C. The underlying surface shall not be visible through newly applied paint.
- D. Failure to produce satisfactory paint markings may require contractor to provide a pavement coating to entire surface prior to the repainting of pavement markings.

# 3.3 CLEANING

A. Remove drips, overspray, improper markings, and paint material tracked by traffic by sand blasting, wire brushing, or other method approved by Owner's Agent prior to acceptance.

# **PART 4 PAYMENT**

- A. Parking lot striping shall be paid for on a lump sum basis for "Pavement Markings" as listed in the bid schedule and shall be considered full compensation for all labor, equipment, and materials required to perform the work as described herein.
- B. All work associated with cleaning and painting curbs, including placement of legends on curb faces, shall be included in the lump sum price for "Pavement Markings" unless otherwise listed in the bid schedule.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### **SECTION 32 93 15 LANDSCAPE RESTORATION**

#### **PART 1 GENERAL**

#### 1.1 SUMMARY

- A. Includes But Not Limited To
  - 1. Restoring landscape features impacted by other items of work.
- B. Related Sections
  - 1. Section 32 84 23 Underground Irrigation System
  - 2. Section 32 93 00 General Planting Requirements
  - 3. Section 32 93 05 Exterior Plants
  - 4. Section 32 93 23 Lawn Sodding

#### **PART 2 PRODUCTS**

- A. Components for Irrigation System Restoration Per Section 32 84 23 "Underground Irrigation System"
- B. Plant Material Restoration Per Section 32 93 05 "Exterior Plants"
- C. Top Dressing Mulch & Pre-emergent herbicide Per Section 32 93 05 "Exterior Plants"

# **PART 3 EXECUTION**

#### 3.1 RESTORATION TO IRRIGATION SYSTEMS

- A. Restoration -
  - 1. Relocate sprinkler heads, irrigation valves, quick coupler valves, and other features which interfere with items of new work.
  - 2. Cut and cap irrigation lateral lines where landscape area is converted to hardscape (sidewalk or paving).
  - 3. Reroute irrigation lateral lines and/or pressurized mainlines when conflicting with items of new work.
- B. Perform all irrigation restoration work in accordance with Section 32 84 23 "Underground Irrigation System".

#### 3.2 RESTORATION OF LANDSCAPE PLANT MATERIAL

- A. Restoration -
  - 1. Plants which are shown for temporary relocation shall be replaced at the completion of all other major work items of project.
  - 2. Plants which are specified to be protected or to remain which are damaged shall be replaced at no cost to the Owner. Minimum size for plant material restoration shall be

- a. Trees (up to 10 feet existing height) 15-gallon container
- b. Trees (greater than 10 feet existing height) 36-inch box
- c. Shrubs 5-gallon container
- 3. In lawn areas adjacent to work, replace turf up to edges of landscape areas. Turf to be rolled sod to match existing turf grass as closely as possible. Repair of lawn areas by seeding will be allowed only if approved in advance by Owners Representative.
- B. Perform all planting installation in accordance with Section 32 93 05 "Exterior Plants".

#### 3.3 MISCELLANEOUS LANDSCAPE FEATURES

- A. In landscape areas behind new sidewalk, curb, headerboards, and other site facilities, replace soil behind work to within 1 to 2 inches from finish surface.
  - 1. Use existing site soil for backfill first, then imported topsoil per Section 3123 00 "Excavation, Grading & Backfill" to supplement.
- B. After finish grading in affected planter areas, apply pre-emergent herbicide and placetop dressing mulch over all bare soil.
  - 1. Perform installation per Section 32 93 05 "Exterior Plants".
- C. Replace existing landscaping boulders, steppingstones, and decorative features as specified on plans.

#### **PART 4 PAYMENT**

A. All work related to landscape restoration shall be paid on a lump sum basis as listed in the bid schedule and shall be considered full compensation for all labor, equipment, and materials required to perform the work as described herein

**END OF SECTION**